NOTICE OF MEETINGS

Thursday., December 18, 2008

9:00 a.m. — Advisory Committee Meeting
11:00 a.m. — Watermaster Board Meeting

(A Christmas lunch will be served after the Board meeting)

"

AT THE CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER OFFICES
9641 San Bernardino Road
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730
(909) 484-3888

%k




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

Thursday, December 18, 2008

9:00 a.m. — Advisory Committee Meeting
11:00 a.m. — Watermaster Board Meeting

AGENDA PACKAGE

Aqlo}o‘;OAEJneAa




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING
WITH
Mr. Robert Del.oach, Chair
Mr. Bob Feenstra, Vice-Chair
Mr. Mark Kinsey, 2™ Vice-Chair
9:00 a.m. — December 18, 2008
At The Offices Of
Chino Basin Watermaster
9641 San Bernardino Road
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER
AGENDA - ADDITIONS/REORDER

l.  CONSENT CALENDAR
Note: All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial and will be acted upon by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no
separate discussion on these items prior to voting unless any members, staff, or the public

requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate
action.

A. MINUTES
1. Minutes of the Advisory Committee Meeting held November 20, 2008 (Page 1)

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS
1. Cash Disbursements for the month of November 2008 (Page 17)
2. Watermaster Visa Check Detail (Page 21)
3. Combining Schedule for the Period July 1, 2008 through October 31, 2008 (Page 23)
4. Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period October 1, 2008 through October 31,
2008 (Page 25)
5. Budget vs. Actual July 2008 through October 2008 (Page 27)

C. WATER TRANSACTION

1. Consider Approval for Notice of Sale or Transfer — Fontana Water Company
("“Company”) has agreed to purchase from Cucamonga Valley Water District water in
storage in the amount of 4,265 acre-feet. Date of Application: October 6, 2008 (Page 29)

2. Consider Approval for Notice of Sale or Transfer — Aqua Capital Management LP
(Aqua) has agreed to purchase from CCG Ontario LLC (CCG) the amount of all of CCG’s
water in storage as of June 30, 2008, and a permanent transfer of its share of safe yield of
630.274 acre-feet. Date of Application: November 7, 2008 (Page 43)

Il. BUSINESS ITEMS
A. MOU COOPERATIVE EFFORTS FOR MONITORING PROGRAMS BETWEEN THE INLAND
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY AND THE CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER — BRIGHT LINE
APPROACH
Consider Approval for the Memorandum of Understanding Cooperative Efforts for Monitoring

Programs Between the [nland Empire Utilities Agency and the Chino Basin Watermaster Bright
Line Approach dated December 17, 2008 (Page 57)



Agenda Advisory Committee Meeting ’ December 18, 2008

PUBLIC INFORMATION COST SHARING AGREEMENT WITH INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES
AGENCY FOR 2009 COMMUNITY OUTREACH CAMPAIGN

Consider Approval for the Advertising Agreement with Inland Empire Utilities Agency for a 12-
Month Public Information Campaign with the Inland Valley Daily Bulletin (Page 63)

CONDITION SUBSEQUENT NO. 5

Consider Approval of January 1, 2009 Progress Report on Watermaster's Recharge Master
Plan Update pursuant to Condition Subsequent 5 (Page 71)

AGRICULTURAL POOL REALLOCATION PROCEDURE

Consider to Adopt the Procedures as Described in the Attached Memorandum and Instruct
Counsel to Include a Description of These Procedures in the Filing to be Made in Compliance
with Condition Subsequent Number 8 (Page 81)

WATERMASTER PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT - PROPOSED PRICE FLOOR
AUCTION
Consider Auction Proposal for the Non-Agricultural Pool Water (Page 87)

REPORTS/UPDATES

A.

E.

WATERMASTER GENERAL LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT
1. February 2, 2009 Hearing
2. Condition Subsequent No. 7 Pleading

ENGINEERING REPORT
1. Oral Progress Report on Engineering Activities November 2008
2. Progress Report on the AB303 Grant ASR Pilot Project in MZ3

CEO/STAFF REPORT
1. Legislative Update
2. Recharge Update
3. California Groundwater Coalition (CGC)

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Dry Year Yield Expansion Program Oral

MWD Water Supply Allocation Plan Update Oral

IEUA Drait “Strawman” Drought Plan Oral

Recycled Water Newsletter (Page 113)

Monthly Water Conservation Programs Report (Page 119)
State and Federal Legislative Report (Page 1317)
Community Outreach/Public Relations Report (Page 153)
IEUA Regional Conservation Programs (Page 155)

Annual Water Use Report for IEUA Service Area (Page 161)

DN AWM=

OTHER METROPOLITAN MEMBER AGENCY REPORTS

IV. INFORMATION

1.

Newspaper Articles (Page 191)

V. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

VI

OTHER BUSINESS



Agenda Advisory Committee Meeting

VIl. EUTURE MEETINGS
December 11, 2008
December 16, 2008
December 18, 2008
December 18, 2008
January 8, 2009
January 8, 2009
January 8, 2009
January 20, 2009
January 22, 2009
January 22, 2009
January 22, 2009

Meeting Adjourn

10:00 a.m.
9:00 a.m.
9:00 a.m.

11:00 a.m.
9:30 a.m.
9:45 a.m.

10:00 a.m.
9:00 a.m.
8:00 a.m.
9:00 a.m.

11:00 a.m.

December 18, 2008

Joint Appropriative & Nan-Agricultural Pool Meeting
Agricultural Pool Meeting @ IEUA

Advisory Committee Meeting

Watermaster Board Meeting

Annual Non-Agricultural Pool Elections

Annual Appropriative Pool Elections

Annual Joint Appropriative 8 Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting
Annual Agricultural Pool Meeting @ IEUA

IEUA Dry Year Yield Meeting @ CBWM

Annual Advisory Committee Meeting

Annual Watermaster Board Meeting



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
BOARD MEETING

WITH
Mr. Ken Willis, Chair
Mr. Bob Kuhn, Vice-Chair
11:00 a.m. — December 18, 2008
At The Offices Of
Chino Basin Watermaster
9641 San Bernardino Road
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

AGENDA - ADDITIONS/REORDER

.  CONSENT CALENDAR
Note: All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial and will be acted upon by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no
separate discussion on these items prior to voting unless any members, staff, or the public

requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate
action.

A. MINUTES
1. Minutes of the Watermaster Board Meeting held November 20, 2008 (Page 7)

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS
1. Cash Disbursements for the month of November 2008 (Page 17)
2, Watermaster Visa Check Detail (Page 21)
3. Combining Schedule for the Period July 1, 2008 through October 31, 2008 (Page 23)
4.

Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period October 1, 2008 through October 31,
2008 (Page 25)

5. Budget vs. Actual July 2008 through October 2008 (Page 27)

C. WATER TRANSACTION
1. Consider Approval for Notice of Sale or Transfer — Fontana Water Company
(“Company") has agreed to purchase from Cucamonga Valley Water District water in
storage in the amount of 4,265 acre-feet. Date of Application: October 6, 2008 (Page 29)

2. Consider Approval for Notice of Sale or Transfer — Aqua Capital Management LP
(Aqua) has agreed to purchase from CCG Ontario LLC (CCG) the amount of all of CCG's
water in storage as of June 30, 2008, and a permanent transfer of its share of safe yield of
630.274 acre-feet. Date of Application: November 7, 2008 (Page 43)

ll. BUSINESS ITEMS
A. MOU COOPERATIVE EFFORTS FOR MONITORING PROGRAMS BETWEEN THE INLAND
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY AND THE CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER — BRIGHT LINE
APPROACH
Consider Approval for the Memorandum of Understanding Cooperative Efforts for Monitoring
Programs Between the Inland Empire Utilities Agency and the Chino Basin Watermaster Bright
Line Approach dated December 17, 2008 (Page 57)



Agenda Watermaster Board Meeting ) December 18, 2008

B. PUBLIC INFORMATION COST SHARING AGREEMENT WITH INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES
AGENCY FOR 2009 COMMUNITY OUTREACH CAMPAIGN
Consider Approval for the Advertising Agreement with Inland Empire Utilities Agency for a 12-
Month Public Information Campaign with the Inland Valley Daily Bulletin (Page 63)

C. CONDITION SUBSEQUENT NO. 5
Consider Approval of January 1, 2009 Progress Report on Watermaster’s Recharge Master
Plan Update pursuant to Condition Subsequent 5 (Page 71)

D. AGRICULTURAL POOL REALLOCATION PROCEDURE
Consider to Adopt the Procedures as Described in the Attached Memorandum and Instruct
Counsel to Include a Description of These Procedures in the Filing to be Made in Compliance
with Condition Subsequent Number 8 (Page 87)

lll. REPORTS/UPDATES
A. WATERMASTER GENERAL LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT
1. February 2, 2009 Hearing
2. Condition Subsequent No. 7 Pleading

B. ENGINEERING REPORT
1. Oral Progress Report on Engineering Activities November 2008
2. Progress Report on the AB303 Grant ASR Pilot Project in MZ3

C. CEO/STAFF REPORT
1. Legislative Update
2. Recharge Update
3. California Groundwater Coalition (CGC)

IV. INFORMATION
1. Newspaper Articles (Page 191)

V. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
VI. OTHER BUSINESS

VIl. EUTURE MEETINGS
December 11, 2008 10:00 a.m.  Joint Appropriative & Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting
December 16, 2008 9:00 am.  Agricultural Pool Meeting @ IEUA
December 18, 2008 9:00 a.m. Advisory Committee Meeting
December 18, 2008 11:00 am.  Watermaster Board Meeting

January 8, 2009 9:30 a.m. Annual Non-Agricultural Pool Elections

January 8, 2009 9:45a.m.  Annual Appropriative Pool Elections

January 8, 2009 10:00 a.m.  Annual Joint Appropriative & Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting
January 20, 2009 9:00 a.m.  Annual Agricultural Pool Meeting @ IEUA

January 22, 2009 8:00 a.m.  IEUA Dry Year Yield Meeting @ CBWM

January 22, 2009 9:00 a.m.  Annual Advisory Committee Meeting

January 22, 2009 11:00 a.m.  Annual Watermaster Board Meeting

Meeting Adjourn



000

—

-

]
!._ |
Cad

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. MINUTES

1. Advisory Committee Meeting — November
20,2008




Draft Minutes
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

_ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING
November 20, 2008

The Advisory Committee meeting was held at the offices of the Chino Basin Watermaster, 9641 San
Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga CA, on November 20, 2008 at 9:00 a.m.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT

Appropriative Pool
Robert DelLoach, Chair
Mark Kinsey

Ken Jeske

Robert Tock

Ron Craig

Anthony La

Dave Crosley
Charles Moorrees
Raul Garibay
Non-Agriculiural Pool
Kevin Sage
Agriculftural Pool

Jeff Pierson

Jennifer Novak

Pete Hall

Rob Vanden Heuvel

Watermaster Board Members Present
Charles Field

Ken Willis

Terry Catlin

Watermaster Staff Present
Ken Manning

Sheri Rojo

Ben Pak

Danielle Maurizio

Sherri Lynne Molino

Watermaster Consultants Present
Michael Fife

Scott Slater

Mark Wildermuth

Others Present
Marty Zvirbulis
Sandra Rose
Steve Nix

John Mura
Craig Parker
Martha Davis
David DelJesus
Steven Lee

Cucamonga Valley Water District
Monte Vista Water District

City of Ontario

Jurupa Community Services District
City of Chino Hills

City of Upland

City of Chino

San Antonio Water Company

City of Pomona

Vulcan Materials Company (Calmat Division)

Crops

Department of Justice/CIM
State of California/CIM
Milk Producers Counsel

Western Municipal Water District
City of Upland
Inland Empire Utilities Agency

CEO

CFO/Asst. General Manager
Senior Project Engineer
Senior Engineer

Recording Secretary

Brownstein, Hyatt, Farber & Schreck
Brownstein, Hyatt, Farber & Schreck
Wildermuth Environmental Inc.

Cucamonga Valley Water District
Monte Vista Water District

City of Chino Hills

City of Chino Hills

Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Three Valleys Municipal Water District
Reid & Hellyer

Pt



Minutes Advisory Committee Meeting i November 20, 2008

Michael Camacho Visitor
Eunice Ulloa Chino Basin Water Conservation District

Chair DelLoach called the Advisory Committee meeting to order at 9:06 a.m.

AGENDA - ADDITIONS/REORDER

There were no additions or reorders made to the agenda. Mr. Manning noted the staff report for the
TMDL Study has been revised and is available on the back table. Mr. Manning noted the December 18,
2008 IEUA DYY meeting which is listed in the Future Meeting section of the agenda has been changed to
December 12, 2008 at 9:00 and will be held at the IEUA offices.

. CONSENT CALENDAR
A. MINUTES
1. Minutes of the Advisory Committee Meeting held October 23, 2008

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS
1. Cash Disbursements for the month of October 2008
2. Watermaster Visa Check Detail
3. Combining Schedule for the Period July 1, 2008 through September 30, 2008
4, Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period September 1, 2008 through
September, 2008
5. Budget vs. Actual July 2008 through September 2008

C. INTERVENTIONS

1. Consider Approval for the Red Hill Country Club Intervention into the Overlying Non-
Agricultural Pool

The Red Hill Country Club Intervention was not approved after a lengthy discussion.

2. Consider Approval for the Aqua Capital Management Intervention into the Overlying Non-
Agricultural Pool

Motion by Kinsey, second by La, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve Consent Calendar Items A, B, and C2, as presented

Il. BUSINESS ITEMS
A. 2008/2009 ASSESSMENT PACKAGE
Mr. Manning stated the Assessment Package is in the meeting packet and a workshop was
held on October 30, 2008 regarding this item. The Assessment Package reflects all the
production from last year and production was down and therefore the cost per acre-foot has
increased over the prior year. Mr. Manning stated a presentation was given to the pools by Ms.
Rojo. A brief discussion regarding the assessment package ensued.

Motion by Crosley, second by Garibay, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve the 2008/2009 Assessment Package, as presented

B. CONTRACT WITH BLACK & VEATCH
Mr. Manning stated the proposed contract with Black & Veatch is to perform services on the
Recharge Master planning process. This process was discussed at the recent Strategic
Planning Conference as well as many other meetings. The work that needs to be performed for
this plan is going to be broken up into pieces. Mr. Manning noted there are no changes or
impact to the current budget with regard. The company who actually does the work..

Motion by La, second by Jeske, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve the contract with Black & Veatch, as presented
C. BUDGET TRANSFERS



Minutes Advisory Committee Meeting ) November 20, 2008

1. Budget Transfer from OBMP & Water Quality Committee Expense to Recharge Master Plan
and Watermaster Legal Counsel for $413,750.00
Mr. Manning noted staff is seeking approval for two budget transfers this month. When the
original budget was developed and approved in June, the Appropriative Pool requested and
the Watermaster Board agreed to adopt a budget account related to legal expenses that
was not sufficient based upon the information that was provided at that time. It was asked
that the budget be lowered in the category of legal fees and then bring the budget back
when the assessment package was being approved with amore accurate amount for
Watermaster legal fees. This actual budget transfer will move money from the OBMP
category to the legal category meaning there will not be an increase to assessments
associated with this transaction.

Motion by Jeske, second by Crosley, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve the budget transfer from OBMP & Water Quality Commiittee
Expense to the Recharge Master Plan and Watermaster legal counsel, as
presented

2. Funding of the Farming Portion of the Middle Santa Ana Watershed TMDL Study — Budget

Transfer Request for $21,000

Mr. Manning stated this is an Agricultural Pool request for the farming portion of the TMDL
Study and administrative fees associated with this study. This item was brought forward
from the Agricultural Pool meeting last month and at that meeting it was decided to seek
payment for this item through the Watermaster process as a Special Project. This will
require Watermaster staff to move monies around to cover the $21,000 since this was not a
budgeted cost. It was noted that Mr. Jeske requested a written report be submitted to the
Appropriative Pool on the actual TMDL study at the November Appropriative Pool meeting.
Mr. Jeske inquired as to how this bill was paid last year. Mr. Manning stated these costs
were paid for by the Agricultural Pool with their money. A discussion regarding this payment
coming from the Appropriative Pool and this type of special project ensued. Mr. Lee offered
comment regarding this item and noted he thoroughly reviewed the Peace Agreement and
the Rules and Regulations regarding what a special project is and feels this item qualifies
as a special project that should be paid by the appropriators. A discussion regarding the
Agricultural Pool funds ensued. Mr. Manning stated Watermaster staff would put together a
report on the requests made.

#1 Motion by Jeske, second by Kinsey, and by majority vote — Pierson opposed and Novak
abstained
Moved to continue the item without prejudice and to have legal and staff review
the TMDL requirements including a background analysis of the study, to review
the regional program benefit to Watermaster, and to review if other studies or
programs that relate to this topic are eligible for other parities to bring forward
for payment through the Watermaster process, as presented

#2 Motion by Jeske, second by Pierson, and by unanimous vote
Moved to have a complete report brought back on the history of the funds
currently held by the Agricultural Pool and an investigation as to what is the
scope of a special project, as presented

D. DELINQUENT ASSESSMENT POLICY
Mr. Manning stated when the item regarding delinquent payments/fees was brought through the
Watermaster process last month it was noted Watermaster did not have a formal approved
delinquent assessment policy to refer to when this type of situation came up. This month staff is
bringing a draft delinquent assessment policy through the process to offer staff clear direction in
handling delinquent assessments. It was noted not only does this draft policy request at least a
10% interest per year but has a 2% late penalty as well. This new policy will be enforced as a



Minutes Advisory Committee Meeting November 20, 2008

going forward policy. It was noted the Appropriative Pool lowered the CEQ’s waiver amount
from $1,000 to $200. A discussion ensued with regard to this matter.

Motion by Kinsey, second by Pierson, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve the Delinquent Assessment Policy and to allow Watermaster staff
to waive up to $200, any un-waived assessment amounts or interest unpaid from one

year will be invoiced to the party on the following year’s assessment invoice, as
presented.

E. CONDITION SUBSEQUENT NO. 7
Mr. Manning stated this item has been approved by the Pools and a full presentation was given

at the Pool meetings. Mr. Wildermuth noted his presentation it will be given at the Watermaster
Board meeting.

Motion by Scott-Coe, second by Crosley, and by unanimous vote — Non-Ag concurred
Moved to approve the corrected initial schedule to account for un-replenished pre-
Peace Il desalter production from the re-operation water (other than the amount
allocated to WMWD) because (a) engaging in physical replenishment will delay the
achievement of hydraulic control; and (b) there will be greater yield benefits. To
provide the court tables illustrating historical storm water recharge estimates for the
period 2000/01 through 2006/07 and a description of the method used by
Watermaster to compute new storm water estimates that was adopted by the
Watermaster in 2003 and the schedule for the first correction to the new storm water
recharge estimate; new prediction and correction will be computed in the summer of
2009, as presented

F. ITEM REFERRED BACK FROM WATERMASTER BOARD FOR WAIVER OF INTEREST

CHARGES

Mr. Manning stated this item was referred back to this committee from the Watermaster Board.
The vote at the October Advisory Committee was unanimous to allow a complete waiver for the
two submitted parties; however, when the item was presented to the Board, they instructed staff
to take this item back to the Advisory Committee to reconsider the approval to waive the interest
fees. A discussion regarding the discussions that took place at the Watermaster Board meeting
regarding this item ensued. Mr. Manning noted Chairman Willis did assign two members of the
Board to examine this mater and their recommendation was to not do anything because the
terms written in the Judgment were sufficient for start to use to assess the interest charges. A
discussion regarding the waiver ensued.

Motion by Jeske, second by Pierson, and by unanimous vote — Non-Agricultural Pool abstained
Moved to deny the waiver and to apply the interest up to the date the payment was
received with no additional interest charges incurring, as presented

lll. REPORTS/UPDATES
A. WATERMASTER GENERAL LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT
1. November 13, 2008 Hearing
Counsel Fife stated a new judge has been appointed to Chino Basin Watermaster and last
week was the first hearing with Judge Wade. There were two very brief hearings in the past
with Judge Wade but this was the first hearing of any length. There were two main topics at
this hearing; 1) approval of Conditions Subsequents 1 through 6, and 2) the receipt and
filing of the Annual Report and the Status Reports. Judge Wade did note during the hearing
that the status reports that Watermaster has been filing are not helpful and he does not
want them written and/or filed with the court any longer. In place of those the judge wants
status reports and updates to be given to him verbally. The next hearing is scheduled for
February 2™ & 3" where the judge wants to be educated about “all things Chino Basin.”
Counsel Fife stated the judge wants to hear about the OBMP and how implementation is
proceeding, recharge activity and recharge numbers. Mr. Manning noted staff and counsel




Minutes Advisory Committee Meeting November 20, 2008

will provide an outline in advance of the hearing so that the parties have an idea of what will
be discussed at the hearing. Counsel Fife noted the motion regarding the dismissal of the
Special Referee was not granted at this time; however, Judge Wade did comment to the
Special Referee who was present via a conference call that specific written orders by the
judge to her would be the only way she was to perform any tasks. This would be on an as
needed basis while Judge Wade gets himself familiar with the ins and outs of Chino Basin
Watermaster processes, policies, and endeavors. Counsel Fife stated Judge Wade does
want to discuss governance at the next hearing.

February 2 & 3, 2009 Hearing
Counsel Fife noted this item was discussed under the November 13, 2008 Hearing item.

B. ENGINEERING REPORT

1.

Oral Progress Report on Engineering Activities, September — Qctober 2008
No comment was made regarding this item.

C. CEO/STAFF REPORT

1.

Legislative Update
Mr. Manning stated a detailed report from IEUA is in the meeting packet that outlines
current legislative issues.

Recharge Update
Mr. Manning noted the most current recharge update spreadsheet is available on the back
table for review.

Replenishment Obligation
Mr. Manning stated Watermaster does have a replenishment obligation of about 20,000

acre-feet this year. Watermaster does not have a source for that water at this point in time
identified. Staff will be making the call to buy water out of storage from producers; similar to
what was done last year. The water will be purchased at the MWD replenishment rate.

MOU on Accounting Procedures for the Dry vear yield Program

Mr. Manning stated this item was put on the agenda in case there were any questions
because this item was on a recent agenda as an action item. Metropolitan Water District
was asking the three municipal water districts, Three Valleys Municipal Water District,
Western Municipal Water District, Inland Empire Utilities Agency, and Chino Basin
Watermaster to sign an agreement on accounting procedures. Watermaster's position was
that it would not sign the MOU because it was merging three documents into one and
Watermaster was not signatory on all three documents; signing the MOU on that basis
would not be appropriate. The suggestion to MWD was to just submit something on
accounting procedures for the DYY Program only that could be reviewed.

MWD Groundwater Study
Mr. Manning stated the MWD Groundwater Study is still going on through workshops and

meetings with consultants and MWD staff so that they can get a better understanding of
what recommendations they are going to make to the State Water Recourse Board in June
2009. Four sessions have already taken place and they are adding a fifth session to further
their education and Continue dialog with the parties.

D. [INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

1.

MWD Water Supply Allocation Plan Update
Ms. Davis stated there are some new handouts available on the back table regarding the

MWD Water Supply Allocation Plan. Ms. Davis noted there has been a lot of discussion
between the agencies about what would make sense as a timeframe for MWD to
implement its Water Supply Allocation Plan. Many agencies are pushing for an early start



Minutes Advisory Committee Meeting

VI.

VIl

8.

November 20, 2008

date and as early as January. MWD made the decision to make it a goal to begin in April of

2009 leaving parties’ time to plan for implementation.

Dry Year Yield/Dry Year Expansion Status Report

Ms. Davis stated the DYY meeting was just held prior to this meeting and a copy of a
presentation that was given by Black & Veatch is available on the back table. The next DYY
meeting will be held at the IEUA offices instead of Watermaster on December 12, 2008 at

9:00 a.m.

Phase Il Recharge Capital Improvements Status Report

Mr. Craig offered comment on the SCADA system and the recharge project.

Quarterly Planning & Water Resources Report
No comment was made regarding this item.

Recycled Water Newsletter
No comment was made regarding this item.

Monthly Water Conservation Programs Report
No comment was made regarding this item.

Monthly Imported Water Deliveries Report
No comment was made regarding this item.

State and Federal Legislative Report
No comment was made regarding this item.

Community Outreach/Public Relations Report

No comment was made regarding this item.

OTHER METROPOLITAN MEMBER AGENCY REPORTS

X

INFORMATION
1. Newspaper Articles
No comment was made regarding this item.

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

No comment was made regarding this item.

OTHER BUSINESS

No comment was made regarding this item.

FUTURE MEETINGS

November 18, 2008 9:00a.m.  Agricultural Pool Meeting @ IEUA

November 18, 2008 1:30 p.m.  Joint Appropriative & Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting

November 20, 2008 8:00a.m.  IEUA Dry Year Yield Meeting @ CBWM
November 20, 2008 9:00 a.m.  Advisory Committee Meeting
November 20, 2008 11:00 a.m. Watermaster Board Meeting

November 20, 2008 1:30 p.m.  Roundtable Discussion

December 11, 2008 10:00 a.m.  Joint Appropriative & Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting

December 16, 2008 9:00 am.  Agricultural Pool Meeting @ IEUA
December 12, 2008 9:00 a.m. IEUA Dry Year Yield Meeting @ IEUA
December 18, 2008 9:00 am.  Advisory Committee Meeting



Minutes Advisory Committee Meeting ’ November 20, 2008

December 18, 2008 11:00 a.m.  Watermaster Board Meeting

The Advisory Committee meeting was dismissed by Chair DeLoach at 10:15 a.m,

Secretary:

Minutes Approved:




THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. MINUTES

1. Watermaster Board Meeting — November 20,
2008

'.'_' & 1 o ¥ P 1 - i
& ‘I # 2 ﬁ;: — L__
.,L = rj 5 {!f! " ]




Draft Minutes

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
WATERMASTER BOARD MEETING

The Watermaster Board Meeting was held at the offices of the Chino Basin Watermaster, 9641 San

November 20, 2008

Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, CA, on November 20, 2008 at 11:00 a.m.

WATERMASTER BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT

Ken Willis, Chair

Bob Kuhn

Charles Field

Jim Curatalo

Jim Bowman

Terry Catlin

Bob Bowcock

Jeff Pierson

Geoffrey Vanden Heuvel

Watermaster Staff Present
Ken Manning

Sheri Rojo

Ben Pak

Danielle Maurizio

Sherri Lynne Molino

Watermaster Consultants Present
Scott Slater

Michael Fife

Mark Wildermuth

Others Present
Jennifer Novak
Gene Koopman
Dave Crosley
John Rossi
Mark Kinsey
Sandra Rose
Raul Garibay
Robert Tock
Hank Stoy
Michael Camacho
Marty Zvirbulis
Ken Jeske
David DeJesus
Ron Craig
Eunice Ulloa

City of Upland

Three Valleys Municipal Water District
Western Municipal Water District
Cucamonga Valley Water District

City of Ontario

Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Vulcan Materials Company
Agricultural Pool

Agricultural Pool

CEO

CFO/Asst. General Manager
Senior Project Engineer
Senior Engineer

Recording Secretary

Brownstein, Hyatt, Farber & Schreck
Brownstein, Hyatt, Farber & Schreck
Wildermuth Environmental, Inc.

Department of Justice/CIM

Milk Producers Counsel

City of Chino

Western Municipal Water District
Monte Vista Water District

Monte Vista Water District

City of Pomona

Jurupa Community Services District
Visitor

Visitor

Cucamaonga Valley Water District
City of Ontario

Three Valleys Municipal Water District
RBF Consulting/Chino Hills

Chino Basin Water Conservation District

The Watermaster Board Meeting was called to order by acting Chair Willis at 11:00 a.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE




Minutes Watermaster Board Meeting ) November 20, 2008

AGENDA - ADDITIONS/REORDER
Mr. Manning stated the Pools and Advisory Committee requested that the Intervention from the Red Hill

Country Club, item C1 be held over until a more parallel process is submitted with their planning of the
installation of their well.

I. CONSENT CALENDAR
A. MINUTES
1. Minutes of the Watermaster Board Meeting held October 23, 2008

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS
1. Cash Disbursements for the month of October 2008
2. Watermaster Visa Check Detail
3. Combining Schedule for the Period July 1, 2008 through September 30, 2008
4. Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period September 1, 2008 through
September, 2008
5. Budget vs. Actual July 2008 through September 2008

C. INTERVENTIONS

1. Consider Approval for the Red Hill Country Club Intervention into the Overlying Non-
Agricultural Pool

2. Consider Approval for the Aqua Capital Management Intervention into the Overlying Non-
Agricultural Pool

Motion by Bowcock, second by Kuhn, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve Consent Calendar Items A, B, C2, as presented

. BUSINESS ITEMS
A. 2008/2009 ASSESSMENT PACKAGE

Mr. Manning stated the Assessment Package is in the meeting packet and a workshop was
held on October 30, 2008 regarding this item. The Assessment Package reflects all the
production from last year and production was down and therefore the cost per acre-foot has
increased. Mr. Manning noted this item passed unanimously by the Pools and Advisory
Committee. Ms. Rojo gave the Assessment Package presentation. A discussion regarding
storage losses and O&M costs ensued. Ms. Rojo stated the recalculation of the over allocation
of the of the Agricultural Pool rights is in a new format and has been calculated based on
quantity of water that was potentially available to reallocate per Peace Il. The 10% of Non-
Agricultural transfer of water is done on a predetermined amount that was included in Peace II.
This Assessment Package includes no inflow from the Santa Ana River (SAR) as a credit to
offset the desalter production. The desalter production is offset by the remaining 400,000 acre-
feet that was transferred into the account last year. A discussion regarding the Assessment
Package numbers and Condition Subsequent No. 7 ensued.

Motion by Bowman, second by Kuhn, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve the 2008/2009 Assessment Package, as presented

B. CONTRACT WITH BLACK & VEATCH
Mr. Manning stated the proposed contract with Black & Veatch is to perform services on the
Recharge Master planning process. This process was discussed at the recent Strategic
Planning Conference as at well as many other meetings. Mr. Manning noted this item passed
unanimously by the Pools and Advisory Committee. The work that needs to be performed for
this plan is going to be broken up into pieces. This is different than the original plan of having
Wildermuth Environmental doing all the work. Staff has looked at the process with the help of
Wildermuth Environmental and it has been decided that Black & Veatch can perform some of



Minutes Watermaster Board Meeting ) November 20, 2008

the tasks at a lower cost. This break up of task will also allow the Recharge Master Plan to be
completed on time. This cost is already in the budget; staff will move funds from one company
to another while keeping costs in the same category.

Motion by Catfin, second by Curatalo, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve the contract with Black & Veatch, as presented

BUDGET TRANSFERS

1. Budget Transfer from OBMP & Water Quality Commitiee Expense to Recharge Master Plan
and Watermaster Legal Counsel for $413,750
Mr. Manning noted staff is seeking approval for two budget transfers this month. When the
original budget was developed and approved in June, the Appropriative Pool requested and
the Watermaster Board agreed to adopt a budget that was not sufficient based upon the
information that was provided at that time. It was asked that the budget be lowered in the
category of legal fees and then bring the budget back when the assessment package was
being approved with a shored up legal fee number. Mr. Manning noted this item passed
unanimously by the Pools and Advisory Committee. This actual budget transfer will move
money from the OBMP category to the legal category meaning there will not be an increase
to assessments associated with this transaction. Mr. Vanden Heuvel noted for the record
that there was thoroughly discussed and examined these legal expenses which included a
workshop held earlier this year.

Motion by Vanden Heuvel, second by Willis, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve the budget transfer from OBMP & Water Quality Committee
Expenses to Recharge Master Plan and Watermaster Legal Counsel for
$413,750, as presented

2. Funding of the Farming Portion of the Middle Santa Ana Watershed TMDL Study — Budget

Transfer Request for $21,000

Mr. Manning stated this is an Agricultural Pool request for the farming portion of the TMDL
Study and administrative fees associated with this study. This item was brought forward at
the Agricultural Pool Meeting last month and at that meeting it was decided to seek
payment for this item through the Watermaster process as a Special Project. This will
require Watermaster staff to move monies around to cover the $21,000 since this was not a
budgeted cost. Mr. Manning noted there was a lot of discussion at the Pool meetings and at
the Advisory Committee meetings. Mr. Manning stated at the Appropriative and Non-
Agricultural pool meeting, they moved to deny the request to fund the farming portion of the
Middle Santa Ana Water shed TMDL Study and requested staff to provide an explanatory
description of what "Special Projects” are, and to bring back a written report on this item at a
future meeting. Additionally Mr. Manning stated the Advisory Committee moved to have a
complete report brought back on the history of the funds currently held by the Agricultural
Pool and an investigation as to what is the scope of a special project. Counsel Slater stated
the Advisory Committee did not take a position on this item and that they have referred it to
counsel and staff to develop a position; it is coming to this board without a recommendation
from the Advisory Committee at this time. A lengthy discussion regarding this matter
ensued.

No action was taken on this item.

DELINQUENT ASSESSMENT POLICY

Mr. Manning stated when the item regarding delinquent payments/fees was brought through the
Watermaster process last month it was noted Watermaster did not have a formal approved
delinquent assessment policy to refer to when this type of situation came up. This month staff is
bringing a draft delinquent assessment policy through the process to offer staff clear direction in
heading delinquent assessment. It was noted not only does this draft policy request at least
10% interest per year but also a 2% late penalty as well. This new policy will be enforced as a



12

Minutes Watermaster Board Meeting November 20, 2008

going forward policy. Mr. Manning noted at the October Watermaster Board meeting a
committee of two board members, Geoff Vanden Heuvel and Bob Kuhn, were appointed to
review the draft policy and they will give their recommendation to the Board members today.
Mr. Kuhn stated he met with Mr. Vanden Heuvel after the last board meeting and their
recommendation is that there is a mechanism already in place as stated in the Judgment and it
is sufficient to justify staffs past practice of assessing interest on late payments. Mr. Manning
noted this item passed unanimously by the Pools; however, at the Appropriative and Non-
Agricultural Pool meeting they felt the waiver authority given to CEO should change from $1000
to $200. The Advisory Committee agreed with the $200 amount and approved the policy with
that slight change.

Motion by Vanden Heuvel, second by Pierson, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve the Delinquent Assessment Policy and to allow Watermaster staff
to waive up to $200, as presented

CONDITION SUBSEQUENT NO. 7

Mr. Manning stated staff is asking for the approval of Condition Subsequent No. 7 which is
outlined in the meeting package. Mr. Manning noted the recommendations for Condition
Subsequent No. 7 are on page 149. Mr. Manning stated there was a workshop held on this item
recently which allowed for questions and answers. Mr. Wildermuth read the court order
regarding Condition Subsequent No. 7 and gave a presentation which included a review of the
Initial Corrected Schedule that was in the Peace || Agreement. Mr. Wildermuth reviewed the
staff recommendation for reconciliation of new yield from storm water recharge. A discussion
regarding Mr. Wildermuth's presentation ensued. Mr. Manning stated staff is seeking approval
of recommendations presented on this item. Mr. Vanden Heuvel stated for the record the
compliance with Condition Subsequent No.7 was a real test for the Watermaster, Watermaster
made commitments in the past to do things that could potentially cost money. The decision at
the start did not cost any money however, there was a potential that it would depending on what
happened. Complying with Condition Subsequent No. 7 is going to cost money: these
milestones need to be documented and brought to light.

Motion by Vanden Heuvel, second by Bowman, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve the corrected initial schedule to account for un-replenished pre-
Peace Il desalter production from the re-operation water (other than the amount
allocated to WMWD) because (a) engaging in physical replenishment will delay the
achievement of hydraulic control; and (b) there will be greater yield benefits. To
provide the court tables illustrating historical storm water recharge estimates for the
period 2000/01 through 2006/07 and a description of the method used by
Watermaster to compute new storm water estimates that was adopted by the
Watermaster in 2003 and the schedule for the first correction to the new storm water
recharge estimate; new prediction and correction will be computed in the summer of
2009, as presented

WAIVER OF INTEREST CHARGES

Mr. Manning stated this item was brought to this committee last month and it was asked that this
item be sent back to the Advisory Committee for further consideration on the appropriateness of
waiving the fees. It went back to the Advisory Committee and they moved that a waiver is not
appropriate. The Advisory Committee did state that the amount of interest accruing would be
fixed to when the payment came in and not accruing during the entire Watermaster process.
The amount on the agenda item is the higher amount and will be adjusted when the invoices are
resubmitted to the parties.

Motion by Vanden Heuvel, second by Bowman, and by majority vote — Non-Agricuftural Pool
abstained
Moved to approve not allowing the waiver of interest charges for Arrowhead
Mountain Spring Water and Monte Vista Water District, as presented



Minutes Watermaster Board Meeting ) November 20, 2008

REPORTS/UPDATES
A. WATERMASTER GENERAL LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT

1.

November 13, 2008 Hearing
Counsel Slater stated the November 13; hearing did take place before Jude Wade for the

first time with a collective group of stakeholders. Conditions Subsequents No. 1 through 6
were approved without objection by any party, Watermaster Status Reports and Updates
were approved without objection by any party. Counsel Slater stated with regard to the
status of the Special Referee, which was a contested issue, the court elected to deny
Cucamonga Valley Water District's motion; however, went on to establish new rules on how
the court would plan to conduct future proceedings and how the court intended to engage
the Special Referee in the future. The court noted the Judge was in position of transition
learning about the files and he would value the input of the referee during this transition
period. Jude Wade did make it clear that further assignments to the referee would be made
expressly by the court in writing including the scope and the task of the referee and the
billing arrangement. Judge Wade indicated that written status reports are not helpful and
that instead, he would prefer verbal presentations. Judge Wade has scheduled a two day
hearing on February 2 and 3, 2009.

February 2 & 3, 2009 Hearing
Counsel Slater stated this will be a live hearing and it is going to be an opportunity for

Watermaster and the parties to present themselves and demonstrate our commitment and
stewardship in terms of managing the basin. At this hearing the court is expecting live
testimony and the court did identify several issues for discussion; 1) the court wants to be
briefed on the physical solution, 2) a summary of the Recharge Master Plan with regard to
water in the ground over the long term, 3) overall OBMP which to be distinguished from the
physical solution on the who, what, why, and where, and 4) the issue of governance due to
a criticism in some of the paperwork as to how Watermaster addressed this issue. An
outline will need to be formulated prior to proceeding in front of the court; Watermaster will
prepare an outline and present that outline to the parties as early as possible to solicit
comment and feedback. Counsel Slater stated we will also want to encourage the parties to
cooperate in this process and to conduct an orderly hearing for the judge. Counsel Slater
stated the only other important information that was released was a research clerk was
assigned to the Watermaster case. A brief discussion ensued with regard to the new judge
and the early release of the pre-hearing outline.

B. ENGINEERING REPORT

1.

Oral Progress Report on Engineering Activities, September — October 2008

Wildermuth has been working with the Conservation District and their consultants
regarding the master plan. The Water Supply, Demand & Projection calculations have
been completed. IEUA has provided information and has certified their production plan.
The concept on the Recharge Master Plan was to figure out what the cost of replenishment
would be based on initial pumping estimates and come back to the Appropriators and
inquire of they really want to pump that much water. A portion of the work has begun on the
impacts of land use and drainage on safe yield. Mr. Wildermuth stated Condition
Subsequent No. 7 has been a main focus of the efforts of his firm for several months now.
Wildermuth staff is working with the staffs at the City of Chino Hills and the State in trying to
put together the contract for the grant under AB303 to help do an ASR Injection Test; that
grant has been increased from $230,000 to $250,000. The INSAR work that is done
periodically where we use remote censoring to sense subsidence has provided us with the
latest round of information that we use for that work. Wildermuth staff and Watermaster
staff is now going back and doing an internal audit on all of our monitoring in preparation for
the budget cycle coming up to see if we can find ways to reduce costs and improve the
monitoring programs. A discussion regarding storage losses ensued. Mr. Vanden Heuvel
requested the possibility that staff not debit water if losses are not actually taking place. A
discussion regarding Mr. Vanden Heuvel's comments ensued. Counsel Slater stated the

13



14

Minutes Watermaster Board Meeting ’ November 20, 2008

wisdom of the Peace || documentation Watermaster assess a 2% loss until the time that
there was additional engineering date and/or Hydraulic Control is achieved at which at that
point the losses would be zeroed out. Staff was informed that there wouldn't be losses at
the time that Hydraulic Control was secured; the Peace Il process did leave open the
prospect that better information could be presented to the board at any time to adjust a 2%
amount.

C. CEO/STAFF REPORT
Mr. Manning stated with the elections over that there was a continued resolution that put
everything on schedule from last year's budget all the way through January 1%. There will
be new authorities set with the new administration. The State has new projections on the
deficit which is now at $24-$25 billion dollars over a two year period. We are watching both
the state and federal issues very closely.

2. Recharge Update
Mr. Manning stated there is a copy of the most recent recharge update on the back table.

3. Replenishment Obligation
Mr. Manning stated Watermaster does have a replenishment obligation of almost 20,000
acre-feet this year. Watermaster does not have a source for that water at this point in time
identified. Staff will be making the call to buy water out of storage from producers; similar to
what was done last year. The water will be purchased at the MWD replenishment rate.

IV. INFORMATION
1. Newspaper Articles
No comment was made regarding this item.

V. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS

Chair Willis stated the roundtable discussion that was scheduled for today has been cancelled.

VL. OTHER BUSINESS
Mr. Catlin introduced Michael Camacho who will represent Cucamonga Valley Water District and sit
on the Inland Empire Utilities Agency board.

Mr. Manning stated on Monday the City of Chino Hills did pass the expansion of the Desalter
Authority Agreement thereby allowing Western Municipal Water District to join the CDA which will
allow Watermaster and parties to move forward with achieving hydraulic control.

The regular open Watermaster Board meeting was convened to hold its confidential session at 12:06
p.m.

VIIl. CONFIDENTIAL SESSION - POSSIBLE ACTION
Pursuant to Article 2.6 of the Watermaster Rules & Regulations, a Confidential Session may be held
during the Watermaster Pool meeting for the purpose of discussion and possible action.

1. Chino Airport
2. Accounts Receivable Settlement
3. Hansen Aggregate Settlement
The closed session was convened at 12:14 p.m.

Counsel Slater stated the report from the Watermaster closed Board session was to have legal counsel
prepare conforming settlement agreement.



Minutes Watermaster Board Meeting ’ November 20, 2008

Viil. EUTURE MEETINGS
November 18, 2008 9:00 am.  Agricultural Pool Meeting @ IEUA
November 18, 2008 1:30 p.m.  Joint Appropriative & Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting
November 20, 2008 8:00 a.m.  |EUA Dry Year Yield Meeting @ CBWM
November 20, 2008 9:00 a.m.  Advisory Committee Meeting
November 20, 2008 11:00 am.  Watermaster Board Meeting
November 20, 2008 1:30 p.m.  Roundtable Discussion
December 11, 2008 10:00 a.m.  Joint Appropriative & Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting
December 16, 2008 9:00 a.m.  Agricultural Pool Meeting @ IEUA
December 18, 2008 8:00 a.m. IEUA Dry Year Yield Meeting @ CBWM
December 18, 2008 9:00 a.m.  Advisory Committee Meeting
December 18, 2008 11:00 a.m.  Watermaster Board Meeting

The Watermaster Board meeting was dismissed by Chair Willis at 12:15 p.m.

Secretary:

Minutes Approved:




16

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

—t

(8]

. CONSENT CALENDAR

. FINANCIAL REPORTS

Cash Disbursements for the month of November
2008

Watermaster Visa Check Detail

Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and
Changes in Working Capital for the Period July 1,
2008 through October 31, 2008

Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs for the
Period October 1, 2008 through October 31, 2008
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual July 2008 through
October 2008




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.chwm.org

KENNETH R. MANNING
Chief Executive Officer

STAFF REPORT

DATE: December 11, 2008
December 16, 2008
December 18, 2008

TO: Committee Members
Watermaster Board Members

SUBJECT: Cash Disbursement Report
SUMMARY
Issue — Record of cash disbursements for the month of November 2008.

Recommendation — Staff recommends the Cash Disbursements for November 2008 be received and
filed as presented.

Fiscal Impact — Funds disbursed were included in the FY 2008-09 Watermaster Budget.

BACKGROUND
A monthly cash disbursement report is provided to keep all members apprised of Watermaster expenditures.

DISCUSSION

Total cash disbursements during the month of November 2008 were $520,637.66. The most significant
expenditures during the month were Wildermuth Environmental Inc. in the amount of $285,885.67, Brownstein,
Hyatt, Farber & Schreck in the amount of $42,287.04, and MWH Laborataries in the amount of $34,726.00.

17



18

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Cash Disbursement Detail Report

November 2008
Type Date Num Name Amount
Nov 08
General Journal 11/1/2008 08/11/03 PAYROLL -7,709.20
General Journal 11/1/2008 08/11/03 PAYROLL -26,915.19
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12767 APPLIED COMPUTER TECHNOLOGIES -3,879.60
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12768 ARROWHEAD MOUNTAIN SPRING WATER -44.83
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12769 AUTOMATED GATE SERVICES, INC. -331.50
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12770 BOWCOCK, ROBERT -125.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12771 BOWMAN, JIM -125.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12772 CALPERS -3,906.43
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12773 DIRECTV -76.98
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12774 EXECUTRAIN OF THE INLAND EMPIRE -250.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12775 FISH WINDOW CLEANING -95.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12776 HSBC BUSINESS SOLUTIONS -313.19
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12777 JAMES JOHNSTON -800.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12778 KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS -589.75
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12779 KUHN, BOB -375.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12780 LAKE ARROWHEAD RESORT -3,611.33
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12781 PARK PLACE COMPUTER SOLUTIONS, I... -3,750.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12782 PAYCHEX -211.20
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12783 PETTY CASH -478.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12784 PREMIERE GLOBAL SERVICES -309.36
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12785 SAFETY CLEAN JANITORIAL SERVICES -590.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12786 STANDARD INSURANCE CO. -575.76
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12787 TLC STAFFING -896.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12788 VANDEN HEUVEL, GEOFFREY -250.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12789 VERIZON -422.52
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12790 VISION SERVICE PLAN -52.16
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12791 W.C. DISCOUNT MOBILE AUTO DETAILI... -75.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12792 WHEELER METER MAINTENANCE -400.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12793 WILLIS, KENNETH -125.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12794 YUKON DISPOSAL SERVICE -142.88
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12795 COMPUTER NETWORK -350.19
Bill Pmt -Check 11/4/2008 12796 STATE COMPENSATION INSURANCE FU... -726.76
General Journal 11/15/2008 08/11/05 PAYROLL -7,559.20
General Journal 11/15/2008 08/11/05 PAYROLL -27,065.19
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12797 ACWA SERVICES CORPORATION -209.95
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12798 BANC OF AMERICA LEASING -3,186.17
Bill Pmt -Check 1117/2008 12799 BANK OF AMERICA -1,718.23
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12800 BROWNSTEIN HYATT FARBER SCHRECK -42 287.04
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12801 COMPUTER NETWORK -2,661.60
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12802 ELLISON, SCHNEIDER & HARRIS, LLP -4,733.22
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12803 FIRST AMERICAN REAL ESTATE SOLUTI... -125.00
Bill Pmt -Check 1117/2008 12804 MWH LABORATORIES -34,726.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12805 PUMP CHECK -5,473.25
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12806 REID & HELLYER -3,815.24
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12807 SAFEGUARD DENTAL & VISION -57.68
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12808 SANTA ANA WATERSHED PROJECT AU... -3,031.50
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12809 STAULA, MARY L -136.61
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12810 THE STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY -156.56
Bill Pmt -Check 11/117/2008 12811 TLC STAFFING -384.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12812 UNION 76 -151.27
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12813 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE -68.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/117/2008 12814 VERIZON WIRELESS -536.38
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12815 WESTERN DENTAL SERVICES, INC. -26.50
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12816 WILDERMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL INC -285,885.67
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12817 CITISTREET -2,595.66
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12818 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYS... -5,903.50
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12819 STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL ... -909.70
Bill Pmt -Check 1111712008 12820 CITISTREET -2,595.66
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12821 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYS... -5,903.50
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12822 STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL ... -2,154.70
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12823 CITISTREET -2,595.66
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12824 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYS... -5,903.50
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12825 STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL ... -549.70
Bill Pmt -Check 11/17/2008 12826 BETTY J. KELLEY, C.5.R. -70.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/19/2008 12827 ALL PURPOSE SAFETY TRAINING SOLU... -492.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/18/2008 12828 CUCAMONGA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT -5,495.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/15/2008 12829 INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY -250.50

Bill Pmt -Check 11/19/2008 12830 MCI -1,169.95



20

Type

Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check

Nov 08

Date

11/19/2008
11/19/2008
11/19/2008
11/19/2008

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Cash Disbursement Detail Report

November 2008
Num Name
12831 PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICES, INC.
12832 RICOH BUSINESS SYSTEMS-Lease
12833 TLC STAFFING

W.C. DISCOUNT MOBILE AUTO DETAILL...

Amount

-103.60
-888.94
-384.00

-75.00

-520,637.66



1:07 PM
12/01/08

Type

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill

TOTAL

Num Date

12799 11/17/2008

4024... 10/31/2008

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

Check Detail

November 2008

Name

BANK OF AMER...

1012 -

6112 -
6212 -
6312 -
- Conferences

6191

Account

Bank of America Gen'l Ckg

Subscriptions/Publications
Meeting Expense
Meeting Expenses

6909.1 - OBMP Meetings

Paid Amount

-414.06
-20.25
-20.26

-1,121.52

-142.14

-1,718.23

Page 1

2

-



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



Jabieue [Blauss) JUB)SISSY/ 19010 [BIOUBLIH 181D ‘oloy 1LBys Ag paledaid

= {L6+'285°2) 6 = = [T 0ps'L (£18°2€5'2)
D - - - - - - -
0 =
0 z
0 o=
0 .
0 -
= (46F'285'2) i (££2'15) 0pG'L (e19'2€6'2)
ZER'EOL'S  BYL'BLOZ = - - ¥20'25 GZL'L 616'695'2
- (0£9°968) 0£8'965
B ZEL'SK 0L9'66% LGG'26L'L £62°L6T'C
= 08e's 256'65 868'80Z 628'€L2
(£62'/62'2) (628'€L2)
ZER'ESL'8  BFI'BLO'E 2 295°L £6E'BE L/9'2 £62'/62'¢ 628'tie
000°0} =
GiE =
682'26E'S  BEC'G/R'L gee's/a'L
par'cLe'l  §56°'LeY 6S6'Ley
£25'99) 9z9'ek Z95°'L £6E'6E 1L9'L
LOZ'L9 29Z'61 Z92'61
096'619 196'v62 195'%52
ZEQ'EOL'S  16Z'iE 6 - = L8 G9Z'E 9E|'EE - :
0 7
0 .
oL¥'BYL -
89E'vLL 15228 6 L8 G9Z'C o9cl'ee
bSO LPR'LS -
6002-8002 SIVLOL Sann4d SANNE  INAWHSINI AN 1ocd 7004 700d ININTDYNYIN NOILYHLSININGY
139and ANYHD NOILYONa3  gzzas HILYMONNOYD  "JIHDV-NON TWHNLINDIHOY JAILYIIdOHddY NISYd HILSYINHT LYM

SNOILYHIdO HI3LVMANNOHD S5133rodd 1vI03dS ANV NOILVHELSININGY 100d  WNWILJO

8002 ‘1€ HIBOL20 HONOYHL 8002 '} ATNM A0IYAd
3HL HOo4d
IVLIdYD ONDHOM NI STONVHI ANV SISNIdXT "TINNIATY 40 I1NAIHIS DNININOD
HIALSYIWHILYM NISVE ONIHD

23

Haays[six saqopQ Buiuguoohgo 0 NED-BRSILWAlE]S [EDURLIA O

sanasay (Woi4)/o) sisjsuel] 18N

awoauj Jay10 18N
juaLuysiuajday JajEMpunoIg)
juawysnipy asueeg
S3SEYIINd JAlEA
SJUBWISSASSY J181EAN [BlUBwWS|ddnS | ZIN
SJUBLISSESSY JBJEAA JUBWYS|UB|day
(asuadx3)/awoou| 1Yl

o3 anljelSIuILPY JaN
sasuadx] |Bj0),
Jajsuel] asuadx3g [em)nauby

S{00d 01 3Wodu| 4ING0 18N &18d0)ly

S|00d O 9WOoIU| URUPY JaN )20y
auodu| ddo/eneasiuIlLPY 1BN

sasuadx3 dNgO/BMIBASIUILDY [Bl0L

51507 198J0.d Aouaby [ennpy

a5 Spun4 uolieanpg

sisog 1aloid JWEO

uolessiuiwpy ubp uiseg wnwndo

uopensiviwpy jood

aajwwon Aosinpy-pleag JajSeuUsEM,

Ualjel}siujWpy JBISELLIBIBAA
salnjipuadx3 j23loid ¥ anleiSIuIWpY

sanuanay |ejoL
Bwoodu| SNo3Ue|BasIN
aLWcoU| JUElS)
anuanay 198lo.g Aoushy |eningy
anuanay Jsalsu|
S]UBWSSASSY SABISIUIUPY
Sanuansy eANENSIUILIPY



(zos'280°L) $

{(885'8£5)
LLZ2'02

{815°/8%)

{£00'2)

0oo'se $

(z96'280°L) $

LBL'SSS'Y
gez'lov'e §

GSH'OVE'E
08e¢'9zt

00§ $

(zoe'280°1) $ (000°0SLL)

$ B8E0Z9

SeC'lo¥'e $ SSP'OPE'E

$ 08¢'9¢l

{e6'eLL'L)

G/B6'Se

(000'0S5L'1)

/6L'GSS'y $§ GSY'06F'Y

(889't¥0'L)

1G2°080'L
G/6'6e

g Zve'vo

$ 005 $

(3sv3xyo3a) 4o ISYIHONI doI¥ad
800Z/LE/0L 10 Se saoueleq

SHOSUD/SIEMEIPLIAN
slajsuelj
sjisodaq

8002/0E/6 10 SE sacuejeg

S|EJ0L

08z'ge!L

$

spund juauisau]
Aouaby |esoT

800¢/0¢E/6
800¢/LE/0L

asue[eg 0Ja7

puewag
Bupjoayg 13409

yseo
Aned

(asvayo3a) asvayoNI aoiyad

sanlasay (LWody)/ol Jejsuel]

SalligeI] WUaung Jayl0 3 sexe] [jolied ‘[oJAed paniooy

*SNOILOVSNYYHL TVIONVNIHA 40 AYVINIANS

a|geAed SIUNODDY SaNIIGElT] Ul aseasou|j(seaioaq)

§]assy Juaung 1aylo % sisodaq ‘sasuadxy piedald
9]gEAID09Y S]UBLUSSSSSY
3|geAI909Y SIUNOJDY S18ssY Ul (9sealoul)/asealsaq

(asvayo3a) asvaxoNI aoidad

aNVYH NO aNY S>NvdE NI HSYD 1v101
ANVH NO ONV SMNVE NI HSVD T1V.LOL

OJUBLUBIDES - pund Juslsaau] Aouaby (oo

[10JARd - JUNOoDY aouejeg 0187

sysodaq puewa-bu¥osy) [BIUSLLLISADD

EDLIBWY JO juegq

ysen Ajed - pueH uo ysen

‘831”0 L1s0d3d

8002 ‘1€ ¥YA90.L00 HONOYHL | Y390120
aold3d FHL 404 SHIVAdY TYIONVNIA 40 1H0d3 S.H3HNSYINL
YILSVINEILYM NISVE ONIHD

‘01 3NA NOILISOd HSVD NI 39NVHD



L1eaygspxisqualdss poday siainseali \8o BO\GO-B0\SIUBLIBIRIS (BIDUBUIND

18)SEWIalBAA UISeg oulyD
Jabeuepy |elaua) JUE}SISSY B 1900 |BIOUBUIS JBIYD
vdD ‘oloy ‘W uaug

‘pajliugns Ajnjjoadsay

‘Aaljod
JUBWI)SBAL| SISISEWLLIBIEAA UISBY OUlyD) Ul pajels BlaluD a8y} Ylim SO9UERIOIDE U] PAINISXa Uaaq SABL SUO|JDESUEL] JUSWHSaAUI ||y

‘SUUOW XIS 1Xau ay) Buunp sain)puadxa joafoid pue aAjelsIUILIPY pauue|d pue USSSaJ0] |[B JosW 0] JUSIDIYNS aJ8 PUBY U0 Spun4

ssv'ove'e $ SINIWISIANI TVLOL

GSH'0PEE ¢ pun4 juswysanu| Aouaby [eoo

a21eqg ajey skeq junowy uonnySU[ [EIOUELL]
Aunyep 1sa19u| J0 Jaquinn [edisuiid

8002 ‘L€ 1290320
SNLV.LS LNIJWLSIANI

"800 ‘0€ Jequieldas papus JaUEND) au) Je 1.l PlalA aAlj0aya BU) SBMm U4/ 2 g ‘elel ajqeueA Aliep e s "4y Jo) a1el sBulutes ayy

= {000°00L°L) $ SNOILOVYSNVYHL LNIJIWLSIANI TVLIOL
{000'00%) $ ATV [emeIPUIAA 800¢/E2/0L
{000'0024) $ ENRA [eEmeIPUNAA 8002/02/0L
PlaIA (L)e1ey Auniew palwsapay Alanoy Aojsodaq uonoesuel | aleq
Auniep 1salalu| 0] sheq anoayg
SNOILOVYSNYYL LNIINLSIANI

8002 ‘L€ ¥390100 HONOYHL | ¥390100
a0Id3d FHL ¥Od SHIVAAY TVIONVYNIA 40 LHOdIN SHIHNSYIHL
HILSYINHILVYM NISYE ONIHO



26

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



12:58 PM
12/01/08
Accrual Basis

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
July through October 2008

Jul - Oct 08 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4010 - Local Agency Subsidies 148,410 -148,410
4110 - Admin Asmnts-Approp Pool 7,708,817 -7,708,817
4120 - Admin Asmnts-Non-Agri Pool 132,237 -132,237
4700 - Non Operating Revenues 37,250 174,368 -137,118 21.36%
Total Income 37,250 8,163,832 -8,126,582 0.46%
Gross Profit 37,250 8,163,832 -8,126,582 0.46%
Expense
6010 - Salary Costs 203,076 484,302 -281,226 41.93%
6020 - Office Building Expense 26,979 102,000 -75,021 26.45%
6030 - Office Supplies & Equip. 8,175 46,500 -38,325 17.58%
6040 - Postage & Printing Costs 22,509 87,380 -64,871 25.76%
6050 - Information Services 50,375 144,000 -93,625 34.98%
6060 - Contract Services 30,256 98,000 -67,745 30.87%
6080 - Insurance 15,706 17,730 -2,024 88.58%
6110 - Dues and Subscriptions 9,331 18,750 -7.419 55.71%
6140 - WM Admin Expenses 410 4,000 -3,590 10.25%
6150 - Field Supplies 864 2,500 -1,636 34.54%
6170 - Travel & Transportation 9,907 39,200 -29,293 25.27%
6190 - Conferences & Seminars 16,241 26,500 -10,259 61.29%
6200 - Advisory Comm - WM Board 4 583 158,181 -14,588 23.89%
6300 - Watermaster Board Expenses 14,680 42,020 -27,341 34.94%
8300 - Appr PI-WM & Pool Admin 7,671 24,008 -16,337 31.95%
8400 - Agri Pool-WM & Pool Admin 5,940 24,820 -18,880 23.93%
B467 - Ag Legal & Technical Services 31,728 98,000 -66,272 32.38%
8470 - Ag Meeting Attend -Special 1,725 12,000 -10,275 14.38%
8500 + Non-Ag PI-WM & Pool Admin 1,562 7,695 -6,133 20.3%
6500 - Education Funds Use Expens 375 -375 0.0%
9500 - Allocated G&A Expenditures -139,261 -448,902 309,641 31.02%
322,455 848,059 -525,604 38.02%
6900 - Optimum Basin Mgmt Plan 385,594 1,775,525 -1,389,931 21.72%
6950 - Mutual Agency Projects 10,000 -10,000 0.0%
9501 - G&A Expenses Allocated-OBMP 36,361 137,959 -101,588 26.36%
421,955 1,923,484 -1,501,529 21.94%
7101 - Production Monitoring 51,962 107,515 -55,553 48.33%
7102 - In-line Meter Installation 9,137 87,931 -78,794 10.38%
7103 - Grdwtr Quality Monitoring 79,337 210,458 -131,121 37.7%
7104 - Gdwtr Level Monitoring 145,876 342,538 -196,662 42.59%
7105 - Sur Wtr Qual Monitoring 255 46,717 -46,462 0.55%
E.

iy



12:58 PM CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

12/01/08 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual =
Accrual Basis July through October 2008
Jul - Oct 08 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
7107 - Ground Level Monitoring 62,626 651,468 -588,842 9.61%
7108 - Hydraulic Control Monitoring 158,781 743,476 -584,695 21.36%
7200 - PE2- Comp Recharge Pgm 261,698 1,115,883 -854,185 23.45%
7300 - PE3&5-Water Supply/Desalte 50,821 148,477 -87,656 34.23%
7400 - PE4- Magmt Plan 95,336 217,371 -122,035 43.86%
7500 - PE6&7-CoopEfforts/SaltMgmt 14,716 216,307 -201,591 6.8%
7600 - PEB&9-StorageMgmt/Conj Use 329,998 76,909 253,089 429.08%
7690 - Recharge Improvement Debt Pymt 511,894 1,110,000 -598,106 46.12%
7700 - Inactive Well Protection Prgm 6,296 -6,296 0.0%
9502 - G&A Expenses Allocated-Projects 102,900 310,943 -208,043 33.08%
1,875,338 5,392,289 ’ -3,516,951 34.78%
Total Expense 2,619,747 8,163,832 -5,544,085 32.08%
Net Ordinary Income -2,582,497 4] -2,582,497 100.0%
Other income/Expense
Other Expense
9999 - To/(From) Reserves -2,582,497
Total Other Expense -2,582,497
Net Other Income 2,582,497
Net Income 0 0 0 0.0%
Page 2 of 2



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

. CONSENT CALENDAR

C. WATER TRANSACTION

1. Consider Approval for Notice of Sale or Transfer —
Fontana Water Company (“Company”) has agreed to purchase
from Cucamonga Valley Water District water in storage in the
amount of 4,265 acre-feet

2. Consider Approval for Notice of Sale or Transfer — Aqua
Capital Management LP (Aqua) has agreed to purchase from
CCG Ontario LLC (CCG) the amount of all of CCG’s water in
storage as of June 30, 2008, and a permanent transfer of its
share of safe yield of 630.274 acre-feet

j.__‘@‘




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

NOTICE

OF

APPLICATION(S)

RECEIVED FOR

WATER TRANSACTIONS — ACTIVITIES

Date of Notice:
November 7, 2008

This notice is to advise interested persons that the attached application(s) will come
before the Watermaster Board on or after 30 days from the date of this notice.

29



NOTICE OF APPLICATION(S) RECEIVED

Date of Application: October 6, 2008 Date of this notice: November 7, 2008
Please take notice that the following Application has been received by Watermaster:
A. Notice of Sale or Transfer — Fontana Water Company (“Company”) has agreed

to purchase from Cucamonga Valley Water District water in storage in the
amount of 4,265 acre-feet.

This Application will first be considered by each of the respective pool committees on
the following dates:

Appropriative Pool: November 18, 2008
Non-Agricultural Pool: November 18, 2008
Agricultural Pool: November 18, 2008

This Application will be scheduled for consideration by the Advisory Committee no
earlier than thirty days from the date of this notice and a minimum of twenty-one
calendar days after the last pool committee reviews it.

After consideration by the Advisory Committee, the Application will be considered by
the Board.

Unless the Application is amended, parties to the Judgment may file Contests to the
Application with Watermaster within seven calendar days of when the last pool
committee considers it. Any Contest must be in writing and state the basis of the
Contest.

Watermaster address:
Chino Basin Watermaster Tel: (909) 484-3888

9641 San Bernardino Road Fax: (909) 484-3890
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

NOTICE
OF
TRANSFER OF WATER

Notification Dated: November 7, 2008

A party to the Judgment has submitted a proposed transfer of water for Watermaster
approval. Unless contrary evidence is presented to Watermaster that overcomes the
rebuttable presumption provided in Section 5.3(b)(iii) of the Peace Agreement,
Watermaster must find that there is “no material physical injury” and approve the
transfer. Watermaster staff is not aware of any evidence to suggest that this transfer
would cause material physical injury and hereby provides this notice to advise
interested persons that this transfer will come before the Watermaster Board on or after
30 days from the date of this notice. The attached staff report will be included in the

meeting package at the time the transfer begins the Watermaster process (comes
before Watermaster).

31



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: (909) 484.3888 Fax: (909) 484-3890 www.cbwm.org

KENNETH R. MANNING
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DATE: September 4, 2008
TO: Watermaster Interested Parties
SUBJECT: Summary and Analysis of Application for Water Transaction

Summary -
There does not appear to be a potential material physical injury to a party or to the basin from the proposed
transaction as presented.

Issue ~

e Notice of Sale or Transfer —~ Fontana Water Company ("Company”) has agreed to purchase
from Cucamonga Valley Water District water in storage in the amount of 4,265 acre-feet.

Recommendation -
1. Continue monitoring as planned in the Optimum Basin Management Program.
2. Use all new or revised information when analyzing the hydrologic balance and report
to Watermaster if a potential for material physical injury is discovered, and
3. Approve the fransaction as presented.

Fiscal Impact -
[ 1 None
[ X] Reduces assessments under the 85/15 rule
[ ] Reduce desalter replenishment costs

Background _

The Court approved the Peace Agreement, the Implementation Plan and the goals and objectives
identified in the OBMP Phase | Report on July 13, 2000, and ordered Watermaster to proceed in a
manner consistent with the Peace Agreement. Under the Peace Agreement, Watermaster approval is
required for applications to store, recapture, recharge or transfer water, as well as for applications for
credits or reimbursements and storage and recovery programs.

Where there is no material physical injury, Watermaster must approve the transaction. Where the request
for Watermaster approval is submitted by a party to the Judgment, there is a rebuttable presumption that
most of the transactions do not result in Material Physical Injury to a party to the Judgment or the Basin
(Storage and Recovery Programs do not have this presumption).

The following application for water transaction is attached with the notice of application.

e Fontana Water Company (“Company”) has agreed to purchase from Cucamonga Valley Water
District water in storage in the amount of 4,265 acre-feet,

33



34

Water Transaction Summary & Analysis 11/07/08

Notice of the water transaction identified above was mailed on November 7, 2008 along with the materials
submitted by the requestors.

DISCUSSION

Water transactions occur each year and are included as production by the respective entity (if produced)
in any relevant analyses conducted by Wildermuth Environmental pursuant to the Peace Agreement and
the Rules & Regulations. There is no indication additional analysis regarding this transaction is
necessary at this time. As part of the OBMP Implementation Plan, continued measurement of water
levels and the installation of extensometers are planned. Based on no real change in the available data,
we cannot conclude that the proposed water transaction will cause material physical injury to a party or to
the Basin.



!

L

OMPANY

A DIVISION OF SAN GABRIEL VALLEY WATER

8440 NUEVO AVENUE o P.O. BOX 987, FONTANA, CALIFORNIA Eaaazw.(aogg..azz- 1

CHIND BASIN WATERMASTER

October 6, 2008

Mr. Kenneth R. Manning, Chief Executive Officer
Chino Basin Watermaster

9641 San Bernardino Road

Rancho Cucamonga, California 91730

Subject: Purchase of Water in Storage
Chino Basin-Fiscal Year 2008/2009

Dear Mr. Manning;:

Pleasc take notice that Fontana Water Company (“Company™) has agreed
to purchase from Cucamonga Valley Water District water in storage in the
amount of 4,265 acre-feet to satisfy a portion of the Company’s anticipated Chino
Basin replenishment obligation for Fiscal Year 2008/2009.

Enclosed are fully executed Chino Basin Watermaster Forms No. 3 and 4,
along with the company’s Recapture Plan for consideration by Watermaster.

Please agendize this proposed transfer at the earliest possible opportunity.

If you should have any question or require additional information
concerning this matter, please call me.

Very truly yours,

MJM:bf
Enclosures

390



30

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



Form 3

APPLICATION FOR
SALE OR TRANSFER OR RIGHT TO PRODUCE WATER FROM STORAGE

TRANSFER FROM LOCAL STORAGE AGREEMENT #

Cucamonga Valley Water District September 25, 2008

Name of Party Date Requested Date Approved

10440 Ashford Street 4,265 Acre-feet Acre-feet
Street Address Amount Requested Amount Approved
Ranche Cucamonga CA 91729

City jtate Zip Code

Telephong:  (909) §B7-2991 Facsimile: (909) 476-8032

HOV=RA Gyl ——

'Rubertt A. DeLoach, Eeneral Manager
Cucamonga Valley Water District

TRANSFER TO:
Fontana Water Company Attach Recapture Form 4

Name of Party
8440 Nuevo Avenue

Street Address
Fontana CA 92334

City State Zip Code
Telephone:  (909) 822-2201 Facsimile: (909) 823-5046

Have any other transfers been approved by Watermaster
between these parties covering the same fiscal year? Yes [ ] No [ X]

WATER QUALITY AND WATER LEVELS

What is the existing water quality and what are the existing water levels in the areas that are likely to be affected?

Recapture by Fontana Water Company accomplished by pumping of 14 wells-static water levels vary from 375’

to 684’. Of the wells routinely pumped, nitrate levels vary from a low of 8 mg/l to a high of 33 mg/l.

MATERIAL PHYSICAL INJURY

Is the Appiicant aware of any Material Physical Injury to a party to the judgment or the Basin that
may be caused by the action covered by the application? Yes [ ] No [X]

If yes, what are the proposed mitigation measures, if any, that might reasonably be imposed to ensure that the
action does not result in Material Physical Injury to a party to the Judgment or the Basin?

N/A

37



38

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ATTACHED Yes [ ]

Michael J.
Fontana

Graw, General Manager
teNCompany

TO BE COMPLETED BY WATERMASTER:

DATE OF APPROVAL FROM NON-AGRICULTURAL POOL:
DATE OF APPROVAL FROM AGRICULTURAL POOL:

No [X]

DATE OF APPROVAL FROM APPROPRIATIVE POOL:

HEARING DATE, IF ANY:

DATE OF ADVISORY COMMITTEE APPROVAL:

DATE OF BOARD APPROVAL:

Agreement #

Form 3 (cont.)



Form 4
APPLICATION OR AMENDMENT TO APPLICATION
TO
RECAPTURE WATER IN STORAGE

APPLICANT

Fontana Water Company September 25, 2008

Name of Party Date Requested Date Approved

8440 Nuevo Avenue 4,265 Acre-feet Acre-feet

Street Address Amount Requested Amount Approved

Fontana CA 92335

City State Zip Code Projected Rate of Projected Duration of
Recapture Recapture

Telephone: (808) 822-2201 Facsimile: (909) 823-5046

IS THIS AN AMENDMENT TO A PREVIOUSLY APPROVED APPLICATION? [ TYES [X]NO

IF YES, ATTACH APPLICATION TO BE AMENDED

IDENTITY OF PERSON THAT STORED THE WATER: Cucamonga Valley Water District

PURPOSE OF RECAPTURE

[ 1] Pump when other sources of supply are curtailed
[X]  Pump to meet current or future demand over and above production right
[ ] Pump as necessary to stabilize future assessment amounts

[ 1 Other, explain

METHOD OF RECAPTURE (if by other than pumping) (e.g. exchange)
N/A

PLACE OF USE OF WATER TO BE RECAPTURED

Within Fontana Water Company's Service Area

LOCATION OF RECAPTURE FACILITIES (IF
DIFFERENT FROM REGULAR PRODUCTION
FACILITIES).

N/A

WATER QUALITY AND WATER LEVELS

What is the existing water quality and what are the existing water levels in the areas that are likely to be
affected?

Recapture by Fontana Water Company accomplished by pumping of 14 wells-static water levels vary from 375’

to 684'. Of the wells routinely pumped, nitrate levels vary from a low of 8 mg/i to a high of 33 mg/l.

a9



Form 4 (cont.)
MATERIAL PHYSICAL INJURY

Is the Applicant aware of any Material Physical Injury to a party to the judgment or the Basin that
may be caused by the action covered by the application? Yes [ ] No [X]

If yes, what are the proposed mitigation measures, if any, that might reasonably be imposed to ensure that the
action does not result in Material Physical Injury to a party to the Judgment or the Basin?

ADDITIONAL INFORMATI Yes [ ] No [X]

Applicant h
TO BE COM TED BY WATERMASTER:

DATE OF APPROVAL FROM NON-AGRICULTURAL POOL:

DATE OF APPROVAL FROM AGRICULTURAL POOL:

DATE OF APPROVAL FROM APPROPRIATIVE POOL:

HEARING DATE, IF ANY:

DATE OF ADVISORY COMMITTEE APPROVAL:

DATE OF BOARD APPROVAL: Agreement #




FONTANA WATER COMPANY
Recapture Plan

The subject water is a transfer of stored groundwater from Cucamonga Valley Water
District to Fontana Water Company (FWC) of 2,500 acre-feet to satisfy a portion of
FWCs replenishment obligation for FY 2005/2006. Recapture of the stored water is
accomplished by the production of any or all of the 14 wells owned and operated by FWC
within Management Zone 3 of the Chino Groundwater Basin. ‘The approximate daily
production capacity of these wells is as follows:

Production

Well Acre-Feet/Day
F23A - 10.6
F21A - 5.7
E7A - 11.0
F7B - 6.8
F22A - 8.2
F24A - 8.4
F31A - 7.3
F2A - 10.6
F30A - 5.1
F44A - 11.0
F44B - 10.6
F44C - 10.6
F17B .7
F17C 7.1
Daily Toral 118.7

The attached map shows the location of these wells within FWC’s service area. Prior
to 1992, water produced from the majority of these wells was pumped within Management
Zone 3 by Fontana Union Water Company with safe yield rights in the Chino
Groundwater Basin. However, as a result of a bankruptcy settlement agreement dated
February 7, 1992 all of Fontana Union’s Chino Groundwater Basin water, including
overlying (agricultural) pool reallocation, is annually transferred to Cucamonga Valley
Water District’s storage account. Pursuant to the same 1992 bankruptcy settlement
agreement, Fontana Water Company acquired Fontana Union’s water production wells and
continues to produce water from Management Zone 3, in the same manner and for the
same purpose as had been done prior to 1992.

41



42

S5.B.CO. 15
Fi7 &
F46
5.B.CO. AVE. Fd5 SUMMIT AVE. Fi4
F15 s
i i
SUMMIT Z| 8 w SIERRA
RANCHO Py E o LAKES 8.B.CO.
8 & w iii
CUCAMONGA z 5 <
B 210 3 WY, HIGHLAND AVE.
§ g g6l ° ul
z 2 | FONTANAS < 2 Fi3 z
VICTORIA WALNUT
CALIF. e AVE.
LANDINGS Fig F2a | ® 26 E %1 %
/ BABELINE [ ] ® |F49 Rp,
rd ® [} —
o/ a 34 F31 F10 g
v, 8 eé‘/.; 3
| = Ay MILLER £
gl 8 Qo F18 @ = B.B/CO.
/ 2. E d5s, 2
| o DC., = [
O _FOOTHILL Fydl @)y, Z Fi BLVD.
® O
o @|F2 5 5.B/CO.
F7 F30 g Fa25 GOVERNMENTS | R
ARROW 2 HWY
Fg © [T~ FONTANA|WTRCO.
SAN BERNARDIND ASSOCIATION OF|GOJERNMENTS AW OFFICES
F22 (-] [
®si; @ F3 rso_ |ras ®
MERRILL Z. €| AVE
S F8
RANDALL AVE.
[
B Fs
S.B.CO. B
SAN BERNARDINO @ AVE.
o
g ®ri7 G
= K
g VALLEY / BLVD.
i 10 FWY. e
T SAN BERNARDINO 1 ————
S.PRR. F23@ AVE.
SLOVER =| rzi@] &
£ 2 S.B{CO.
SANTA ANA 5 g AVE.
E| & o z T 1 @ = >
E| 2 g = = T M | | o T I
8| & g 1 ot T £ I o o a
3| 3 =z £ e 5 = = i 3 b z
_g JURUPA = R = S @ I o &) w < S| AVE. S
= <
E z —~
S | masay 3 4%
] &
F20 g N
CHERRY %,
AN B
AR B S ERNARDINO COUNTY
RIVERSIDE COUNTY
LEGEND
@ -wWELL @ - WELL & BODSTERS
& - BOOSTERS
@ _ VIELLBOOSTERS & RESERVOR FONTANA WATER COMPANY
£ - TREATMENT FACILITY SYSTEM NO. 3610041
. - REBERVDIA - P.R. VALVE
@ - BOOSTERS & AESEAVOIR s
@ - AFTERBAY @ - INTAKES SCALE N MILED
Q Y 1 2
Pen Table-WinFontanoArea(Q1 04/28/04 04:35:50 PM

SFILELS



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

NOTICE
OF
TRANSFER OF WATER

Notification Dated: November 13, 2008

A party to the Judgment has submitted a proposed transfer of water for Watermaster
approval. Unless contrary evidence is presented to Watermaster that overcomes the
rebuttable presumption provided in Section 5.3(b)(iii) of the Peace Agreement,
Watermaster must find that there is “no material physical injury” and approve the
transfer. Watermaster staff is not aware of any evidence to suggest that this transfer
would cause material physical injury and hereby provides this notice to advise
interested persons that this transfer will come before the Watermaster Board on or after
30 days from the date of this notice. The attached staff report will be included in the

meeting package at the time the transfer begins the Watermaster process (comes
before Watermaster).

43



A

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bemardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: (909) 484.3888 Fax: (909) 484-3880 www.chbwim.org

KENNETH R. MANNING
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DATE: November 13, 2008
TO: Watermaster Interested Parties

SUBJECT: Summary and Analysis of Application for Water Transaction

SUMMARY

There does not appear to be a potential material physical injury to a party or to the Basin from the proposed
transaction as presented.

Issue -

Notice of Sale or Transfer — On November 7, 2008, Watermaster received Forms 3 and 5 water
transfer Applications, with CCG Ontaric LLC (CCG) as Transferor and Aqua Capital
Management LP (Aqua) as Transferee in the amount of all of CCG's water in storage as of
June 30, 2008, and a permanent transfer of its share of safe yield of 630.274 acre-feet.
Simultaneous with these applications, Watermaster received a request for Intervention into the
Overlying (Non-Agricultural) Pool from Aqua. This Staff Report provides a summary and
analysis of the proposed transfer.

Recommendation —
1. Continue monitoring as planned in the Optimum Basin Management Program.
2. Use all new or revised information when analyzing the hydrologic balance and report
to Watermaster if a potential for material physical injury is discovered, and
3. Approve the transaction as presented.

Fiscal Impact —
[X] None
[ ] Reduces assessments under the 85/15 rule
[ ] Reduce desalter replenishment costs

BACKGROUND

The Court approved the Peace Agreement, the Implementation Plan and the goals and objectives
identified in the OBMP Phase | Report on July 13, 2000, and ordered Watermaster to proceed in a
manner consistent with the Peace Agreement. Under the Peace Agreement, Watermaster approval is
required for applications to store, recapture, recharge or transfer water, as well as for applications for
credits or reimbursements and storage and recovery programs.

Where there is no material physical injury, Watermaster must approve the transaction. Where the request
for Watermaster approval is submitted by a party to the Judgment, there is a rebuttable presumption that
most of the transactions do not result in Material Physical Injury to a party to the Judgment or the Basin
(Storage and Recovery Programs do not have this presumption).

49



Lo

Water Transaction Summary & Analysis 11/13/08

The following application for water transaction is attached with the notice of application.

= Notice of Sale or Transfer — On November 7, 2008, Watermaster received Forms 3 and 5 water
transfer Applications, with CCG Ontario LLC (CCG) as Transferor and Aqua Capital Management
LP (Aqua) as Transferee in the amount of all of CCG’s water in storage as of June 30, 2008, and
a permanent transfer of its share of safe yield of 630.274 acre-feet. Simultaneous with these
applications, Watermaster received a request for Intervention into the Overlying (Non-Agricultural)
Pool from Aqua. This Staff Report provides a summary and analysis of the proposed transfer.

Notice of the water transaction identified above was mailed on November 13, 2008 along with the
materials submitted by the requestors.

DISCUSSION

Under Exhibit G, paragraph 6, of the Judgment: "Rights herein decreed are appurtenant to that land and
are only assignable with the land for overlying use thereon; provided however, . . . (b) the members of the
Pool shall have the right to Transfer or lease their quantified production rights within the Pool or to
Watermaster in conformance with the procedures described in the Peace Agreement between the Parties
therein, dated June 29, 2000 for the term of the Peace Agreement.” The Peace Agreement and Peace ||
Agreement thus modified the strict appurtenancy requirement to allow Transfers of the water rights under
certain conditions.

CCG intervened into the Judgment in 2000, at which time it acquired 630.274 acre-feet of Overlying (Non-
Agricultural) Pool water rights from Kaiser Venture, Inc. Recently, CCG executed a definitive agreement
to sell real property overlying the Chino Basin, totaling approximately 9.58 acres to Aqua Capital
Management (Aqua). As part of the property sale, CCG wishes to transfer all of its water rights and its
water in storage to Aqua. As a result, on November 7, 2008, Aqua submitted a request for Intervention
into the (Non-Agricultural) Pool for the purpose of accepting the Transfer of CCG's water rights.

Aqua and CCG have submitted Ferm 3 (Application for Sale or Transfer of Right to Produce Water from
Storage) and Form 5 (Application to Transfer Annual Production Right or Safe Yield). Form 4 (Application
or Amendment to Application to Recapture Water in Storage) was not submitted because Aqua does not
plan to produce the stored water at this time. Aqua must submit a Form 4 before any water may be
produced from its storage account. The Applicaticns indicate that the amount of water rights to be
permanently transferred is 630.274 acre-feet. In addition, CCG is transferring to Aqua all of its water in
storage as of June 30, 2008.

Water transactions occur each year and are included as production by the respective entity (if produced)
in any relevant analyses conducted by Wildermuth Environmental pursuant to the Peace Agreement and
the Rules & Regulations. There is no indication additional analysis regarding this transaction is
necessary at this time. As part of the OBMP Implementation Plan, continued measurement of water
levels and the installation of extensometers are planned. Based on no real change in the available data,
we cannot conclude that the proposed water transaction will cause material physical injury to a party or to
the Basin.



Baker Manock

S Jensenesc

ATTORNEYS AT LAW

/—‘—_‘—\' :
Christopher L. Campbzll

Attorney at Law
ccampbeli@bakermanoek.com

November 7, 2008

Fig Garden Financial Center

Kenneth R. Manning, CEO

CHING BASIN WA TERMASTER 5260 North Palm Avenue
9641 San Bernardino Road Fourth Floor
Rancho Cucamonga, Californiz 81730 R T——

Tel: 55%.422,5400

Michasl Fife, Esa.
BROWNSTEIN HYATT FARBER,SCHREK Fax: 559.432.5020
21 East Carrillo Strest . wwwbakermanock.com
Santa Barbara, CA 93101

Re: CCG Ontario Chino Basin Water Rights
Dear Michael and Ken:

As you recall, I represent CCG Ontario, LLC (“CCG”). As an owner of real
property overlying the Chino Groundwater Basin (“Chino Basin™) is party to the Chino Basin
Judgment and currently owns 630.274 AFY of adjudicated safe yield.

CCG has executed a definitive agreement to sell real property overlying the
Basin, totaling approximately 9.58 acres and commonly referred to by San Bernardino County
Assessor’s Parcel Number 229-291-47, to Aqua Capital Management (“ACM?).

In the same definitive sale agreement, CCG has agreed to transfer to ACM all of
its remaining water rights (approximately 630.274 AFY), and all CCG water in storage
(9,057.725 AF as of June 30, 2007, plus any additional CCG stored water for FY 2007-08). That
transfer is, of course, subject to Watermaster approval and Court approval of ACM’s application
10 intervene in the Judgment and become a membsr of the overlying Non-Agricultural Pool. [
understand that Agua Capital Management LP, hes, or will soon, submit & request to intervene in
the Judgment to become a member of the overlying Won-Agriculmual Pool.

My client has executed Form 5 (4ppiication to Transfer Annual Production Right
or Safe Yield) and Form 3 (Application for Sale or Transfer of right to Produce Water from
Storage). The completed forms will be submitted by ACM along with their application to
intervene.

The transfer from CCG to ACM does not involve any additional groundwater
extractions not provided for under the Judgment. As a result, the transfer will not result in any
“material physical injury” to any party.

41



48

November 7, 2008
Kenneth R. Manning, CEQ
Michael Fife, Esq.

Page 2

Due to a variety of reasons, it is extremely important to my client that this transfer
be approved by the Watermaster prior to the end of this calendar year. I would appreciate any
assistance you can give to accomplish that goal.

Thank you for your assistance. Please fesl fres to contact me if you have any
questions or need any information from me or my ciiznis.

Very truly vonrs,
[ ,Z“: / o ’:’-/"/\,/K
7

Christopher L. Campbell
BAKER MANOCK & JENSEN, PC

CLC:tlw

CC: Mr. Michael Del Santo
Timothy Peters, Esq.
Allan Hubsch, Esq.

691704_1



(U

ﬂ 11 A AT AT TSL WA AGEMENT LT
: : i ; Coad Regensy Parksay Driee, Swibe J0G0

CHPATUL WAHOGEMERT LP ek, HE &E114

Novambsr 7, 2008

Mr. Kennsth R, Mianning, CEO

Chinc Basin Watarmasiar

9641 Szn Bernardino Road

Rancho Cucamongs, California 81730

r

@

Reqguest o intervens in Chino Basin Municipal Watsr
Disirict v. City of Chino et al, San Bernardinc Supsrior Court
Cass No.RCV 5101 (Formerly Case No. 184327)

Dear Mr. Manning:

Aqua Capital Management LP (Aqua) hereby submits this request to intervene in the above-
referenced action (the “Judgment”) as a member of the overlying non-agricultural pool. Aqua's request is

based on the following facts:

A. The Judgment allocates water rights based on each party’s land ownership. As an owner
of real property overlying the Chino Groundwater Basin (“Basin”) CCG Ontario, LLC (CCG) is party to the
Judgment and currently owns 630.274 AFY of adjudicated safe yield.

B. CCG has executed a definitive agreement to sell real property overlying the Basin to
Aqua, totaling approximately 9.58 acres and commanly referrad to by San Sarnardino County Assessor's

Parcel Number 228-201-47.

= Ls part of the sale transaction referencad in Seciion 3 above, CCG wishes {o transizr all
of its remaining adjudicated water rights (approximately £30.274 AFY), and ali CCG water in storage
(9,057.725 AF as of June 30, 2007, pius any additional CCG stored water for FY 2007-08) fo Aqua. Form
5 (Application to Transfer Annual Production Right or Safe Yield) and Form 3 (Application for Sale or

Transfer of right to Produce Water from Storage) are attached.

D. Aqua Capital Management LP is requesting fo intervene in the Judgment to become a

member of the overlying Non-Agricultural Pool.

49



= The transfer from CCG to Aqua doss notf involve any additional groundwater extractions
not provided for under the Judgmeant. As a result, the transfer will not result in any “material physical
injury” to any party.

Zzsad on the foregoing, Aqua raspectiully requests that the Watarmastier approve its reguast o
intarvane in the Judoment fo bacome 2 membar of the overlying Non-Agriculiural Zool anc CCC's
request to transfar its remaining adjudicaied rights (830.274 AFY) of ovariving groundwaisr rigns. and al!
of CCG's watar in storage (8,057.725 AF as of Juns 33, 2007, plus any 2ddilional CT3 storad water for

FY 2007-08) to Agua. Aqua Capital Management LP shali sorply with al! provisions of the Judamsnt.

Pizase agendize this requast for the Novembar Pool mestings. If vou have any gussiions

M

regarding the foregoing, please contact me.

Respectiulty submitied,

David Penrice

Chief Executive Officer



Form 3

. APPLICATION FOR '
SALE OR TRANSFER OF RIGHT TO PRODUCE WATER FRON STORAGE

RANSFER FROM LOCAL STORAGE AGREEMENT

CCG Oniario LLC. & Dalswars limitad lizbillty company 11/07/2008
Name of Party Date Reguzsizd Catz Approved
2B47 Szst Cedar Street. Suite 260 ; 2.057.725 7 Aoredfest » hore-fest
Streat Addrass —\r"xoun+ reguesisd Amount .b.::praved
" As of 8/30/2007, plur stored
Ontaric . SA “g17a water Irom FY 2007-08
City Siat= Zip Cods
Telephona: {808} 73-6710 Facsimitzr {903 572-E702
Ll /w

Appiicant

Wamse: Eczwzard S. Nekriez

lis: General Counsel

end Secretary
TRANSFER TO:
Attach Recapture Form 4

Agua Capital Management, LP, a Delaware limited pshp
Name of Party

A44 Regency Parkway Drive, Suife 300

Street Address

Omaha NE 88114

City Siats Zip Code

Telephone: (402) 834-0066 Facsimile: {(402) 934-0066

Have any other transfers been approved by Watermaster
between these parties covering the same fiscal year? Yes|[ ] No[ X ]

WATER QUALITY AND WATER LEVELS

What is ths axisting watsr quality and whal are the existing w=ter izvais in ths arsas thal ars likely {o bs ziected?

Nones

MATERIAL PHYSICAL INJURY

Is the Applicant aware of any potential Material Physical Injury to a party to the Judgment or the Basin that
may be caused by the action covered by the application? Yes [ ] No [ X ]

If yes, what are the proposed mitigation measures, if any, that might reasenably be imposed to ensure that the
action does not result in Material Physical Injury o a party to the Judgment or the Basin?

July 2007
WLA - 025118/000004 - 410032 v1

51



Form 3 {cont.)

ADDITIGKAL)INFORMATION ATTACHED Yss[ ] No[ X ]

(ST N

Appiicant
Name: D il Penrize
]t-‘.‘n. 5 g{/‘)

TO BE COMPLETED BY WATERMASTER:

- DATE OF AZPROVAL FROM NON-AGRICULTURAL POOL:

DATE OF APPROVAL FROM AGRICULTURAL POOL:

DATE OF APPROVAL FROM APPROPRIATIVE POOL:

HEARING DATE, IF ANY:

DATE OF ADVISORY COMMITTEE APPROVAL:

DATE OF BOARD APPROVAL: ) Agrsement £

July 2001
WLA « 026118/000004 - 410032 v1



Form 5

APPLICATION
TO
TRANSFER ANNUAL PRODUCTION RIGHT OR SAFE YIELD

TCG Ontario LLC, & Delaware limited liability company ("Transfzror”), hereby reque
transfer to Agua Capital Managament LP, & Delawars limitad parinarshi D lrar'sfe

530.274 acre-fzet par vaar of corresponding Safe YVisld {Non-Agriculiura HDD]\ adjudicated fo Transizror
of its pradecessor in interest in the Judgm-m rencsrac in the Case of “"HINr"r SA3IN MUNISIPAL
WATER DISTRICT vs. SITY OF CHIND, st al.,” RTV £7010 (formeriy Cass No. 3CV 184327).

sis p==rman=miy
ras"), th—— auaniity of
dicat

Said Transfer shel bs conditionsd upon

oh Transferas shzll exerciss said right on bshal’ of : 2r the tzrms of the Judgmen? and
ihe Psace Agrasment and for the period descr waisr producssd in any vear
shall be fnat producad pursuant to carmy-ovar rig r. e 'u smant Ansr Dr:a’u:‘{ion of
fz cammy-over rights, if any, the naxi (or rignis) weisy orosucad by Transiares
from the Ghine Basin shall be that producs

2) ::5!"‘:1‘5"—‘" shall pus all waters uillized pursuant 1o said Transizr {o reasonzbis benshcia! ves.

3 Transferas shall pay all Watermasier assassmans on ascount of the waier production nerady

Transierrad,
{4) Any Transferes not aiready a party must intarvens and become = pariy o the Juagment.

TO BE EXECUTED by both Transferor and Transferse, and to be accompamnd by & general description
of the arez where the Transferred water was to be Produced and used prior to the Transrer and where it
will be Produced and used after the Transfer. This general description can bz in the form of a map.

WATER QUALITY AND WATER LEVELS
What is the existing water quality and what are the existing water levels in the areas that are likely to be

affected?
None

MATERIAL PHYSICAL INJURY

s the Applicant aware of any potential Material Physical Injury to a party to the Judgment or the Basin that
may be caused by the action covered by the application? Yes [ ] No [ X ]

If yes, whiat arz the propessd mitigation measurss, i any, thal might rez ss:ably bz
action doses not result in Matsrial Physical injury ic a pzry 1o the Judgmsn: or the

July 2001
WLA - 025115/000004 - 410033 v2

93



54

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ATTACHED

CCG Onizrio LLC

C-;../{:;_/ £ f[/j’/'

Form 5 (cont.}

Yes| ] No[ X ]

Aagua Capital Managamsnt LP

Transferor N
Nams: Edward S. Nekritz
liz: General Counsal

and Secretary

TO SE CORPLETED BY WATERMAST=M:

DATE OF APPROVAL FROM NON-AGRICULTUR

(=)

DATE OF APPROVAL FROM APPROPRIATIVE PODL:

HEARING DATE, IF ANY!

DATE OF ADVISORY COMMITTEE ARPPROVAL:

DATE OF BOARD APPROVAL:

ATE OF APPROVAL FROM AGRICULTURAL POOL:

Agreement #

July 2001
WLA - 026118/000004 - 410033 v2



Form 5 [cont.)

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ATTACHED Yas[ ] No[ X ]

OO Oriario LLC Aqua Ca?ﬁfﬁﬁanag?'jt LP
Transfzror Transfares

Nams: Name: [x};,_; L//d? faﬁ.ﬁ;’r £
fte: fegr g “_’2 2

TO BE COMPLETED BY WATERMASTER:

DATE Or APPROVAL FROM NON-AZRICULTURAL = 20L:

DATEZ OF APPROVAL FROM ASRICULTURAL POOL;

DATE OF APPROVAL FROM APPROPRIATIVE POOL-

—

HEARING DATE, IF ANY:

DATE OF ADVISORY COMMITTEE APPROVAL;

DATE OF BOARD APPROVAL: Agrsemeni #

July 2001
WLA - 26115000004 - 410033 v2

99



56

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



(s@alraagl i1

(€ )

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

Il. BUSINESS ITEMS

A. MOU COOPERATIVE EFFORTS
FOR MONITORING PROGRAMS
BETWEEN THE INLAND EMPIRE
UTILITIES AGENCY AND THE
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER -
BRIGHT LINE APPROACH




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.cbwm.org

KENNETH R. MANNING
Chief Executive Officer

STAFF REPORT

DATE: December 11, 2008
December 16, 2008
December 18, 2008

TO: Committee Members
Watermaster Board Members

SUBJECT: “Bright Line” Monitoring MOU with Inland Empire Utilities Agency

SUMMARY
Issue - Consider Approval of “Bright Line” Monitoring MOU with IEUA
Recommendation — Staff recommends that the Pools approve the Memorandum of Understanding

Financial Impact - Potential redistribution of cost associated with monitoring efforts through Chino
Basin. Net result for Watermaster cannot be determined at this time.

Background

Chino Basin Watermaster and Inland Empire Utilities Agency (“IEUA”) work together cooperatively on a
number of monitoring programs in the Chino Basin that is in addition to the monitoring that occurs under
the Optimum Basin Management Program. These monitoring efforts pertain to surface water monitoring
relating to the Basin Plan, Maximum Benefit and the Hydraulic Control Monitoring Program, as well as the
Recycled Water Groundwater Recharge Monitoring Program.

Historically Watermaster and IEUA have shared the responsibility for these programs by splitting the cost
as appropriate for each program. This has often resulted in accounting difficulties. In order to prevent
such difficulties from arising in the future, Watermaster and IEUA have proposed a new procedure
embodied in the Memorandum of Understanding — Cooperative Efforts for Monitoring Programs Between
the Inland Empire Utilities Agency and the Chino Basin Watermaster — Bright Line Approach.

Under this agreement, the past complexities associated with cost sharing are hoped to be avoided.
Instead, each agency will assume full responsibility for discrete tasks. In general, Watermaster will
assume full responsibility for monitoring associated with surface water monitoring relating to the Basin

517



58

“Bright Line” Monitoring MOU with IEUA December 11, 2008

Plan, Maximum Benefit and the Hydraulic Control Monitoring Program. IEUA will assume full
responsibility for monitoring associated with the Recycled Water Groundwater Recharge Monitoring
Program.

Under the agreement, Watermaster and IEUA will continue the previous structure of sharing costs equally
for the capital construction component of the Hydraulic Control Monitoring Program.

Staff recommends approval of the Memorandum of Understanding.



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
COOPERATIVE EFFORTS FOR MONITORING PROGRAMS BETWEEN
THE INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY AND THE CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Bright Line Approach
DECEMBER 17, 2008

Whereas, the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (“IEUA"} and the Chino Basin Watermaster
("Watermaster”) (each individually “Party” and collectively “the Parties”) share common goals and
objectives regarding the reasonable and beneficial use of water within the Inland Empire and more
specifically the Chino Basin;

Whereas, both Parties share responsibility for meeting certain monitoring and reporting
requirements detailed in the Basin Plan amendment approved by the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality
Control Board (RWQCB) in 2004 (R8-2004-0001);

Whereas, both Parties have made commitments to the RWQCB to obtain Maximum Benefit
Groundwater Quality Objectives (Quarterly Surface Water Monitoring and Reporting, Annual Hydraulic
Control Monitoring Program (HCMP) Monitoring and Reporting);

Whereas, the Parties are co-permittees for the Recycled Water Groundwater Recharge Program
and share responsibility for meeting certain monitoring and reporting requirements of the RWQCB, Santa
Ana Region Order No. R8-2007-0039 (Order) and the Monitoring and Reporting Program (M&RP) No.
R8-2007-0039;

Whereas, the Parties desire to precisely allocate responsibilities for conducting the monitoring
and reporting required in the aforementioned programs (Bright Line approach), and employing staff,
consultants, and other resources in carrying out the Parties' individual and joint responsibilities to
establish clear lines of communication, avoid duplication of effort, and to efficiently implement approved
plans and programs in furtherance of their individual and joint objectives;

Now therefore, it is agreed and resolved that:
L GENERAL DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITY.

(A) Groundwater and Surface Water Monitoring Related to the Basin Plan, Maximum
Benefit, and the HCMP. Unless otherwise expressly agreed in writing, Watermaster will
bear responsibility for groundwater and surface water quality monitoring and groundwater
level monitoring and surface water discharge measurements as required by the Basin
Plan, Maximum Benefit Commitments and the HCMP Work Plan.

(1) Watermaster will collect groundwater samples and measure groundwater levels
from private wells in the Key Well Program.

(2) Watermaster will measure discharge and collect grab surface water samples at
surface water stations specified in the Basin Plan amendment.

(3) Watermaster will collect groundwater level and groundwater quality data from

Appropriators, the USGS, DTSC, the County of San Bernardino, and other
cooperators who collect and maintain surface water and groundwater data in the
Chino and Cucamonga groundwater basins.

(4) Watermaster will measure groundwater levels associated with the Groundwater
Level Monitoring program. These measurements will be of sufficient areal and
temporal density to meet the requirements of both the Basin Plan and the HCMP.

Page 1 of 3



60

MOU: ... Bright Line Monitoring ...IEUA and Watermaster December 17, 2008

(B)

(5)
(6)

(8)

9

(10)

(11)

Watermaster will collect groundwater samples and measure groundwater levels
from HCMP wells in the Key Well Program.

Watermaster will collect POTW discharge and water quality data as mandated in
the Basin Plan amendment. Watermaster will collect and analyze samples from
the POTWs specified in the Basin Plan, with the exception of IEUA's discharges.
IEUA will collect and analyze the requisite samples from their own POTWs and
transmit these data to Watermaster quarterly.

Watermaster will maintain these data in a relational database. These data will be
reported to the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA) for the triennial
Ambient Water Quality update (2009, 2012, 2015, etc.) as required of both
Parties in the Basin Plan.

Watermaster will submit the Quarterly Reports for the Surface Water Monitoring
Program. These Quarterly Reports are required of both Parties in support of the
Maximum Benefit commitments in the Chino Basin.

Watermaster will prepare the annual HCMP report. These Annual Reports are
required of both Parties in support of the Maximum Benefit commitments in the
Chino Basin. IEUA will write the portion of the report dealing with vegetative
mapping of the riparian habitat in the Prado Basin Management Zone (PBMZ).
This portion of the work is being managed by IEUA.

Watermaster will submit an internal draft of all regulatory-required reports to
IEUA three weeks prior to the regulatory due date and allow IEUA 10 calendar
days for review and comment. The cost associated with the review will be borne
by IEUA.

Watermaster will assume all other costs attributable to these groundwater and
surface water monitoring and reporting programs and will not seek any cost-
sharing with IEUA.

Recycled Water Groundwater Recharge Monitoring Program (RWGRMP). Unless
otherwise expressly agreed in writing, IEUA will bear responsibility for groundwater and
lysimeter monitoring as required by RWQCB Order No. R8-2007-0039 and the M&RP
No. R8-2007-0039.

(1)
(2)

(3)
4)

(5)

(6)

IEUA will collect groundwater samples and make groundwater level
measurements from wells associated with the recycled water recharge basins.

IEUA will collect vadose zone samples from lysimeters associated with the
recycled water recharge basins.

IEUA will maintain these data in a relational database.

IEUA will be responsible for all reporting associated with the RWGRMP, including
Quarterly Reports, Annual Reports, Protocol Plans, Start-Up Period Reports, and
First Year Recycled Water Recharge Operations Reports.

IEUA will submit an internal draft of all regulatory-required reports to
Watermaster three weeks prior to the regulatory due date and allow Watermaster
10 calendar days for review and comment. The cost associated with the review
will be borne by Watermaster.

IEUA will assume all other costs attributable to the RWGRMP and will not seek
any cost-sharing with Watermaster.,

Page 2 of 3



MOU: ... Bright Line Monitoring ...IEUA and Watermaster December 17, 2008

Il. DATA SHARING:

(A)

Both parties shall agree to share the data freely — with the exception of groundwater
quality data for private wells. Watermaster is bound by agreement to hold these data
confidential. They are released in a “sanitized” form to the RWQCB and SAWPA for the
AWQ and to other parties through the RWQCB for other investigations. Data will be
exchanged by the Parties on a quarterly basis. The data will be in the form of an
Electronic Data Deliverable (EDD) with a specified format and data dictionary.

I CAPITAL PROJECT CONTRACTS AND OTHER RELATED WORK

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

Watermaster will fund and be responsible for developing the HCMP well master plan [for
new wells]).

IEUA and Watermaster, following mutual written agreement as to scope and cost, will
fund the drilling, construction, and development of test wells and monitoring wells related
to the HCMP on a 50 percent cost-share basis.

The Parties shall seek outside grant assistance for these capital projects. Watermaster
will prepare the technical portion of the grant applications. IEUA will prepare all other
portions of the grant application and will be responsible for administering the grant.

All contracts for the construction of capital projects shall be let according to the protocols
set forth in the IEUA Ordinance Number 81 regarding procurements, as that Ordinance
may be amended from time to time.

Watermaster will be responsible for the on-going monitoring of the new HCMP wells as
part of the HCMP.

V. OTHER OPERATIONAL PROTOCOLS

(A)

(8)

(C)

Both Parties will alert the other if there are any significant changes to the proposed scope
of work outlined in this MOU.

Both Parties will alert the other if there are any regulatory issues that may arise
concerning the HCMP, the RWGRMP, or the triennial AW Q recalculation.

The Parties will meet quarterly to discuss the monitoring programs, review programmatic
efficiencies, and to coordinate efforts and collaborate on strategies concerning future
work.

IEUA and CBWM concur with the above Bright Line approach for described cooperative monitoring

efforts.
Rich Atwater Kenneth R. Manning
General Manager/CEO IEUA CEOQO Chino Basin Watermaster

Page 3 of 3



62

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

ll. BUSINESS ITEMS

B. PUBLIC INFORMATION COST
SHARING AGREEMENT WITH
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES
AGENCY FOR 2009 COMMUNITY
OUTREACH CAMPAIGN




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.cbwm.org

KENNETH R. MANNING
Chief Executive Officer

STAFF REPORT

DATE: December 11, 2008
December 16, 2008
December 18, 2008

TO: Committee Members
Watermaster Board Members

SUBJECT: Participation with the Chino Basin Public Outreach Campaign

Summary
Issue - Informing the public about water issues facing the Region and State

Fiscal Impact — This item is a budgeted expense. Cost $10,000

Background

Starting in 2005 Watermaster, in cooperation with Inland Empire Utilities Agency, Three Valley's MWD, Western
MWD and the Chino Basin Conservation District have cosponsored the Public Outreach Campaign through the
Inland Valley Daily Bulletin. This year IEUA has negotiated a campaign that has an increase in cost of 5%, but
includes more copy space in the actual newspaper as well as increased space on the newspaper’s web site.
The total cost for this year's program will be $137,368. This change in strategy will assist the group in reaching
more constituents.

IEUA will coordinate the campaign with representatives from the other contributing agencies providing input.
The first publication that will be a part of this year's campaign will be seen in late January. It will be an eight
page insert that highlights the agencies with a general message of cooperation threaded throughout, As we
have done in past years, it will have at least one page dedicated to our federal and state representatives
highlighting the work they are doing to assist us in meeting the infrastructure needs of our communities and one
page dedicated to each agency participating in the outreach campaign.

Recommendation

Approve the expenditure of $10,000 for participation in the joint Chino Basin Public QOutreach
Campaign for 2007

b3



- b4

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



6075 Kfmbal[ Ave, o Chil
el ?f?f. (ggg) 9 - C@AEIHE; g; E
( Inland Empire Utilities Agency A
: { iny
g A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT \ Q Nov 20 2008
CH!NO BASIH i WATERMASTER

November 18, 2008

Mr. Ken Manning

Chief Executive Manager

Chino Basin Watermaster

9641 San Bernardino Road

Rancho Cucamonga, California 91730

Dear Ken:

On December 17, 2008, the Inland Empire Utilities Agency’s Board of Directors will consider approving
a 12-month advertising agreement with the Los Angeles Newspaper Group (Inland Valley Daily Bulletin)
for a 2009 community outreach campaign.

Since 2005, with the assistance of Mr. Christopher Lancaster, Government Relations Directors for the Los
Angeles Newspaper Group, IEUA, in corporation with the Chino Basin Watermaster, Western Municipal
Water District, Three Valleys Municipal Water District, and Chino Basin Water Conservation District, ran
full page ads as well as a few editorials in the Inland Valley Daily Bulletin. In 2008, we ran 29 in full
color and 16 eighth-of-a-page black and white ads (which we used for our water conservation tip of the
month).

IEUA staff is proposing that we continue our community outreach with another 12-month advertising
campaign with the Inland Valley Daily Bulletin. Attached is a copy of the advertising agreement that is
being considered. The Inland Empire Utilities Agency is hoping that Chino Basin Watermaster will
participate in this year’s program by again contributing $10,000.

Thank you for your consideration. If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to call.

Sincerely,

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

-

Richard W. Atwater
Chief Executive Officer
General Manager

Attachment

Fifty-Five Years of Excellence in Water Resources & Quality Management

Wyatt Troxel Terry Catlin Gene Koopman Angel Santiago John L. Anderson Richard W, Atwatan 5
President Vice President Secretary/Treasurer Director Director Chief Executive Offi b
General Manage.



66

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



Inland Valley Daily Bulletin
PUBLIC OUTREACH AGREEMENT

This agreement is between the Inland Empire Utilities Agency and the Los
Angeles Newspaper Group (Inland Valley Daily Bulletin). This agreement confirms the
Inland Empire Utilities Agency’s purchase of’

Publication Cost Value Publication Date

1. Education Week $7,219 $16,191 February 2009
Two-pages

2. Civic Leadership 54,969 38,095 March 2009
One-page

3. Earth Day $7.219 516,191 April 2009
Two-pages

4. Water Awareness Month $7,219 $16,191 May 2009
Two-page

5. LA County Fair $4,950 $4,950 September 2009
One-page (Full-color)

6. Think Environment Week $7,219 $16,191 September 2009
Two-pages

7. Eleven (11) Full-page ROP  $69,525 589,050 Dates of your choice
Ads (Full-Color)

8. Eight-Page Section (Tab.) $29,048 $32,382 February 2009

(Full-Color)

9. Sixteen (16) eighth-of-a-
page (Black and White ads) $0.00 516,191 Dates of your choice

10. Banner Ad (IVDB Website)  $0.00 $14,160 59,000 Impressions per Month

(700,000 Impressions)
Grand Total $137,368 $232,592



68

Distribution
All public outreach/educational advertisements are distributed in the Inland Valley
Daily Bulletin newspaper property only.

Production

All prices include design, layout, printing and distribution.

Added Value

o (Total value $232,592)-(Total costs $137,368) = Added value $95,224

The Los Angeles Newspaper Group agrees to provide all services listed in this
agreement, and the Inland Empire Utilities Agency agrees to pay the Los Angeles

Newspaper Group (Inland Valley Daily Bulletin) a total of $137,368

All terms of this agreement must be fulfilled by December 31, 2009.

Los Angeles Newspaper Group Date

Inland Empire Utilities Agency Date

(¥



Inland Valley Daily Bulletin
PUBLIC OUTREACH AGREEMENT

This agreement is between the Inland Empire Utilities Agency and the Los
Angeles Newspaper Group (Inland Valley Daily Bulletin). This agreement confirms the
Inland Empire Utilities Agency’s purchase of:

Publication Cost Value Publication Date
1. Education Week $7,219 $16,191 February 2009
Two-pages
2. Civic Leadership 54,969 58,095 March 2009
One-page
3. Earth Day $7,219 $16,191 April 2009
Two-pages
4. Water Awareness Month $7,219 $16,191 May 2009
Two-page
5. LA County Fair 54,950 54,950 September 2009
One-page (Full-color)
6. Think Environment Week $7,219 $16,191 September 2009
Two-pages
7. Eleven (11) Full-page ROP  §69,525 $89,050 Dates of your choice
Ads (Full-Color)
8. Eight-Page Section (Tab.) $29,048 $32,382 February 2009
(Full-Color)
9. Sixteen (16) eighth-of-a-
page (Black and White ads)  $0.00 $16,191 Dates of your choice
10. Banner Ad (IVDB Website) $0.00 $14,160 59,000 Impressions per M
(700,000 Impressions)
Grand Total $137,368 $232,592



79

Distribution
All public outreach/educational advertisements are distributed in the Inland Valley
Daily Bulletin newspaper property only.

Production

All prices include design, layout, printing and distribution.

Added Value

o (Total value $232,592)-(Total costs $137,368) = Added value $95,224

The Los Angeles Newspaper Group agrees to provide all services listed in this
agreement, and the Inland Empire Utilities Agency agrees to pay the Los Angeles
Newspaper Group (Inland Valley Daily Bulletin) a total of $137,368

All terms of this agreement must be fulfilled by December 31, 2009.

Los Angeles Newspaper Group Date

Inland Empire Utilities Agency Date



m;oAOLOA@A

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

Il. BUSINESS ITEMS

C. CONDITION SUBSEQUENT NO. 5

anOBLOA@A@

go)c);@l@;@ 2




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.cbwm.org

KENNETH R. MANNING
Chief Executive Officer

STAFF REPORT

DATE: December 11, 2008
December 16, 2008
December 18, 2008

TO: Committee Members
Watermaster Board Members

SUBJECT: Approval of January 1, 2009 Progress Report on Watermaster's Recharge Master
Plan Update pursuant to Condition Subsequent 5

SUMMARY

Issue — On December 21, 2007, the Honorable Judge Michael Gunn issued a court order
authorizing the Peace Il Agreement. In that order there were nine time-specific conditions
subsequent. Condition Subsequent No. 5 states “By July 1, 2008, Watermaster shall prepare and
submit to the Court a detailed outline of the scope and content of its first Recharge Master Plan
update, and shall report it progress by January 1, 2009 and July 1, 2009." Watermaster is being
asked herein to approve the July 1, 2009 Progress Report and direct Watermaster counsel to file
the progress report to the Court.

DISCUSSION

The following text and attached table will be included in a report filed by Watermaster counsel
prior to January 1, 2009.

Watermaster staff assembled stakeholders in the Spring of 2008 to develop the detailed outline required
by Condition Subsequent No. 5. The resulting outline was vetted in the Watermaster process and was
approved in June and subsequently filed with Court. After July 1, 2008 Watermaster staff has worked
diligently with its consultant Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. (WEI), to develop a detailed list of tasks
(scope) that must be accomplished to complete the Recharge Master Plan (RMP) update by the July 1,
2010 required in Condition Subsequent No. 8. The scope was presented and reviewed at the
Watermaster Strategic Planning Conference in September 2008. The detailed list of tasks is attached.
Watermaster staff has been working with the Chino Basin Water Conservation District (CBWCD), Inland



12

Report on Watermaster's Recharge Master Plan Update December 11, 2008
Pursuant to Condition Subsequent 5

Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) and WEI to implement the scope. WEI, under the direction of the
Watermaster CEOQ is functioning as the program manager for the RMP update and is responsible for
designing the RMP update scope and supervising its execution. The CBWCD is taking the lead in the
storm water recharge component of the RMP update. The consulting firm of Black and Veatch has been
assigned the lead in developing alternative supplemental water recharge alternatives. The IEUA has
been tasked with developing updated water supply plans, coordinating with the Metropolitan Water
District, and developing supplemental water supply alternatives for recharge.

In December 2008, WEI, Watermaster, the CBWVD and Black and Veatch refined these assignments
and revised the RMP update schedule. The schedule and assignments are included on the attached task
list. IEUA has completed the water supply plan update and the projected future replenishment obligations
have been estimated. WEI and the CBWCD initiated their technical assignments. Black and Veatch will
begin their work in January 2009. The work is on schedule,

Recommendation — Approve the January 1, 2009 Progress Report and direct Watermaster Counsel to
file the progress report to the Court.



| abeg “JU| ejuauOlIAUY YINWISP|IM
B0/6Z/L UL [BO/E/LL UOW __ |SAEP 0O nioe4 ablieyosy Jereps uucis BURSKT 2quasaq [E 6EY | FI EF
LP[60/FL/S UL |60/BIS L shep g PISIA 8JES 198y SU0|S|23(] 857 PUB] MOH aqudsaq [EIM el ¥
DP|6072/S NYL B0/¥Z{P Ud SREP 0} sjuadojaaa( 2imind pue JUa3ay 10} SoUEURIS Juadojaaaq joediu] mo7 8quasag an-vnal LeY v
LE|BO/EZ/r UL (60/ZZ/E Ud sAep g sisAjeuy Apnyisuag uny 3 9er or
ZEI60/9Z/E UL [60/9Z/E N4l [sAep g 2e.| 8bIENI9Y JelEN LWOIS BUNSX] PUE S[ULELD WESAS Uj BIELaay ajewnss SEeF BE
ZE|BO/OZ/E NUL  |60/9Z/E AUL sAep g 121/ pelddy pue uonendiasld jo uoljejoalad deaq ey woy abieyady Sjewnsg YEF BE
9E[0/9Z/E ML |BO/EL/E U shep 0| PIAIA 8JES Jo suauodwog 3|FojoipAH 9Zusioeleyd EETY I
vP'EV'EE'SEIBO/ZL/E PUL  |60/0E/ ) Hd sAep pg PiSIA 3JES BJELLNST PUE S[BPOJY Uny Zer [
B0/6Z/1 MUl  [80/E/LL WO |sAEp 09 sajl4 Jnduj pue suondLNssy Sjapoj Je1SEULRTEAL PUB WY IV 21EPdn VeEr | FE| Gt
60/PL/S NUL  [RO/E/LL WO [sAep GEL PI3LA 3jes Joalyy suoisisag abieyaay Jajep ULIO)S PUEB asnpueT MOH aululRlag EY Ve
B0/4Z/L @NL  [BO/E/LL UO  [sAep Bg siionipuoy) jualudciana( SJBWIYN PUE JUBLNG Joj Sde asnpUE] SIEPIEA PUE aulay EIN ¥ E=| €€
LE]60/5/Z NUL B0/S/Z NUL &hep | POWIRI PUBWWIDdZY B BLY ZEt
0E[60/F/Z PR B0/gc/L Nyl |sAep Q| SPOYIR JO UDNEN[EAT EN By IE
6ZI60/KZ/L P3M|BO/IZ/L P3A_ AEP | yoday || 82ead BOOZ By} Ul 1EWNST PRIA FJES EM Ly [
82l60/0Z/L 8nL  [s0fog/L anl  [Aep | JuawbBpnr g/ | 8y} Ul 8)2LWNST PIBIA RIES EM 9Ly BZ
L2|60/61/1 UOW  [BO/SL/LNUL  [sRep¢ 159J31U] JO BaNY 13/ glF (14
9z|60/71/) P [BO/EL/LaNL  [SREpg PO @5BY 13M viv Iz
SZ|60/Z1/1 Uow  [60/6/1 U] sAep Z siuswannbay eyeq 13M ElY oz
vZ|60/8/1 YL 60/411 P3 shep g S31Npaoo.d |Euoiendwog [EM Ty T4
60/9/} 3NL 60/5/} VoW sAep z suofiuyaq (dwog 13M 1y [ El ¥e
80/5/Z NyL 60/5/1 Vol &shep vz PI3IA 3jes ajewnys3 o) Abojopoyja dopaag (N [
PIAIA/

60/2/4 NYL BO/E/LL UOlN  |ZsAep psL 9jes ooy juswalbieuely Jaje| ULIO)S PUE SUDISIZ3(] 3SNPUET MOH 32ZLI3)JIeIeyD { YSEL v [44

[¥4

61l60/92/2 NUL  160/0Z/Z U4 shep g £ Uonaag yeig azijeul{ pue sjuawwog ajedodioau| 13M £8¢ 0z
8LI60/6L/Z NUL __ |60/EZ/L U sAep 0z SJBp|OYRNEIS UIM g UO[J8S YeI] MaIAay [ETT] CHE 6}
iFPEELZL LI 0LBOREI UL (BO/B/L U sfep 0} Hoday 193[0.1d §0 ¢ UOIES YEIQ aJedeld 13M 1'8€E 81
60/9Z/2 UL [60/6/1 U shep gg Hoday joafoid Jo Z uojoag Jeiq aledalg BE L1
60/8/1 NuL 6QJG/) UOW shep BUBIUY [eluell4 pue ASojopoyya Bunewns3 3503 doj@sag ARg L't EZl 91
60/9/) L 60/G/1 UOW sfep g siuawalnbay Aojenbay 8|idiied EIM 9t =lED
BO/S/1 UOW B0/5/1 UOW Rep | sjUsWalinbay ssaujsngoy 2Idwog 13M 5¢ Bl ¥l
B80/8/) NUL BO/C/L UOW sAep ¢ ab.eyoay Joj sjuawainbay Buils 3(idiuog 13M FE Ez| €l
60/8/) YL 60/5f1 UOW shep ¢ salioe4 Juawieal] pue abeI0Ig "aaueAsaund 's{i@pn 10} sluawalinbay ubisaq apdwo) Avd c'e B2t
60/8/1 YL 60/S/1 U sAep ¢ suswsaJnbay juswabeueyy Jajepn uu0)g apdiuod dd-wdd 3 [
60/9/] ®n1 B0/S/L UOA skEp ¢ sjuswaJlnbay JapJO HN0 PUE JUswiaalby adead Jualbpnr apdwo) 13 [N Ez[ 0L
60/9Z/2 Nyl 60/5/1 Uoly shep g euaL) Buuueld dojaaag 3 B

8

B0/ZL/L UOW  [80/L/OL PSAA__|SAEP 04 syoday pue ejeq mawmay pue a|dwog 133|og 3 Bl 2

9

01/8/6 14 80/c/1L UOlN __ [sAepg/¥ USLWBBEUER IUS oM [EIM Gl =l
zloL/ess ang 80/1/0} PIpL [SAep g/y sajnuily Jo uopesedald pue ‘sBuiaajy ‘sbui@syy jo uojeuipioa) 13m [ ¥
ZloWe/ anL 80/L/0} P3N\ [sAep /¥ suoday ssaifoid Ailog jo uoneredalg puUE LORENSIUILIPY 130 £l 3
80/0S/6 8NL  |80/L/L L ¢sRep gg Ueld [04u0D J0a[o1d jo uoiesedald 12M Ll €
0}/E/6 Ud 80/1/4 any ¢shep gog juawabeuepy joafoig b |

‘oN | B
slossaoapald ysiu4 uels uoneing JweN yse| Lwoypn yse| al

I9)sewalep uiseg oulyo
a)epdn ueld J9ysep obieysroy
Y 1qyx3a

73



14

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



7 abed QU] ‘[RjuBWU0IIAUT YINULIBP|IM
z___umm mm._m:umm J3Jepn
18'08'BL|60/EZP NUL BO/OE/E VO |SsAep G wiols Map [Bljuaiogd Yoe3 Joj Aydedeg ableysay Jajep [BuUawalddng s sjEwns aoamsgo SZ9 €8
Ayoe4 =bi1eyosy
18'08'6.L|60/EZ/F PUL 60/0¢/e Lo |sAep G| MeN [ejuanod yoeg Joy aBieyday Jajen ULOYS Ul asealou| pajoadx3 8y 2JEWsE [ELY ¥ee Z8
ebleljaay eseatol|
BO/LZ/E U4 6076/} UOW sAep 0g 03 Agij0d awabeuey Jsiep ulgig vl sabueyy [BIjUajod pusiuwiooay pue Ajuap)| aomes £Z9 318
9.|60/52/€ P3M_ |60/9Z/Z NUL sAep Oz salyioe sbieyday Jajeps LUOIS (B30T [BRUIIOG 3qUISAQ aomeas zZZ9 08
S1160/5/€ NUL 60/9/Z L4 sAep 0z sjaalold abireyaay Jalep) WI0YS [EuojBay [euajod aquasag aomego 129 6L
60/EZ/Y NUL  |B0/S/L YOl shep 62 s309l0.d Juawabewreyy lajep uLojs eRua)od Ajpuap) z9 8.
9/'6/'p4|B0/9Z/E NUL 60/9Z/Z 4l SAEp |Z saljioed pue sanaeld Bunspa yym abieysay Jatepm LL0IS papadq &y sielnsg 1T [N L
60/5ZfC PBM.__[60/5/1 UOW sAep gg salynoe4 abiieyoay pue juswabeuey Ja1ep ULIBIS 890 aquasag asmen €18 9/
B0/SfZ NUL BO/G/Z) BNL shep 6¢ sanoe abieyosy pue Juawsfeuey Jajeps WU0IS [euojbay aquasag aomed zl9 Gl
60/0E/} 4 60/5/1 UOW sAep gg 1b1eyaay pue jualwabeuBy Jajep) LLIO)S 03 palej@y Sajd||0d |8aoT] pue [eunjBay aquosag aosmad [N [
60/9Z/E NUL  [B0/6/ZL @l  [sfep bl ableyoay pue juawabeuely Jojep uuolg Bunsix3 aquasag 1’9 £l
60/6/1 Nyl 80/6/ZL anL sfep gyL saunpoddg jJuswasueyusy abieyoay pue ablieyoday Jaje)) Wo)s aquasag 9 Zl
L
B9I60/L1/Z AnL B0/L1/C POMY  [SAEp § ¥ UD[1985 eI aZ)[eul] pUE sjugLliwog ajetodiooy) 13 £55 0L
89(60/01/2 9L 60/82/1 PaM [SAEP Q) S4Bp|CYSNE)S YIM p LORISS YeIg Malay 13M 756 68
99'G9'Z9'RG'€9|60/LT/E aNL 6O/1Z/L P3M [SAEp g Hoday j08[oid Jo v uonoas yeig altedald 13M 1'5'S 89
60/4L2 3NL  [60/LZ/L Papm [ sAep 0z Hoday josloud jo ¢ uonoag aledald 5’6 X
G9(60/02/1 @nL 6O/FL/L PEM SAEP G sasodind juawysjuajday Ucy Jo} sjuawalnbay Ajoede] abieyoay [Ejuswa|ddng auya( L¥'S 99
£a|60/E/1 BNl BO/Z/L PaMA sAEp g uswysiuajday 1o} paainbay Ayoeded abieysay jo ebUEY ay) aulaQ av'G Go
B85|80/0€/ZL 8NL  [BO/ZZ/ZI UOW [sAep g awysiua|day andie-ald 10} [EU3I0d 2qUISaQ CRa) (]
79(60/9/1 8nL 60/5/} anL Kep | OYND 8Y1 spPayy saliddng jeiuawalddng Jo Alligelay syl moH azusiseley) Fi's ]
09°19[60/5/1 UOW 60/2/1 U4 shep g sniding/abepoUs allysiuaiday jo A1ojsiy awi| ay) 8jewpnss £V'g ]
85|80/08/21L @n)  [80/2Z/ZL VO [sAEp G saoe ableyoay Aunsixg jo Aqejeay auy) azus)9elElg zrs 19
BG[BO/OE/CL anL  [B0/ZZ/ZL WO [SAEP § sa)|ddng Jeep [EaLuejddng Jo AYIGE[EY au) azusieley) L'¥S 09
juawbpnp
60/0Z/L NJ  |B0/ZZ/ZL YO |sAep g} 3yj 03 Juensing saaunosay Buysix3g uim ysiuajday o) Ayjigy ayj azuajoeseyy s 5%
£5180/61/2 1 U] 80/¥Z/11 LOW |sAep oz suojieblgO swysius|day joalold 130 £6 s
95°G5 ¥5[80/bT/E} U 80//1/11 UOy [sAep g SUE|d AlddngS J31EAA PUE SEUBWa( JSIEM 21edbequ] IE]] Al 15
BO/PE/0} U 80/C1/0L Lo [sAep 0} BaJy 9985 QMM BU) 0] SpUEWa( Ja]ep [eljiu] asedald ROE] E1s 95
80/FL/LE U 80/E/L) VO [sAEp 01 Baly 3J/uag QMINAL BU) Joj spuewiaq Jajep) [eu] asedald N3l LS S5
80/FLILL U 80/e/L1 VO |sAep gL Ealy 331135 YN3J| 8Y} 104 SPUELLSQ J31EM [BIjU]| aJedald COE] 1'Vs ¥5
80/VL/LL B4 [ROJEL/OL WOl  [sAep gz sue|d £|ddng Jejep pue spuewsq tajep [eniu| atedaig L's £5
60/ZLZ Nl |BO/EL/OL Vol [sAep gg sueld Alddns Jajep pue spuewag) Jajej Jo majaay pajelbaj) [eniu] Janpuo) 5 25
15
6¥|60/2/L MYL 60/92/g U4 shep g € 01935 Yelq a2ieul4 pue sjuauwog jeodiodu 1377 ery i
8¥[60/SZ/9 NUL 60/Z 149 U4 sAep oL SI3p[OYSYEIS UM € UORIAS YBIQ Malnay [ETT Ty 14
9y'Z¥|60/L L/8 NYL B0/S1/G 14 shep Oz Hoday 103[01d J0 ¢ U0)198S YelQ aledalg 13M PP ar
60/2/2 hYL 60/51/G U sAep Gg poday 3r8foid jo g uopaag yelq asedarg ¥y ¥
SP|BO/EZ/P NUYL 60/4 1Y U shep g PIaIA BJBS 1934y su0js|9aQ sBieyday Ja1ep LWI0IS Mol aguasag E ZLEY or
PIRIA
PF'Ev ZEl60/9 L/ RUL 60742/ Ud sAep G| 2Jeg Payy suaisjpag sbieyaay Jajep) WIojS moH aujuuaiaqg o3 sisfjeuy Ausuas uny 13 LLEP 14
60/62/1 ML 80/¢/11 Vo [SAEp 09 [ENj3Y pue |Baf2108Y | — suopesadp jualiaBeue)y JeYep LUOIS [eaL0JSIH equasag vn3l 0LVEY | 5[ v
=
510s53%apald ysiu yelg Uojjeing BLUEN YsB] LUOUAA HSB| % al

19JSEWIRlEAN UISeg oUIYyD
ajepdn ueld J93sep =261eyday
Y Uqiyxg

70



16

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



¢ abeg 'oU| ‘[RJUBLIUOI| AU YINULBP]IAA
€ZL[BO/LL/ZL U4 [B0/0E/LL Lo [SAEP O YUY PUE BAIBILIAYY UIEZ 81035 13 z'og ¥zl
‘OZL'GELBLIOLLB0/MZ/IL U [60/91/LL UoW  |SAep g| eI Bupjuey pue saajewsa)ly ayj Joj xuje aJedaig 12 198 4
60/8Z/Z) YOI |60/81/LL UON [SAep LE sannjewa)y juey 98 ZZl
BLL'GLIGLLBO/EL/LE Y [BO/6/LL U0y [SAep g saljeW=)y 4oe3 Joj sabueld Adjjod equaseq [EIT] g8 [
6LIOLLIGO/EL/LE WA |60/6/LL U0y [sABp § aAneLLally 3B Jo) sJalleg uoliejuawa[duy aquasag [EIT ¥'B 0Z1

91181 1|60/8/1E 1 60/9Z/0 UOW _ [sAep g} S{UaLUSS3sSY |BNUUY J3]SELLAIEp 1Seaaln 1M ? d9-\ED [ZE8 [y

T E 60/Le/a U0l |sAep gy (1500 yun ‘Wro ‘lerdeq) aanewa)ly yoe3 1o} suoudp 1s0g atedalg 1am 1'E'8 8l

60/9/L1 U4 60/LE/B UOy  |sAep g sisAjeuy [ejoueuly E8 L)

GLL|BO/EZ/0L U4 [BO/ZI/OL UOW  [SAED O PIBLA 8BS PUE as5u0dsay JBIEMPUNDIS) 9ZUSI0EIRYD [EITY 778 o1l

EF1I60/6/01 L4 GO/IE/BUOW  |SAep O SISPOIN MO J21SELLIZIEAA B8] PUB YW HUA SUopead( abielaay alenig [EIY 1Z8 Gll

60/EZ/0}L U4 |60/LE/B UOIN  [sAep gy asuodsay ujseg Jajempunols) azuajoeieyg 1M Z8 ril

(sueld BunesadQ paiejoossy pue AjjI9ed Jo 13M

601 'Z6|60/8Z/8 Ud 60/2L/B UOWN  |sAep 0] suopeuiquog) abieyoay Jajen [epswajddng puUe ULOIS SZIWXE( JEY) Sanjelua)ly S]BjnuuD- ‘ABd 'dg MED |18 el

01/1/Z UO 60//1/8 Uoly  [sfep Lz} s393lo.d abreyaay Jajem [ejuawejddng pue uuojs ajeibagu) 8 ZLl

m

601 |60/12/8 Ud 60/Z1/AUON  [sAep g 9§ UoIRag Yeiq aZjjeuld pue siawwog ajesadioay| AR89 % d9-MED 0kl

801[60/F1/8 U B0/0Z/. UOW _ [SAep O SIBp|OYAEIS Y)IM g LUONOSS YEIQ MBlAay ABH T d9-MED 601

901 [60/21/2 U] B0/ZT/9 WO [SAep Og vodsy 2a[01d Jo g uojjoag Yeig esedald AB9 P d8-MED 801

60/LZ/8 Ud 60/2Z/9 UON  [SAep g Hoday jaalord jo 9 uonoag aledalg 20t

£01|60/6L/9 U 60/SZ/5 WO [sAep 0T slajueq uojeuaws)dw| agquasag A38 % d9-M80 [9E2 90t

€01[60/61/9 L4 60/52/G UoW___|SRep oz (1500 WA WO [elde]) annELRYy YIeg 10j suodo 1509 aledald Azg gel G0l
RAmoeg abieyoay

£0Li60/61/G LY 60/5Z/S uoly  |shep gz MmaN [e1ua10d yaed loj sbieyoay sajep |Ejuswajddng ui asessou| pejaadxg ey) 9)ewns] Ard res ¥0l
abieyoay asealau)

Zol'loLl60/zE/s ud 60/2Ziv VO |shep 0Z 0] Aatjod wawabeuey Jajepn |ejuawa|ddng ul sabueyg [Bluaiod puawL0IZy pue Auap| AH ? d8-MED €/ €01
86°Z6|60/PE/Y U4 60/2/E UOW shep oF saniiaed ableydsy Jajep [elswRddng [ES07 [ERUR10d 2quasaq A5d ze! z0l
BE £6/60/F2/¥ L] 60/Z/€ UoW sAep Oy spalolg ebIeyday Jajep [eluaWaddng JeuoiBay [eRuajod @quasag hEL Vel 101

60/P/S UOW 80/01/6 PAM__ [SAep cg| s198[0ld abJeyoay Jajepn [Byualalddng man Ajiuap) gL 001
99'G0|80/0Z/1 @) |B0/OZ/LanL  [sfepg Ayoede] abieqoay te1em [Euawe|ddng map Jop paaN ayl squasag d9-mad zL 66
AT 60722 UoI sAep Oz sanae, abieysay Jalep [eiusWwalddng €07 aquasag L] Z1l | k7| 86
A 60/Z/T U9 sAep Og saIae,] abseyaay Ja1g ejusweddng jeunibay aguasag ] VL R 46
6072212 114 B0/Z/Z UOW shep pz Aypoede) abieyoay Jajepm jejuswaiddng Gunsixg azuajoeseyn V2 96
sapunpoddo

60/L2/8 U4 BOJOL/G PApR  |SAep trE juawasueyuy abieysay Jajepn [ejuswajddng pue abileyaay Jajep [ejusawajddng aquasag) I GG
¥8
Z6160/6/7 ML BO/E/Z M4 SAED § G U0j30as YelQ 2z[euld pue SUSWLIoY Sjelodioon] aomad £rD [¥i]
LB]B0/Z/L NYL 60/5/9 U sAEp 0 SIOPIOYSAEBIS LM G UOIDSS JBIQ Malay gomad Z¥D Z6
£B/60/#/9 NUL BO/PZIF 14 sAep gg Hoday 9afoid 3o g uolpag yeig aledalgd gomean L'¥'g 1]
60/6/2 YL 60/PZiP L4 sfep 65 yoday j2afold Jo 5 uoiag asedarg &) 06
G8|60/1L2/G NUL 60/8/S 14 SREp 01 sabiuey] Asliog |quasaq aomea GEY 68
58[60/12/S NUL B0/8/S U4 SAEP Q| SJalLE] UONEIUSLIS|CI| BqUIsa(] goMeo YE9 a8
G8|60/1Z/S NUyL 60/B/5 U4 shep 0} (1500 Wun "W30 ‘Iended) aAnewaly Yaeg 1o suoidg 1509 asedald aomgn £E9 B
G8(80/LE/s UL [60/8/S U SAEp 0| anjewwa)ly yaeg Joj afireyaay Jajepy uLI0)g Ul asEaI0U) pajadid sU) ajeWwns [ER A o8
£8(60/4/G NUL 60/vZiv U4 sRep ol (sueld Buneiadg psiejaossy pue Ajji0e JO SUOELIGIIDD) SINIEWRY S)E[NULID] asmga Le9 S8
60/LZ/S NUL  |BO/VE/Y U] shep gz saaewa)y abJeyaay Jajep ulojs maN dojaaag £9 78

oN | O
510S532%apald ysiui4 yelg uoljeing SLEN }SB [ woypn yse) al

J9JSEWIR)EAN UISE] OUIYyD
alepdn ue|d J193sep abieyssy
¥ aqiyx3g

17



18

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



19

v ummm et | .EE@E:D.__Z._M ynuuapjipy
ZOL|0L/OE/9 POMY_ [OL/Z1/9 ] [SAEp D) voday o2jEuld EI £l £91
LOLIOI/B1/9 POM [OHGI9PAAY  |SAEP D doys)Iop JSPIOYSHELS JONPUOD 13/ A z9l
6GL|01/8/g AnL 0L/6L/G Py [shep G| Hoday asinay ‘sesucdsay aJedsid "SiualIO) UaUAA Malay 13 LZEL 191
0L/91/9 P |DL/GL/S Papy  [SAep 12 }eIg mamay FAT 094
SkLO8LS enl  (OL/le/P PaAL_ |SAEp O 0} YbnoJyy | syse] o sjonpald dpopa ay) bunesbaju) yodey Jelg eiedaid EIT ! 651
0L/0E/9 Pam  [DLALZIv Papy [SAep LG yoday jeuld aredaig LL BS L
151
GSLI0L/OLG UOW  [OM/P/G 3N sfep g 01 UoIag Yeiq aZljeuld pue spaliwiog ajesodioou) 1am g0l [
PGLI01/E/S UOW 0L/OZ/F anL __ [SAEp Of S1p|0YBXEIS UM O} UOR02S YBIQ Malnay [EIT 2101 661
ZGLIGL'OGLI0L/BL/Y UOW  |0L/3/b anL sREp | poday joaloid 30 DI UONo2S YEIg aJedald 13M (WA Gl
0L/0LS YOl |DL/9/F 3NL sfep 6z Hoday j9alold jo gj uoyoag aledalg 201 €61
671'8FL|0L/GZIE UOW  [OW/EZ/EANL  [sAEp g sjuauralnbay BULOYUO 9quasag [EN g0l Z51
E¥1'8PL|01/G/F UOIW 0L/EZ/E =Nl [sAep 0 SaMelE]y BupLel)y squosag [EIN 50l 151
6¥1'8V1[01/S/F UOW DL/EZ/E 8Nl [SAEp 0| SjuaLWancldw] aBleysay 13nisung o} apalds dojEasg ET POl 051
6ZL[0L/L/Z UOW DL/gg/Lenl __ [sAEp g aBJEN0TY JAIEN LIDIS SZILXE 0] S}0alold abieqoay MeN aquaseg [EIN £01 B¥l
OPL|OLZZ/E UWON  [oL/gl/Eeny  [sAepg suonefgo wawysiuajday jeap 0] sjoafold abeyoay maN aquasag 13M z'ol 8rl
OL/0L/S Yol |oW9Z/Lanl  [sAep g/ uejd 13jsefy ableyoay atedaid 0l irl
4148
YPLOLOZ/F 3N [OL/PL/P POAA |[SAER G § UORJISS YeIQ] aZ|[Eul{ pue SJualiuiog 27elodiodl] EM €56 shl
EPLIOLEL/P BNL  [OL/LE/E PAML_ |SABP 01 $J3p|0YAYBIS LiM § U0)J0SS YEIG Mainay 13M Z56 bl
WL0WOE/E AL [OL/ZI/E PR |SAEP O Hoday 193loid 16 § UcljIas yedq aiedaid 13M 166 EPL
0L0ZiP anl  |ok/ZLIE PaM [SAep 62 poday 323fo.d Jo § UoNag aredalg 58 vl
OPL|OLOL/E®NL  [OL/gl/Eanl  |Aep | OYNJ 81 puE SNjdiNg/8BE0NS JUBLUYS[us[day J0 AIOIS|H awi] alj) }5893J0] [EIY Y6 1Pl
abieyaay
BELOL/GL/E UOIN  |OL/G/E @nL shep g Jaiep jejuawaiddng o) painbay sueld Guilessdo man pue ssniioed maN Ajusp) 1am L'¥6 orlL
juawbpnr ayj

OL/9LIE 3NL  |0M/G/E ANY sfep g 0} Juensingd sadinosay meN pue Bunsia YIM Usiualday o) Ay ay) azuajoeseyn il 6EL
IELI01/B/E UOW 0L/Z/E 3l SAEp ¢ suoneh|qo WeLlisus|day s.ming Jo sbuey jaalold 49 Mad €6 BEL
9EL'GEL PEL|OL/LIE UOW OLEZZ AL |SAEp g sue|d A|ddns 13jep) PUE SPUBLIRQ JSIEA ajedBau) RTAE]] AL Il
6ZLI0L/ZZZ UOW _ [OL/92/L @l |SAep OF Baly 32IA13$ QMINAA 3U) 10} spUBLLa] Jalep SZjeuld vn3l £16 9el
BZL|0L/ZZC UON __ [0L/92/L @l |sAep oz Baly 23IAlag QMINAL 311 Joj SPUBWEQ J2IEA 3ZI[BUld Y3l FAN cel
BZHOWZER UOW  [01/9Z/E3nL  |SAep (g BRIy 398G V3| @Y) J0] SPUBLIB( JAIEAA 92][Ell] RiE]] L'1B PEl
01/22Z/T WO |0L/9Z/L @nL  |sAep oz sue|d Addng lajep) pue spuewagq Jajep azifeuld 16 EEl

0L/0Z/FanL  |0L/9Z/L AL |sAep g sueld Alddng Jajep pue spueltag Jajep o matnay pajesbiaju) jeuly Jonpuon 6 Zg

13

6ZL[01L/L/Z YO 0L/92/L anl [SAEp G 8 pUE / SUORJ2S Yelq aZ)[eul{ PUe SUSLIW0D Se1odioou] EIA £/8 0g
8ZH0L/SZ/LUOW  |OKZI/E ANl [SAEp O SIappy@iejs (AN B pUE/ SUCIRSS JeI( Malhey 13M i8 BEl
9zLloL/LL/L UOW  |60/6Z/ZL ANl [SREp oL Hoday jealaid Jo g pue / suoyaag yeiq adedalg 13 1’28 8zt
0L/1/Z Uoly 60/6Z/ZL 3Nl [sfep 5z poday ja3foid jo g pue / suolpas aledaigd 28 121
GZL|60/BZ/Z) UOW__|60/8E/ZE UOW_ |REP | bupjuey pue xmep azjeld [E v98 ozl
PZL60/SE/ZL B4 [BO0/FL/TE UDW_|SREp 0L Indu| JapIoYEEIS URIGO 0} pue BUNUEY MBIASY 0 doys3IOp JaNnpuc) 13M £98 SZ1

oN |
51055323pald ysiui4 uelg uojjelng aleN Yse| woynpn NSBL
19)SEWLIRIENA UISE]g OUIYD
2)epdn ueld J9sep 261eysay
v uqiyx3




80

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

Il. BUSINESS ITEM

D. AGRICULTURAL POOL
REALLOCATION PROCEDURE




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.cbwm.org

KENNETH R. MANNING
Chief Executive Officer

STAFF REPORT

DATE: December 11, 2008
December 16, 2008
December 18, 2008

TO: Committee Members
Watermaster Board Members

SUBJECT: Reallocation of Surplus Agricultural Pool Water

SUMMARY

Issue: Adoption of procedures regarding the re-allocation of surplus Agricultural Pool water in
the event of a decline in Safe Yield

Fiscal Impact: Noimpact to the Watermaster budget

Background

Pursuant to its stipulation with Monte Vista Water District dated April 25, 2008, Watermaster committed
to, “. . . include in its submittal in compliance to Condition Subsequent Eight, a comprehensive analysis
and explanation of how and whether Watermaster will . . . calculate replenishment obligations, in light of
the model's predicted safe yield decline over time . . . .” (Stipulation, paragraph 1.)

The Stipulation further required Watermaster to produce certain information regarding an expected future
range of Agricultural Pool production prior to July 1, 2008. Watermaster produced this information and at
the June 26, 2008 Appropriative Pool meeting, the Appropriative Pool decided to convene a
subcommittee to discuss the development of a procedure to respond to this information.

This subcommittee was formed and met. At the August 6, 2008 meeting of this subcommittee, staff and
legal counsel were asked to put together information for consideration by the subcommittee members.
Staff and legal counsel were asked to memorialize a proposed resolution of the method of allocation of

water in the event of a reduction in Safe Yield, and to create spreadsheets that document the results of a
range of other methods.



82

Reallocation of Surplus Agricultural Pool Water December 11, 2008

On September 8, 2008, Watermaster distributed these materials to the subcommittee and requested
comments. On November 10, 2008, Monte Vista Water District submitted comments on the proposed
policy. No other party has submitted comments to date. Monte Vista’s comments have been incorporated
into the draft included in the agenda package.

Proposed Procedure

The memorandum describes the provisions of the Peace Agreement, Peace Il Agreement and the Rules
and Regulations that create the need for the proposed procedure in light of a potential decline in Safe
Yield.

The procedure as proposed in the memorandum specifies that in the event that Operating Safe Yield is
reduced because of a reduction in Safe Yield, Watermaster will follow the Judgment, Exhibit *H", by first
applying the unallocated Agricultural Pool water to compensate for the reduction in Safe Yield. If there is
unallocated water left, Watermaster will then follow the remainder of the hierarchy according to the
guidance provided by Peace Agreement | & |l and the Rules and Regulations, as amended.

Recommendation - Adopt the procedures as described in the attached memorandum and instruct
counsel to include a description of these procedures in the filing to be made in compliance with Condition
Subsequent Number 8.



Brownstein|Hyatt 4 surgic
California Merger
Fa l‘ber I SCh reCk with Hatch & Parent

Memorandum
Michael Fife
805.882.1453 tel
805.965.4333 fax
mfife@bhfs.com

DATE: December 4, 2008

TO: Appropriative Pool

FROM: Michael Fife

Watermaster General Counsel
RE: Proposed Accounting Procedures re Potential Decline in Safe Yield
Background

At the August 6, 2008 Agricultural Pool Reallocation Subcommittee meeting, a proposal was
made concerning the manner in which Watermaster should address the reallocation of surplus
Agricultural Pool water to account for a decline in Safe Yield, should such a decline happen.
Watermaster was requested to memorialize this proposal and to produce spreadsheets showing
the numerical consequences of a range of different allocation proposals.

Below is our attempt to summarize the proposal articulated at the August 6 meeting.
Proposal Description

Pursuant to its stipulation with Monte Vista Water District dated April 25, 2008, Watermaster
committed to, “. . . include in its submittal in compliance to Condition Subsequent Eight, a
comprehensive analysis and explanation of how and whether Watermaster will . . . calculate
replenishment obligations, in light of the model's predicted safe yield decline over time . .. ."
(Stipulation, paragraph 1.)

Watermaster will include the following explanation in its submittal in compliance with Condition
Subsequent Number Eight:

Exhibit “H,” paragraph 10 sets out a hierarchy for the allocation of unallocated Agricultural Pool
water. This hierarchy specifies that such water will first be used to satisfy reductions in Operating
Safe Yield (*OSY") to compensate for any reduction in the Safe Yield (“SY"). Following this, the
water will be used to satisfy conversion claims. Following this, it will be used as a supplement to
0sY.

SB 479767 v1:008350.0001 21 East Carrillo Street | Santa Barbara, CA 93101-2706 805.963.7000 rel 8 3
Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLI' | bhfs.com 805.965.4333 fux




B4

Chino Basin Watermaster Board
July 22, 2008
Page 2

Paragraph 5.3(g) of the Peace Agreement requires that Watermaster approve an “Early Transfer”
of water in an amount of “. . . not less than 32,800 per year. . . ." If Agricultural Pool Production is
less than 50,000 acre-feet, so that there is more than 32,800 acre-feet available, then
Watermaster will only apply that amount to OSY if all land use conversions have been satisfied,
pursuant to Exhibit “H.”

Paragraph 5.3(g) is somewhat ambiguous about how the Early Transfer relates to the hierarchy
described in Exhibit “H." Section 6.3 of the Rules and Regulations was created to specify the
hierarchy as between land use conversion and the Early Transfer. This section had re-opener
provisions and was reconsidered in the Peace Il process. This reconsideration resulted in a
revision to Watermaster Rules and Regulations section 6.3(c¢) and the addition of a section 6.3(d).
(See Watermaster Resolution 2007-05, Attachment “F" (Discretionary Actions to Amend
Watermaster Rules and Regulations).)

Specifically, section 6.3 (¢), as amended, specifies that when the actual combined production
from the Safe Yield made available to the Agricultural Pool, which includes overlying agricultural
pool uses combined with land use conversions and the Early Transfer, exceeds 82,800 in any
year, the amount of water available to members of the Appropriative Pool shall be reduced pro
rata in proportion to the benefits received according to the following procedure:

(1) All the land use conversions and the Early Transfer will be added together, and shall
be the “Potential Acre-Feet Available for Reallocation.”

(2) Each Appropriative Pool member's share of the Potential Acre-Feet Available for
Reallocation shall be determined and expressed as a percentage share of the
Potential Acre-Feet Available for Reallocation (i.e. 2 member's land use conversion
plus its share of the Early Transfer, divided by the total Potential Acre-Feet Available
for Reallocation.)

(3) Each Appropriate Pool member’s share of the Potential Acre-Feet Available for
Reallocation shall then be reduced pro rata according to the percentage determined
in #2 above.

Even with the Peace |l revision, the Watermaster Rules and Regulations did not specifically
address the way in which unallocated Agricultural Pool water will be allocated in the event of a
reduction in SY, which also reduces the OSY.

Absent additional guidance from the parties, in the event that OSY is reduced because of a
reduction in SY, Watermaster will follow the Judgment, Exhibit “H", by first applying the
unallocated Agricultural Pool water to compensate for the reduction in SY. If there is unallocated
water left, Watermaster will then follow the remainder of the hierarchy according to the guidance
provided by Peace Agreement | & Il and the Rules and Regulations, as amended. {Table 3A,
attached here, evidences how this allocation will be calculated based on maximum overlying
agricultural pool production at build-out of 11,000 acre-feet.)

SB 479767 v1:008350.0001



I4v 000'31 ) £ #ReL — 21 Aq paypa -ingrerng By xop pus wyg uo paseg tyliy uanSnpold [0 USHEIT)Y CIROG00Z

R Ty i Lo
Qo

SHLINWHIAaTIm ==
——

SEL8EE’LE- 18N “SA [EUS]0d = Juaw)snipy painbay

9ELBEFER uofjeag|jeay 1o} [Euaod 5587

000°008'L8 pajeao||y ag o} uoflanpold

000°000°02 uajionpay piAIA ajes pajdsfold

000°000°LL uolonpOld (00d By sieBaifify

000°008°28 W6BR (00g By ajeBaifify

000'PEQ'S0L  [0DD'ODD'Z |000'008'MS  OEL'BEE'LE-  SELBEL'ES  OO000B'ZE  P¥BGLI'BE 262851’ |ODO'PER'BY  %000°004 sielo)
L9628 000°0 Lzrove BLZGFL- 00¥'S8E 00%'SBE 0000 0000 055585 %SLLL 1OUISIA Jo1em ASifen 153
TLTYIE'} oo0o  |oviese PPO'ELE- 8L '03§ ¥8£'936 0000 000°0 leerise ws2rL | Auedwog JEIEM PRIEPYOSUDD PUT 1S8M
Jmm.c 428 _|ooon eszEst LeL e 000°5¢2 009z 0000 0000 GSLELE  %0SLD | __ fuedliog sejem sjeis uspion
G16'299°L jooo‘o __|s56'vBY 6BE'E6E- bPE'BLL brE'RLL o000 0000 |beg°2Bl'E  %ElEE ] Auedwop Jalep JBARY EUY EJUES
000°0 |oooo |oooo 000°0 o000 000°0_ 000°0 0000 0000 %0000 (Aued aidwAiQ) Ajunog oujpiewssg ues
620'HE6'} looo'o 165195  EGL6EE- bYE'LO6 FPELOB 0000 0000 |eerese’t  weriE . 7 Auedwo) JajEp ojuojUY UES
BLE¥ |oooo [iert G980 9622 8622 0000 0000 |eere %£00°D i 1SN UOS|OLAIN
0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 %0000 | elebeN
0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 ‘|ooo0 %0000 |  swBieH uoay usig jo Auedwog Jajep EMNK
8E8'EZE'S |oooo  |sE6'EES't ZEVELL')- |L0€S6'2  9I¥'S88'Z  OBSEZL 510°55 LEBEBEY  %i6LB | 1OUISIq 121BAN BISIA B1UOK
SEL'288 ‘loooo |seLzsz 195251 ZSLPOF  ESL'YOb 0000 0000 |zsev18 %PES L . . Auedwog uoneBiuj ejsiA SJUo
000’0 |ooo0 _|oooo 0000 - 0000 0000 0000 0000 _|oooo %0000  E|LUOJI|ED WIALINOS 0 JOUjSIq JSIBAA UBYjodosja
+EL'BER foooo |vizwrz bl Lbl- 096'I6E  096'L6E 0000 0000  [915'G6§  %S6HL . * Auediung sa)EpM (BTN PIOBAIEN
joooo looco |oooo 000°0 0000 0000 000°0 0000 |oooo %0000 “Aouaby sapin adw3 pueju)
Zvo'ezL'El 0000  |28s'ps2'tl  956'808'e-  BELES0'BL  2G6@EEt 0S¥'256'Y SEE'BLB'LL  |09Z°€L8't  %BSLE . 1auis|g sagiuas Ajunwwog edrunp
LE01ES |oooo |oyoozs gL'PLE-  BG9VER 959'0 000°0 000'PE8 |2660 %2000 | Auedwiog Jajem euEIUOS
SLY L6L'B |oooo [sezEeEE 1€ZIpY'L-  OGPEER'E  96FEZE'E 0000 0000 GPLBOS'S  %GOLE | Auedwog J8jep Uojup EUEjUD
2961105 0000 028'L2L L Z9190°L-  ZEYESLT  B2hS9kE 0000 VOE'BES [S¥S'BECE  %L099 . 1ouis|q Ja1Em Aslie efuoweang
bOY'S50'E 0000  |6GOESD'L  /GL'EYS-  862O0LL  852'80L°L 0000 _000°0 |ssezesz  %202S pueidn jo AiQ
LBOELE'YL  [000D  |1GO'0AL'Y f98'8258'cz-  ZIB'BOL'Y ZI6'B0L'D 0000 000°0 |sroEBlOL  %PSFOZ | BUOWO J0 AYD)]
LSE'6L6'VZ (0000 [6BZ'EBS'VL  OpOEZE'8-  SEGGOFEZ  G/E'C0R'S 880°902'GL  LI¥'OBE'L  [89G9EE'0L  %2Pi0Z | olelu o QI
565852 loooe |dozsz BBYSE  pDLOZL v0L'02t 0000 0000 |eBE'ERL %89e°0 oziop Jo A1
LL0'MLT'E oooo |06 tm...r ZI6BS0°L-  ZER'LIBE m_mmmm L BOPISS 9pE'L86 L0L'GL6'L  %ISBE | SiliH oujyD 10 A
2I620R'EL 0000 G2O'0EL'0L  68FZELD-  VLL'G9EDL  GBOELFE BIELRFL 00L°60¥'S  [ZB2'999°E %lGEL | ouD Jo A
0000002 000°000'2 (000'0 0000 0000 0000 [ 0000 ‘[oooo. . wmoooo | ‘Auoyiny Jajjeseq ouyd
0000 0000 Q00’0 000°0 000°0 gooe 0000 |oooo 9%,000°0 Auedwan Jajep Bupds ujgjUnow peaymoLy

{14 }-neze) (JAn}-na3c) [3An}-a120) (24n)-nian) (1A +adac) (44p i3} (tAnpauac) [4Anj-auac) _ {1&n}-aian)
18N 000°'008'2E SU0|SiaAUDD L0-90j0 sB 0D'vER'6Y
s [V]STTY uo[jeao||y SA |B[jU3j0d  UOJEaD||ESY ainjng suQ|si1salon
uojjonpoid |5oL :@auasayiq Jo} |ejjusjod  Jajsued) Aleg |Efjuajod as pue? juawBpnp

1830 Pi2JA MON Jad pjajA ajes jo aleys Jojelidosddy
(othis)+(c)= {al4(2) = (9)+(z)+{¥) =
({50) (o1 (6) (2) (£) (2) {t)

4% 000°L} 40 INO-Piing JE uonanpold |ood jeamnouby Guifjlaap wnwixel uo paseg
INQ-piing 3e syybiy uononpouyd Jojerdoiddy pajoalfold
Ve alqelL



86

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



Ll = 2
CoL)ACadIMCa.

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

Il. BUSINESS ITEMS

E. WATERMASTER PURCHASE AND
SALE AGREEMENT - PROPOSED
PRICE FLOOR AUCTION




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.chwm.org

KENNETH R. MANNING
Chief Executive Officer

STAFF REPORT

DATE: December 11, 2008
December 16, 2008
December 18, 2008

TO: Committee Members
Watermaster Board Members

SUBJECT: Watermaster Purchase and Sale Agreement — Proposed Price Floor Auction

SUMMARY

Background:

Watermaster holds a Court approved purchase and sale agreement to purchase approximately
40,000 acre-feet of water for: (a) desalter replenishment or (b) a storage and recovery project.
Watermaster has been pursuing potential purchaser partners for the storage and recovery opportunity for
more than three years. Multiple parties have expressed interest in storage and recovery generally, and
the Metropolitan Water District (*MWD") is exploring an expansion of the existing Dry Year Yield Program
by up to 50,000 acre-feet. The 40,000 acre-feet presently held within an existing storage account would
not be competitive with the expansion of the MWD Program as it is already within a lawfully authorized
storage account.

Previous staff reports have generally described the Price Floor Auction concept and the subject
has been presented to the Appropriative Pool and Overlying (Non-Agricultural Pool) in September of
2008. Meetings with members of the Appropriative Pool have also taken place in an effort to better
explain the concept and to obtain feedback.

The Western Municipal Water District ("WMWD") has expressed an interest purchasing the water
and providing the base bid under terms generally discussed previously with the members of the
Appropriative and Overlying (Non-Agricultural) Pools. Although all terms are not yet agreed, the deal
points proposed by Watermaster and subject to further input are set forth below.

Should Watermaster fail to issue the required notice to purchase the water in connection with a
storage and recovery project or for desalter replenishment, the purchase and sale agreement would
terminate and the water would be made available to Watermaster and the members of the Appropriative

87



88

Watermaster Purchase and Sale Agreement December 11, 2008

Proposed Price Floor Auction

Pool (Purchase and Sale Agreement H) that are current in assessments and in compliance with the
OBMP (Judgment Amendment to Exhibit G, 9(g).).

Summary of Proposed Deal Points:

1. Quantity: 40,000 acre-feet less 10% dedication to Desalter Replenishment.
2. Price: $600 per acre-foot, subject to increased bid under the auction process.
3. 40,000 acre-foot Storage Account.

(a) Storage Agreement required

(b) Uniform Losses (2%)
(c) $25 per acre-foot

(d) Subject to a five-year credit against the storage fee in an amount equal to the quantity of
water initially purchased from Watermaster in the initial purchase and sale agreement
and then held in storage.

Example: Assume that 36,000 acre-feet is purchased through the purchase and
sale agreement by WMWD or another buyer. Assume further that no water is
extracted in Year One and 6,000 acre-feet is withdrawn from storage in Year
Two. Accordingly, in year one, the buyer would pay $25 per acre-foot for all
40,000 acre-feet of storage, less a complete credit for the 36,000 acre-feet of
water purchased. The net obligation would be $25 x 4,000 acre-feet or $100,000.
Similarly, in Year Two, buyer would pay $25 per acre-foot of storage, less a credit
equal to the quantity of water initially purchased that still remained in storage
(30,000 acre-feet). Therefore, the fee due would be $25 x 10,000 = $250,000.
After the first five-year period, no further credit would be available.

Broad Mutual Benefit Test

If Watermaster intends to proceed with the purchase and sale agreement in connection with a
storage and recovery project, as is proposed in the price floor auction concept, Watermaster must give
first priority to Storage and Recovery Programs that provide "broad mutual benefits." (Peace Agreement
5.2 (c)(iv)(bh).)

Watermaster has taken no position on the subject or approach toward the subject of broad mutual
benefits. However, staff has suggested that the broad mutual benefits test may be met by earmarking
funds for the recharge master plan efforts, or fo capital projects required hereunder. This is permitted by
the Peace Agreement. (See 5.2 ( c){vi) and 5.2( c)(ix).)

Regardless of the approach selected, the members of the Appropriative Pool and the Overlying
(Non-Agricultural) Pool are entitled to the exclusive benefit. (PA Section 5.2 (c )(v).) Given that in the
instant case, the Overlying (Non-Ag) obtain the revenue from the underlying option price, the balance of
the proceeds may be properly earmarked to Watermaster for the benefit of the Appropriative Pool.



Watermaster Purchase and Sale Agreement

Proposed Price Floor Auction

Timing.

-—

m

SLeNG

0.

November 18, 2008: Distribute draft agreement to Western, TVMWD and IEUA.

December 11, 2008. Obtain WMWD approval of distribution draft.

December 11, 2008: Attain Appropriative Pool conceptual approval of key terms and price auction
process.

December 2008 - January 2009: Presentation of “discussion of final draft of agreement™ Pool,
Advisary Committee, and Board meetings.

January 15: Determination of broad benefits by Appropriative Pool and Overlying (Non-
Agricultural) Pool.

January 29, 2009: Final approval of proposed agreement.

February 1-2, 2008: Conceptual presentation of storage agreement.

March 1 — April 30, 2009: Marketing.

March 1 — April 30, 2009: Final Court approval of storage agreement.

May 15, 2009: Auction.

Recommendations

1.

Proceed with the price floor auction process and complete negotiation and documentation of base
bid with WMWD on a schedule acceptable to the Pools and Watermaster but no later than
January 20, 2009.

Proceed to schedule a process for making a recommendation to Watermaster as to the proposed
“broad mutual benefit” to be received by the storage and recovery project no later than January
20, 2009.

December 11, 2008

83



99

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



Administrative Draft: 11/18/08

CHINO BASIN GROUNDWATER RESOURCES AUCTION PRICE FLOOR
AGREEMENT

This Chino Basin Groundwater Resources Auction Price Floor Agreement
(“Agreement”) is made by and between the Chino Basin Watermaster, a Court-appointed
groundwater basin management entity (“Watermaster”) and Western Municipal Water District of
Riverside County, a retail and wholesale California municipal water district (“Western™), and is
effective as of the date last signed by a Party (“Effective Date”). The term “Buyer” as used
herein shall refer to the buyer at Auction (as defined in Recital __ herein) which may or may not
be Western and may or may not occur under this Agreement. To the extent Western purchases
the Groundwater Resources (as defined in Section 2, herein) under this Agreement and not as the
Selected Bidder at Auction (as defined in the Bid Documents attached hereto as Exhibit “ ),
Western shall be considered the “Buyer” and the terms of this Agreement shall govern all
transactions between Western and Watermaster: Watermaster and Western are sometimes
referred to herein collectively as “Parties” and individually as “Party.”

RECITALS

A. In 1978, the San Bemnardino Superior Court entered judgment on Case No.
164327 (now designated No. RCV 51010), Chino Basin Municipal Water District v. City of
Chino (the “Judgment™). The Judgment is a plenary adjudication of all rights to groundwater and
storage capacity within the Chino Basin and established a physical solution to provide ongoing
management of the Chino Basin water resources and an equitable and feasible method of
allocating the cost of importing supplemental water to achieve a hydrologic balance within
Chino Basin. The Judgment adjudicated the rights of several hundred overlying landowners as
well as several substantial industrial and commercial producers of water for use on their
overlying lands, and within the cities, public water districts, utilities, and mutual water
companies that provide water service within and adjacent to the Chino Basin.

B. The Judgment authorized the appointment of a Watermaster with the express
powers and duties as provided for in the Judgment or as the Court may subsequently order
pursuant to its continuing jurisdiction. Watermaster holds no rights to produce groundwater, but
is the entity responsible for monitoring and regulating the production of groundwater within the
basin under the Judgment.

C. Each of the defendants named in the Judgment is a water producer or other water
claimant or public water district within the Chino Basin. Each such defendant has been
identified as a member of one of the following three groups: (1) Overlying (Agricultural)
Producers, possessing lands overlying the Chino Basin and producing water from the basin for
agricultural uses on overlying lands; (2) Overlying (Non-Agricultural) Producers (the “Non-Ag
Pool”), possessing lands overlying Chino Basin, producing water from the basin for use on
overlying lands for other than agricultural purposes; and (3) Appropriators, producing water
from Chino Basin pursuant to appropriative or prescriptive rights.

D. On June 29, 2000, the Non-Ag Pool entered into the Chino Basin Peace
Agreement (“Peace Agreement”) with various other Chino Basin right holders. The Peace
Agreement enabled Watermaster to adopt and implement the Optimum Basin Management

SB 489702 v4:008350.0001

PN



92

Administrative Draft: 11/18/08

Program (“OBMP™), a comprehensive program to monitor, develop, and manage groundwater
and storage capacity in the Chino Basin. The Peace Agreement grants Watermaster significant
authority to regulate storage and recovery programs in the Chino Basin. Specifically, Section
5.2(a)(i) provides that “all storage capacity shall be subject to regulation and control by
Watermaster.” Under Section 5.2(c)(ix), Watermaster “reserves complete discretion” over any
proposed storage and recovery program involving non-parties to the Judgment. Additionally,
Section 5.3(e) provides that “parties to the Judgment with rights within the [Non-Ag Pool] shall
have the additional rights to Transfer their rights to Watermaster for the purposes of
Replenishment for a Desalter or for a Storage and Recovery Program.”

E. On September 21, 2007, Watermaster entered into a Purchase and Sale
Agreement with the Non-Ag Pool. Under the terms of this agreement, Watermaster purchased
an amount of water from the Non-Ag Pool equivalent to the total quantity of water held in
storage by the Non-Ag Pool on June 30, 2007, less a ten percent dedication for Desalter
Replenishment, less an additional quantity of water transferred to the San Antonio Water
Company (SAWCO) and Vulcan Materials.

F. On October 25, 2007, the Non-Ag Pool entered into the Chino Basin Peace II
Agreement (“Peace II”) with various other Chino Basin right holders to confirm support for
Watermaster’s OBMP. As part of Peace II, Exhibit G to the Judgment was amended to grant
members of the Non-Ag Pool “the discretionary right to transfer or lease their quantified
production rights and carry-over water held in storage accounts ... to Watermaster in
conformance with the procedures described in the Peace Agreement between the parties therein.”
On the same date, Paragraph 8 of the Judgment was similarly amended to grant members of the
Non-Ag Pool the “right to-transfer or lease their quantified production rights to Watermaster in
conformance with the procedures described in the Peace Agreement between the parties therein.”
In conjunction with Watermaster’s “complete discretion” under the Peace Agreement to enter
into Storage and Recovery Programs with non-parties to the Judgment, these Peace II
amendments authorize Watermaster tp purchase or lease water rights from the Non-Ag Pool to
remarket those rightsto other entities such as Western.

G. Watermaster intends to sellby auction the sole and exclusive contractual right and
interest to certain Chino Basin related Groundwater Resources, as expressly defined in Section 2,
herein.

H. Subject to Sulbsection herein, it is Watermaster’s intention to hold one
auction on [DATE] (as described in Section 9) by which it will offer for sale the Groundwater
Resources (“Auction”).

L Western desires to purchase the Groundwater Resources and seeks, by this
Agreement, to establish (i) the purchase terms for the Groundwater Resources at Auction; and
(i) the price Western will pay for the Groundwater Resources if Watermaster does not obtain a
Higher Conforming Bid (as defined in Section 3 herein) at Auction.

L Watermaster and Western intend that the Groundwater Resources purchased by

Western pursuant to this Agreement, if any, may be used or sold by Western, subject to the terms
and conditions set forth herein.

SB 489702 v4:008350.0001



Administrative Draft; 11/18/08

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and
agreements hereinafter set forth, and for other good and valuable consideration (the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged), the Parties agree as follows:

1. Incorporation by Reference. The above Recitals and Exhibits hereto are incorporated
herein by this reference.

2. Price; Purchase Terms.

2l

2.2

This Agreement establishes the minimum price (“Minimum Price”) and purchase
terms for the Groundwater Resources at Auction if Western becomes the Buyer.
With the exception of the Minimum Price, and other terms specific to this
Agreement, the material terms of this Agreement will be offered to any other
Buyer under the applicable Groundwater Resources Auction Agreement (as
defined in Subsection 9.4 herein) entered into between Watermaster and such
other Buyer.

The Groundwater Resources are further defined as follows:

N |

222

229 3

224

220

2.2.6

Forty thousand (40,000) acre-feet of Non-Ag Pool groundwater
(“Groundwater™), less ten percent (10%) which shall be permanently
dedicated to Desalter Replenishment, for a net amount of 36,000 acre-feet
of groundwater available for immediate extraction from the Chino Basin;
and

E;;clusﬁe use of forty thousand (40,000) acre-feet of storage capacity
(“Storage Capacity”) in the Chino Basin for storage and subsequent
extraction of stored water, for a term of 30 years; and

The Grouﬁdwater_aﬂd-Sto'r’agc Capacity are collectively referred to as
“Groundwater Resources™); and

The 36,000 acre-feet of the available 40,000 acre-feet of Storage Capacity
shall'be considered initially occupied as of the Closing Date. The volume
of Storage Capacity occupied and useable at any time shall be based upon
the use of the Groundwater and the subsequent replenishment and use of
other water stored over time, pursuant to Watermaster’s accounting; and

The Groundwater Resources are taken subject to the Court’s ongoing
jurisdiction under the terms of the Judgment and Watermaster’s ongoing
authority subject to the Judgment and the Court’s jurisdiction.

The Groundwater Resources do not include access to facilities either to
extract Groundwater from or replenish water in the Storage Capacity of
the Chino Basin.

3. Challenge to Rights of Third-Party. Except as provided in Subsection 9.8 herein,
Western commits and agrees not to appeal, contest, enjoin, protest or otherwise challenge the

SB 489702 v4:008350.0001

3

93



94

Administrative Draft: 11/18/08

Auction or sale of the Groundwater Resources to a third party that (i) is a Qualified Bidder, (ii)
submits a Conforming Bid at Auction, and (iii) closes on such Conforming Bid within the time
frame specified in Subsection 9.9 herein. The terms “Qualified Bidder,” “Higher Conforming
Bid” and “Conforming Bid” are further defined in the Instructions to Bidders. Instructions to
Bidders along with the Qualified Bidder Form, Bid Form, Bid Confirmation Form, Groundwater
Resources Auction Agreement and Groundwater Resources Auction Escrow Agreement
(collectively, “Bid Documents™) are attached hereto as Exhibit*_ .”

4, Interference with Auction. Except for Western’s right to challenge a bid as set forth in
Subsection 9.8 herein, Western commits and agrees that it shall not take any action to disrupt,
delay, enjoin or otherwise interfere with the timing and conduct of the Auction or disseminate
any information regarding the Auction without the knowledge and consent of Watermaster.
Western further commits and agrees to refer all inquiries it receives regarding the Auction to
Watermaster and to cooperate with Watermaster in formulating mutually-acceptable materials
for public disclosure in connection with the Auction. Western covenants, that it will not
collaborate, collude or conspire with any other bidders or third parties to fix or otherwise affect
the bid price at Auction. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall preclude Western
from conferring with third parties about the Auction or the Groundwater Resources as part of its
due diligence efforts or investigation of the potential uses for or assignment of the Groundwater
Resources or any interest therein. «Watermaster acknowledges that Western may have
discussions with developers and other third parties regarding acquisition of all or some portion of
Western’s potential interest in the Groundwater Resources and that such discussions do not
constitute a violation of this Section 4 or any other provision of this Agreement.

e Minimum Price. Subject to Western’ s-tefmination rights under Subsections and
herein, if Watermaster does not Close with a Higher Conforming Bid at Auction from Western or
another bidder, Western agrees to purchase from Watermaster and Watermaster agrees to sell to
Western, subject to the payment terms described herein and otherwise pursuant to the terms of
this Agreement, the Groundwater Resources for the following (“Minimum Price”):

5.1 $600.00 per acre-foot for Groundwater, for a total of $21,600,000 ($600 per acre-
foot times 36,000 acre-feet) (“Groundwater Purchase Price™); and

5.2,  $25 per acre-foot per year, adjusted annually according to the index described
below, for Storage Capacity (“Storage Payment”). The Storage Payment shall be
due and payable annually subject to the following:

5.2.1 "Upon the Closing Date, and each annual anniversary thereafter up to but
not including the fifth anniversary of the Closing Date, for each acre-foot
“of Storage Capacity that is available for recharge after extraction of each
acre-foot of the Groundwater (“Available Storage Capacity”). Upon the
Closing Date, 4,000 acre-feet of Available Storage Capacity is
immediately available for recharge as a result of the 10% Desalter
Replenishment. Thus, at Closing, the first Storage Payment shall be
$100,000 (4,000 acre-feet multiplied by $25 per acre-foot). As an
additional example, if during the first year following the Closing Date,
10,000 acre-feet of the Groundwater has been extracted (in addition to the

4

SB 489702 v4:008350.0001



Administrative Draft: 11/18/08

initial 4,000 acre-feet of Desalter Replenishment), the Storage Payment
shall be the product of 14,000 acre-feet multiplied by the applicable
Indexed Storage Fee, as defined in Section 5.2.4 herein; and

5.2.2 On the fifth anniversary of the Closing Date and annually thereafter
through the term of this Agreement, the Storage Payment shall be equal to
the product of 40,000 acre-feest multiplied by the applicable Indexed
Storage Fee; and

5.2.3 The Storage Payment shall be due and payable annually on the
anniversary of the Closing Date, whether or not the Storage Capacity is
actually used for replenishment; and

5.2.4 The per acre-foot Storage Payment shall be adjusted annually prior to
calculating the then due and payable Storage Payment, according to the
{SET INDEX} (“Indexed Storage Fee™).

6. Form and Timing of Payments. All payments for the Groundwater Resources shall be
made in cash or cash equivalent on the schedule set forth in this Agreement and in accordance
with the terms of the “Minimum Price Escrow Agreement” among Watermaster, Western and
XXXX (“Escrow Agent”). The Minimum Price Escrow Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit
“ 7. Watermaster and Western shall execute and deliver the Minimum Price Escrow
Agreement to the Escrow Agent no later than the Closing Date. Where payments are required,
actual payment is to be made in accordance with the Minimum Price Escrow Agreement, or the
Auction Escrow Agreement; as applicable. ‘Watermaster shall be solely responsible for all
escrow fees and escrow.expenses incurred by Escrow Agent in discharging its duties under the
Minimum Price Escrow Agreement.

7. Term. The term- qf this/Agreement shall’ commence on the Effective Date and shall
terminate as provided in Section 20 herein.

8. Breakup Fee. In the event this Agreement terminates because Watermaster closes on a
Higher Conforming Bid for the Groundwater Resources within the time provided in Subsection
9.9 herein, Western shall receive in the manner set forth in the Groundwater Resources Auction
Escrow Agreement a “Breakup Fee” from Watermaster as follows: [[0% of every payment
Watermaster receives fromeuyer for the Groundwater Resources under the Groundwater
Resources Auction Agreement; provided, however, that Western shall receive a minimum of
$  within three years of the Closing Date (“Minimum Breakup Fee”). If
Western’s total share of the payments received by Watermaster for the Groundwater Resources
during this three year period is less than Minimum Breakup Fee, Watermaster shall pay any
deficit to Western on or before the third anniversary of the Closing Date. Any such “deficit
payment” by Watermaster shall be deducted from Western’s 10% share of the next payment(s)
received by Watermaster for the Groundwater Resources until the deficit payment is recouped in
full by Watermaster. The Breakup Fee shall not apply if Western is the Buyer or if Western
exercises its right under Subsection 20.1(i) herein to terminate this Agreement.

9, Auction.

SB 489702 v4:008350.0001

w1



QR

9.1

9.2

9:3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

Administrative Draft; 11/18/08

Date. Watermaster shall conduct an Auction of the Groundwater Resources on
[DATE].

Notice. Watermaster shall provide written notice of the date of the Auction (via
postings, press releases, email, website, newspaper or other means calculated to
reach potential bidders, including Western) at least 30 days prior to the Auction
date.

Disclosure of Agreement. This Agreement shall be disclosed to potential bidders
along with the notice provided in Section 9.2, above.

Terms. The form of purchase agreement to be used at Auction in the event
Watermaster closes on a Higher Conforming Bid at Auction with either Western
or another bidder is included in the Bid Documents attached hereto as Exhibit
“ 7 (“Groundwater Resources Auction Agreement”).

Opening Bids. Subject to Subsection 9.7 herein, all bids for the Groundwater
Resources at Auction shall be not less than $675 per acre-foot for Groundwater
and $30 per acre-foot per year for Storage Capacity (“Minimum Auction Bid”).
Any bid (a) to purchase only a portion of the Groundwater Resources, (b) to
purchase on terms different than the Groundwater Resources Auction Agreement,
(c) that is not in conformance with the Bid Documents, or (d) that is made by a
person other than a Qualified Bidder, shall be rejected as a nonconforming bid.

Participants. . Any Qualified *Bidder, including Western, may participate in the
Auction. ~* The. bidder qualification requirements are set forth in the Bid
Documents.

Procedure. Pursuant-to the Bid Documents, Watermaster has (i) determined the
Auction structure; (ii) developed-the Instructions to Bidders, and (iii) set forth the
standard:for Qualified Bidders. Pursuant to the Bid Documents, Watermaster
shall (i) identify Qualified Bidders at Auction, (ii) identify Conforming Bids at
Auction, (iii) conduct the Auction, and (iv) determine the Selected Bidder. For
purposes of the Auction, Western shall be deemed a Qualified Bidder, this
Agreement shall be deemed its sealed, Conforming Bid for the terms described in
this. Agreement in round one (sealed bids) of the Auction, and Western shall be
eligible to participate in round two (oral bids) of the Auction. In the event that
Western is'the Selected Bidder at Auction, Western shall timely comply with the
requirements to close its bid set forth in the Bid Documents, and shall also deliver
to the Escrow Agent an original, fully-completed and executed Groundwater
Resources Auction Escrow Agreement (with exhibits) on or before the deadline
specified in the Instructions to Bidders. If Western is the Selected Bidder and
fails to timely close its bid in the manner and time-frame specified in the Bid
Documents and in accordance with the Groundwater Resources Auction
Agreement, Western shall pay Watermaster the Minimum Breakup Fee within 10
business days of the deadline specified in the Instructions to Bidders as negotiated
and agreed upon liquidated damages for its failure to consummate the transaction

6

SB 489702 v4:008350.0001



9.8

9.9

Administrative Draft: 11/18/08

contemplated by its bid at Auction, the parties hereby agreeing that said amount is
a reasonable forecast of just compensation for the harm that may be caused
Watermaster as a result of Western’s failure to close on its bid and that
Watermaster’s harm in the event of Western’s failure to close on its bid would be
incapable of accurate estimation or very difficult to estimate accurately. Unless
this Agreement terminates as provided in Section 20, payment of said liquidated
damages shall not relieve Western of its obligation to close on this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Subsection 9.9 herein in the event that Watermaster
is either unable to close on a Higher Conforming Bid at Auction or timely elects
to close this Agreement.

Disclosure of Buyer/Bid. At the conclusion of the Auction, Watermaster shall (i)
post the name of the Selected Bidder outside the Watermaster office and on
Watermaster’s Auction website, and (ii) provide. Western with a copy of the bid
selected by Watermaster, the Bid Form, Bid Confirmation Form (if applicable),
Qualified Bidder Form, the Groundwater Resources Auction Agreement, and the
Groundwater Resources Auction Escrow Agreement to be entered into between
the Selected Bidder and Watermaster. Western ‘must notify Watermaster in
writing within 10 business days of receipt by Western of the selected bid if it
intends to challenge the bid, and Watermaster shall not close with the Selected
Bidder until the expiration of such 10-business-day period and not thereafter
pending the final resolution of any challenge brought by Western under this
Section 9. Otherwise, Western shall be deemed/to have waived its right to
challenge the selected bid. The only basis upon which Western may challenge the
selected bid-is Watermaster’s alleged failure to comply with this Section 9. Any
challengeg to the selected bid will be subject to the dispute resolution provisions in
Section__ herein and the remedial provisions in Section __ herein.

Closing Date. Subject to the provisions of Subsection 9.8 herein, the Buyer shall
have 20 business days from the Auction date to close its bid with Watermaster. In
the event the Buyer does not timely close, Watermaster shall immediately notify
m writing the next highest/bidder, with a bid that is equal to or greater than the
Minimum  Auction Bid. If the next highest bidder, with a bid that is equal to or
greater than the Minimum Auction Bid fails to close its bid within 20 business
days of receipt of Watermaster’s written notice, subject to the provisions of
Subsection 9.8 herein, Watermaster shall immediately notify the next such highest
bidder, with a bid that is equal to or greater than the Minimum Auction Bid, in
writing, until a close is timely effected. If ultimately no close is timely effected,
Watermaster shall so notify Western in writing within 5 days of the final date on
which Watermaster was entitled to close with another Buyer, and Western shall
close within 10 business days of receipt of Watermaster’s written notice;
provided, however, Western shall have the sole and absolute discretion whether to
close if the Watermaster’s written notice is not delivered on or before the 60th day
after the Auction date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Watermaster reserves the
right to waive any and all bids and to close the Agreement by notice to Western,
and, in such event, Western shall have 10 business days from receipt of
Watermaster’s written notice to close on this Agreement; provided, however,

7

SB 489702 v4:008350.0001

97



98

Administrative Draft: 11/18/08

Western shall have the sole and absolute discretion whether to close if the
Watermaster’s written notice is not delivered on or before the 60th day after the
Auction date. The date of closing with the Buyer as the case may be is referred to
herein as the “Closing Date”.

9.10 Closing Location. Closing will take place in the office of the Watermaster, 9641
San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 commencing at 10:00 a.m.
Pacific Standard Time.

10.  Groundwater Resources; Payment Timing. In the event Watermaster does not receive
a Higher Conforming Bid at Auction or no close is timely effected with a bidder other than
Western, subject to the terms of Subsection 9.9 herein, Western shall purchase from Watermaster
the Groundwater Resources for the Minimum Price under the terms of this Agreement.

10.1 Payment Options.

16.1.1

10.1.2

10.1.3

Concurrent with the Closing Date, Western shall pay Watermaster either:
a) a lump sum equal to the Groundwater Purchase Price and the first
Storage Payment; or b) the first payment pursuant to the “Payment Stream
Option,” defined below.

As an alternative to the lump sum payment, concurrent with the Closing,
Western may elect to pay Watermaster, 25% of the sum of the
Groundwater Purchase Price and first year Storage Payment, and finance
the remaining balance over a period of five years from the Closing Date
(the “Payment Stream Option”). If Western elects the Payment Stream
Option, Watermaster shall finance the balance of the money owed at a rate
of interest equal to the then-prevailing Federal 5-Year Treasury Rate plus
2%, compounded quarterly. Payments will be due and payable quarterly,
with the first payment due exactly three months after the Closing Date,
and the final payment due on the fifth anniversary of the Closing Date,

according to amortization schedule attached as Exhibit “__”; and

Annually, on the anniversary of each Closing Date during the term,
Western shall pay to Watermaster the then applicable Storage Payment.

10.2 Taxes and Liabilities.

10.2.1

10.2.2

SB 489702 v4:008350.0001

Transfer Tax. In the unlikely event that there is are taxes associated with
Watermaster’s sale of the Groundwater Resources, Watermaster shall be
responsible for payment of such taxes in accordance with the terms of the
Minimum Price Escrow Agreement or within 30 days of identification of
such transfer tax(es) by Western.

Existing Liabilities. To the extent that there are any existing liabilities
applicable to the Groundwater Resources prior to the Closing Date,
Watermaster shall be responsible for payment of such existing liabilities in



Administrative Draft: 11/18/08

accordance with the terms of the Minimum Price Escrow Agreement or
within 30 days of the identification of such existing liabilities by Western.

11.  Extraction of Groundwater Resources. If Western becomes the Buyer of the
Groundwater Resources under this Agreement, concurrent with the Closing, Watermaster shall
provide Western with a true and correct copy of Watermaster’s annual report that quantifies and
certifies that: (i) the total acre-feet of Groundwater subject to this Agreement is available to be
recovered by Western, (ii) the total Storage Space necessary to retain the Groundwater and any
subsequent replenishment up to the Storage Capacity shall remain available in the Chino Basin;
and (iii) a copy of the Court approved storage agreement for 40,000 acre-feet. Each year
thereafter, Western shall have the right to extract the Groundwater in whole or in part as set forth
in this Section 11.

11.1 Limitations on Extraction of Groundwater. Western shall make whatever
arrangements as may be required to access and extract the Groundwater and
utilize the Storage Capacity, subject to the terms of the Judgment and
Watermaster’s oversight.

11.2 Requirements for Court Approval. Western must obtain Court approval, as
may be appropriate, to implement a storage and recovery plan to make use of the
Groundwater Resources. Watermaster shall make every reasonable effort to
facilitate such approval, provided Western’s implementation plans are consistent
with the Judgment.

12. Security Interests. If Western becomes the Buyer of the Groundwater Resources under
this Agreement, Watermaster shall have all of the rights and remedies provided to a secured
party in law or equity under the laws of the State of California with respect to the security
interests, liens or other security granted it in this Section 12 or in any of the Documents to secure
Western’s payment obligations under the Documents. Western hereby irrevocably authorizes
Watermaster at any time (and from time to time) to file and/or record in any jurisdiction any
UCC-1 financing statements or other documents and amendments thereto in order to reflect,
preserve and perfect the liens and security interests granted to it in this Section 12 and in the
Documents. Western shall execute and deliver to Watermaster, upon request from time to time,
such additional documents and grants as Watermaster may require relative to the liens and/or
security interests granted it in this Section 12 and the Documents. In order to secure Western’s
obligations with respect to the unpaid purchase price for any Groundwater Resources purchased
hereunder, Western hereby grants to Watermaster a first priority security interest in and to such
Groundwater Resources. Western shall not grant any other security interest, lien or other
encumbrance in and to any Groundwater Resources without the prior written consent of
Watermaster.

13.  Watermaster Responsibilities.

13.1 Authority to Sell. It is expressly understood by the Parties that Watermaster
assumes no responsibility under this Agreement to arrange for Western’s ability
to make use of the Groundwater Resources, other than making reasonable efforts
to facilitate any Court approval consistent with the terms of the Judgment.

9

SB 485702 v4:008350.0001

99



109

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

Administrative Draft: 11/18/08

Nothing contained herein shall relieve Western of the obligation to conduct its
own due diligence prior to entering into this Agreement.

No Guarantee of Water Resources Reliability. If Western becomes the Buyer

of the Groundwater Resources under this Agreement, it is expressly
acknowledged that this Agreement memorializes a transaction involving the sale
of Groundwater Resources to Western for use by Western as a reliable water
supply. This Agreement does not, by its express terms or by implication,
constitute (in whole or part) any grant, issuance, decision, order, permit, finding,
conclusion, holding, recommendation, approval, determination or other form of
governmental action as to any other matter whatsoever. Western expressly
acknowledges and agrees that Watermaster hereby gives no express or implied
assurances or guarantees of any kind as to the outcome of any reliance upon the
Groundwater Resources for planning purposes, including the preparation or
validity of water supply assessments, water supply verifications, or environmental
impact reports or analyses which may include such water supply reliability
analyses.

Due Diligence. Each Party expressly acknowledges that it has been provided the
opportunity to inspect and make such investigations regarding this Agreement
(including, but not limited to, the Groundwater Resources), and has performed
such due diligence inspections and investigations thereof and of its suitability for
such Party’s purposes (including review of documents and information provided
by or on behalf of the other Party and interviews with the other Party’s employees
and consultants)jas such Party deems appropriate, necessary and prudent for such
Party-to.enter into this Agreement and consummate the transaction contemplated
hereunder.

Physical Delivery. of zWater. _Western expressly acknowledges that this

“Agreement provides ‘Western with a contractual right to the Groundwater

Resources;, provided however, this Agreement provides Western with no
independent physical access to make use of the Groundwater Resources. It is
Western’s sole'and exclusive responsibility to arrange for such physical access as
Western determines is necessary and appropriate to make use of the Groundwater
Resources. Western expressly acknowledges and agrees that such access must be
consistent wit]i the Judgment and may require court approval.

Storage and Recovery Facilities. Western expressly acknowledges that this
Agreement provides Western with no independent right to construct, operate,
maintain or repair any facilities, including but not limited to, groundwater wells,
recharge facilities, or conveyance facilities. It is Western’s sole and exclusive
responsibility to arrange for such access to such facilities as Western determines
is necessary and appropriate to make use of the Groundwater Resources. Western
expressly acknowledges and agrees that such access and use of such facilities
must be consistent with the Judgment and may require court approval.

10

SB 489702 v4:008350.0001



Administrative Draft: 11/18/08

14. Watermaster’s Representations, Warranties and Covenants. Watermaster represents,
warrants and covenants to Western as follows:

14.1

14.2

143

14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

14.8

14.9

14.10

Watermaster is an entity authorized under the Judgment with a nine-member
Board appointed by the Superior Court of San Bernardino County to account for
and implement the management of the Chino Basin.

Watermaster has the authority to dispose of the Groundwater Resources subject
to, and in accordance with, the requirements of the Judgment and applicable law.

Watermaster is duly authorized to conduct the Auction, select and administer all
Auction procedures, bidder and bid requirements, and determine the Buyer at
Auction based on the bidder and bid requirements.

Watermaster is authorized to execute this Agreement, and subject to the Court
approval(s) that may be required to implement this Agreement, no further actions
or approvals (including actions by members of the Non-Ag Pool) are necessary
before execution of this Agreement. :

Neither the execution and delivery of this. Agreement, nor Watermaster’s
performance of its obligations hereunder, shall breach any known obligation, right
or interest of a third party, regulatory agency, Watermaster Party or other
governing body with authority over Watermaster.

The Offered Groundwater Resources have not been, and shall not during the term
of this Agreement be, pledged ‘'or committed to any other use by Watermaster
(exceptas otherwise provided herein).

This is the only agreement entered into by Watermaster that will set a price floor
for the Auction. “Watermaster-has'not, and shall not, enter into any other similar
agreement priorto Auction.

Watermaster has provided, or otherwise made available, to Western true and
accurate copies of all material information in its possession relevant to the
Groundwater Resources.

This ‘Agreement does not involve the offer for sale or sale of any “security”
pursuant. to-any state or federal securities law, rule or regulation, and that neither
this Agreement or the Groundwater Resources sold herein, nor the offer or sale of
either, “will require registration under the federal Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or any state securities or “blue sky” law, rule or regulation.

No warrant, either express or implied, is made as to the water quality of the
Groundwater or the water that may be introduced into the Storage Capacity for
subsequent recapture. The Parties expressly acknowledge that areas of the Chino
Basin have compromised quality, and extraction of groundwater, including the
Groundwater, may require subsequent treatment before being fit for human
consumption.

11

SB 489702 v4:008350.0001

1



407

Administrative Draft: 11/18/08

15. Western’s Representations, Warranties and Covenants. Western represents, warrants
and covenants to Watermaster as follows:

15.1 Western is a retail and wholesale California water agency duly organized, validly
existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of California.

15.2 Western has the authority to participate in the Auction, execute and deliver this
Agreement, and perform its obligations hereunder, and all such actions have been
duly authorized and approved by all necessary partnership action.

15.3 Western has received all consents required in order for it to execute, deliver and
perform its obligations under this Agreement.

154 To the best of Western’s knowledge, neither the execution and delivery of this
Agreement nor Western’s performance of its.obligations hereunder shall breach
any (i) provision of Western’s governing documents, (ii) resolution adopted by
Western’s governing body, (iii) law, regulation or order to which Western may be
subject; or (iv) contract to which Western is a party.or to which it may be bound.

15.5 To the best of Western’s knowledge, thereis no pending litigation against
Western or any of its partners that may affect its ability to close on this
Agreement or to perform its obligations hereunder.

15.6 Western has not colluded or conspired withvany person or entity to fix the price or
terms for the Groundwater Resources.

16.  Dispute Resolution. Upon the occurrence of any dispute or disagreement between the
Parties hereto arising out'of, or inconnection with, any term or provision of this Agreement, the
subject matter hereof, or-the interpretation or enforcement hereof (“Dispute”), the Parties shall
engage in informal, good faith-discussions and-attempt to resolve the Dispute. In connection
therewith, upon written notice of either Party each of the Parties will appoint a designated officer
whose task it shall be tomeet for the purpose of attempting to resolve such Dispute. The
designated officers shall ‘meet as often’as the Parties shall deem to be reasonably necessary.
Quch officers will discuss the Dispute. If the Parties are unable to resolve the Dispute in
accordance with this Section 16 within 30 days (or such other period mutually agreed to by
Western and Watermaster, not to exceed 90 days), and in the event that either of the Parties
concludes in good faith that amicable resolution through continued negotiation with respect to
the Dispute is not teasonably likely, then the Parties agree to submit to mediation. The
mediation shall be held under the commercial mediation rules of the American Arbitration
Association. The matter in dispute shall be submitted to a mediator mutually selected by the
Parties. In the event the Parties cannot agree upon the selection of a mediator within 7 days, then
within 3 days thereafter the Parties shall jointly request the Judge administering the Judgment to
appoint an independent mediator. The mediator selected shall have at least 5 years’ experience
in mediating or arbitrating disputes. The cost of any such mediation shall be divided equally
among the Parties. The results of the mediation shall be nonbinding on the Parties, and any Party
shall thereafter be free to initiate litigation pursuant to paragraph 15 of the Judgment.

12

SB 489702 v4:008350.0001



17.

Administrative Draft; 11/18/08

Termination of Agreement.

17.1

17.2

157.3

17.4

Automatic Termination. This Agreement shall automatically terminate, and
neither Party shall thereafter have any further obligations or responsibilities to the
other Party except as expressly set forth herein, upon the first of the following
dates to occur: (i) the date Western elects to terminate this Agreement because
Buyer has failed to timely close and Watermaster has deferred closing on the
Agreement for at least 60 days after the Auction date to complete the process
specified in Subsection 9.9 herein, (ii) the date Watermaster closes on an
Groundwater Resources Auction Agreement based on a Higher Conforming Bid
for the Offered Groundwater Resources submitted by Western or another bidder
at Auction (provided the closing is timely under Subsection 9.9 herein); (iii) the
date each of the Parties has completed in full its obligations under this Agreement
or (iv) 5:00 p.m. Pacific Standard Time on [DATE].

Termination by Party. This Agreement may be terminated (i) by mutnal
consent of the Parties; (ii) by either Party if the other Party is in breach of a
material provision of this Agreement, including without limitation, the failure to
hold the Auction as set forth in Subsection 9.1 herein, and the breach has not been
(a) cured within 45 days of receipt of written notice reasonably detailing the
breach; provided, however, such cure period shall not apply to the obligation to
close on or before the Closing Date or to hold the Auction in Accordance with
Section 9.1 herein; (b) resolved pursuant to the Dispute Resolution process in
Section 19 herein; (c) waived in writing by the.non-breaching Party; or (iii) by
either Party in the event any of<Sections herein are held to be
invalid or unenforceable. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the non-breaching Party
may not terminate ‘this Agreement if the material breach is curable but cannot be
cured within the 45-day period set forth above for reasons beyond the control of
the breaching Party, and the breaching Party is diligently pursuing reasonable
effortsito cure such breach:

Effect of Termination. The right to terminate as set forth in Subsection
herein shall be in addition to any other rights that may be available to Western or
Watermaster in law or equity and shall not be construed as an election of
remedies.

Procedures.Upon Termination. The termination of this Agreement shall not
relieve either Party of any liability that accrued prior to such termination. Subject
to the terms of Subsection 17.3 and Section 18 herein, upon the termination of this
Agreement all of the provisions of this Agreement shall terminate and, if Western
purchased the Groundwater Resources under this Agreement:

17.4.1 Western shall, within 30 days from the date of termination relinquish to
Watermaster in a written notice (“Notice”) all rights and interest in the
Groundwater Resources.

13

SB 489702 v4:008350.0001

103



Administrative Draft; 11/18/08

17.4.2 Watermaster shall, within 30 days of receipt of the Notice, (i) refund to
Western the money received by Watermaster for the Groundwater
Resources (without interest except as provided in Subsection herein).

18.  Survival. Each of the following shall survive the termination of this Agreement: (a)
Section __ herein (Breakup Fee), Section _ herein (Security Interests), Section  herein
(Watermaster Responsibilities), Section _ herein (Watermaster’s Representations, Warranties
and Covenants), Section _ herein (Western’s Representations, Warranties and Covenants),
Section __ herein (Dispute Resolution), Section  herein (Remedies), and Section
herein (Indemnification); (b) Subsection herein (Procedure), Subsection herein (Taxes
and Liabilities), Subsection herein ( (Taxes and Liabilities), Subsection herein
(Procedures upon Termination); Subsection herein (Assignments; Successors; No Third-
Party Rights), Subsection ~ herein (Governmg Law), <Subsection ..  herein (Notices),
Subsection __ herein (No Liability), Subsection . . herein (Cooperation and Further
Documentation), Subsection _ herein (Cooperation in the Event of Third-Party Litigation);
and (c) those provisions, and the rights and obligations therein, set forth in this' Agreement which
either by their terms state or evidence the intent of the Parties, that the provisions survive the
expiration or termination of this Agreement (or must survive.to give effect to the provisions of
this Agreement); PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT THIS SECTION SHALL NOT APPLY IF
WESTERN IS THE SELECTED BIDDER AT AUCTION AND TIMELY CLOSES ON THE
GROUNDWATER SUPPLY AUCTION AGREEMENT.

19. Remedies.

19.1 Remedies upon-Breach or Default. In the event of a breach or default by a
Party. hereto, which is not cured within the period specified in Subsection
herein, and in addition to its other remedies specified in this Agreement or
available under applicable law, the non-breaching Party shall have the right to: (i)
seek specific performance of the breaching Party’s duties and obligations under
this Agreement to the extent the non-breaching Party has not elected to terminate
this Agreement pursuant to Subsection _ herein, (ii) recover from the
breaching Party all damages and losses incurred or suffered by the non-breaching
Party as a result of such breach or default, and (iii) perform the breaching Party’s
unperformed duties and obligations (in which event the breaching Party shall,
within 5 days of request by the non-breaching Party, reimburse the non-breaching
Party for all /sums, amounts, costs and expenses expended by said Party in
connection therewith).

19.2  Successful Challenge. To the extent any legal action or proceeding is initiated
challenging the validity of the Auction or the effectiveness of Watermaster’s
material obligations under this Agreement (a “Challenge Proceeding”),
Watermaster will be solely responsible for the defense of such Challenge
Proceeding, subject to the cooperation provisions in Subsections herein,
including any and all costs and expenses associated therewith. To the extent that
the results of any Challenge Proceeding is to deem the Auction or Watermaster’s
material obligations under this Agreement unlawful or unenforceable, Western
may relinquish, in writing, all rights and interest in the Groundwater Resources to

14

SB 489702 v4:008350.0001



Administrative Draft: 11/18/08

Watermaster in exchange for Watermaster refunding to Western the money
received by Watermaster for the applicable Groundwater Resources without
interest. Such refund shall be paid by Watermaster within 30 days of receipt of
the aforementioned notice and refund demand from Western, or within such other
period as mutually agreed to by the Parties.

19.3 Expiration of Agreement. This Agreement shall expire on [DATE] unless
earlier terminated as provided in this Agreement. [30 YEAR TERM]

20. Indemnification.

20.1 Indemnification by Watermaster. Watermaster shall indemnify and hold
harmless Western and its partners, directors, officers, managers, employees,
agents, consultants, advisors, accountants;. financial advisors, legal counsel or
other representatives (collectively, “Western. Indemnified Persons”), and will
reimburse the Western Indemnified Persons for any loss, liability, claim, damage,
expense (including costs of investigation and defense and reasonable attorneys’
fees and expenses) whether or not involving a claim by a third party (collectively,
“Damages”), arising from or in connection with:

20.1.1 any breach of any répresentation or warranty made by Watermaster in this
Agreement or any other agreement, certificate, document or other writing
delivered in connection herewith;

20.1.2 any breach of any covenant, agreement or obligation of Watermaster in
this Agreement or any ‘other agreement, certificate, document or other
writing dellye:ed in connection herewith;

20.1.3 any liability arising out of the ownership of any Groundwater Resources
prior to the time that such Groundwater Resources are transferred in full to
Western pursuant to this Agreement;

20.1.4 any brokerage or finder’s fees or commissions or similar payments based
upon any agreement or understanding made, or alleged to have been made,
by any person with Watermaster (or any person acting on its behalf) in
connection with this Agreement or the Groundwater Resources;

20.1.5 any noncompliance by Watermaster with any laws applicable to the
Groundwater Resources or this Agreement;

20.1.6 any Challenge Proceeding, including without limitation any and all
Damages incurred by Western as a result of a Challenge Proceeding
resulting in either the Auction or Watermaster’s material obligations under
this Agreement being deemed unlawful or unenforceable; and

20.1.7 any misrepresentation by Watermaster or its agents relating to the Auction
or the interests being sold thereunder.

15

SB 489702 v4:008350.0001

109



Administrative Draft: 11/18/08

20.2 Indemnification by Western. Western shall indemnify and hold harmless
Watermaster and its directors, officers, managers, employees, agents, consultants,
advisors, accountants, financial advisors, legal counsel or other representatives
(collectively, “Watermaster Indemnified Persons”), and will reimburse the
Watermaster Indemnified Persons for any Damages arising from or in connection
with:

20.2.1 any breach of any representation or warranty made by Western in this
Agreement or any other agreement, certificate, document or other writing
delivered to Watermaster in connection herewith;

20.2.2 any breach of any covenant, agreement.or obligation of Western in this
Agreement or any other agreement, certificate; document or other writing
delivered to Watermaster in connection herewith;

20.2.3 any brokerage or finder’s fees‘or commissions or similar payments based
upon any agreement or understanding made, or alleged to have/been made,
by any person with Western (or. any.person acting on!its behalf) in
connection with this Agreement; and

20.2.4 any noncompliance by Western with any laws applicable to the
Groundwater Resources or this Agreement.

203 Indemnification Procedures. In the event of any claim, action or demand
(“Claim”) where any Party hereto seeks indemnification from the other, the Party
seeking indemnification (“Indemnified Party”) shall give the Party from whom
indemnification is sought (“Indemnifying Party””) written notice of such Claim
promptly after the Indemnified Party first becomes aware thereof. Provided
however, that failure to give such notice shall not preclude indemnification with
respect to such Claim except to the extent of any additional or increased Losses or
other actual prejudice directly caused by such failure. The Indemnifying Party
shall have the right to choose counsel to defend such Claim (subject to the
approval of such counsel by the Indemnified Party, which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), and to control, compromise and
settle such Claim, and the Indemnified Party shall have the right to participate in
the defense at its sole expense. Provided further, however, the Indemnified Party
shall have the right to take over the control of the defense or settlement of such
Claim at any time if the Indemnified Party irrevocably waives all rights to
indemnification from and by the Indemnifying Party. The Indemnifying Party
and the Indemnified Party shall cooperate in the defense or settlement of any
Claim and no Party shall have the right to enter into any settlement agreement that
materially affects the other Party’s material rights or material interests without
such Party’s prior written consent (which consent will not be unreasonably
withheld or delayed).

21.  Assignments Successors No Third-Party Rights. Except as expressly provided herein,
no Party may assign, in whole or in part, any of its rights or delegate any of its obligations under

16

SB 489702 v4:008350.0001



Administrative Draft; 11/18/08

this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party (which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld or delayed). Furthermore, no Party may convey all or any portion of its
rights hereunder unless either (a) the corresponding obligations of that Party are completely
assumed by the assignee, the assignee accepts such obligations and demonstrates its ability to
perform them to the reasonable satisfaction of the other Party, the obligations are specifically
listed in the assignment and the assignee expressly agrees to be bound by the provisions of
Sections ___, or (b) the Party remains obligated to perform said corresponding obligations after
such assignment; provided, however, Western (after written notice to Watermaster), may assign
any of its rights and delegate any of its obligations under this Agreement to any solvent, duly
authorized, and lawfully existing affiliate of Western that can fulfill the representations and
warranties and other covenants herein, and may collaterally assign its rights hereunder to any
financial institution providing financing in connection with the transactions contemplated herein
provided that the financial institution shall take such rights subject to Watermaster’s security
interests set forth herein. Subject to the foregoing; this Agreement will apply to, be binding in all
respects upon, and inure to the benefit of, the successors and permitted assigns of the Parties.
Except as set forth in Section _ herein, nothing expressed or referred to in this Agreement
will be construed to give any Person other than the Parties to this Agreement any legal or
equitable right, remedy or claim under this Agreement, except such rights as shall inure to a
successor or permitted assignee pursuant to this Subsection

22. Miscellaneous.

22.1 Expenses. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, each Party to this
Agreement shall bear its respective fees and expenses incurred in connection with
this Agreement.

22.2  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which
shall be considered part of the whole. Further, the Parties agree that valid
execution of this Agreement may be accomplished by signatures exchanged
between the Parties by facsimile transmission and that such signatures shall be
valid and binding as though they were original signatures.

22.3  Attorneys’ Fees. Should a Party be required to consult or engage attorneys to
represent it with regard to enforcement of any material part of this Agreement, the
prevailing Party shall be entitled to (and the non-prevailing Party shall be
responsible for), the payment of all costs and expenses incurred by the prevailing
Party, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.

224 Waivers. No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall constitute a
waiver of any other provision, whether or not similar, nor shall any waiver be a
continuing waiver. Except as expressly provided for in this Agreement, no waiver
shall be binding unless executed in writing, by the Party making the waiver. Any
Party may waive any provision of this Agreement intended for its benefit,
Provided, however, such waiver shall in no way excuse the other Party from the
performance of any of its other obligations under this Agreement.

17

SB 489702 v4:008350.0001

107



108

22.5

22.6

22.1

22:8

Administrative Draft: 11/18/08

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be deemed an California contract and
construed according to California law. This Agreement shall only be enforceable
in a court of competent jurisdiction in the State of California, and not in any other
state.

Construction. The Parties acknowledge that they were each represented by
counsel in connection with this Agreement, that each of them (and their respective
counsel) reviewed this Agreement, that any rule of construction to the effect that
ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting Party shall not be employed in
the interpretation of this Agreement, and that the language in all parts of this
Agreement shall in all cases be construed as a whole and in accordance with its
fair meaning. Any provision of this Agreement which requires a Party to perform
an action shall be construed so as to require the Party to perform the action or to
cause the action to be performed: ~Any provision of this Agreement which
prohibits a Party from performing an action shall be construed so as to prohibit
the Party from performing the action or from permitting others to perform the
action. Except to the extent, if any, to which this Agreement specifies otherwise,
each Party shall be deemed to be required to perform its obligations under this
Agreement at its own expense, and each Party shall be permitted to exercise its
rights and privileges only at its own expense.

Severability. Except as otherwise provided herein (including, without limitation,
Subsection ___ herein), if any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, the other provisions of this
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and the Parties shall negotiate an
equitable adjustment in the provisions of this Agreement with a view toward
effecting the purp‘o,ise} of this Agreement. The validity and enforceability of the

remaining provisions or portions, or applications thereof, shall not be affected
thereby.

Notices. Notices shall be in writing and shall be given by personal or air courier
service delivery to a.responsible person, by telephone facsimile, or by deposit in
the United  States mail, certified mail, and return-receipt requested, postage
prepaid. Notices shall be delivered or addressed to Watermaster and Western at

the addresses set forth below, or at such other address as a Party may designate in

writing. The/date notice is deemed to have been given, received and become
effective shall be the date on which the notice is delivered (if notice is given by
personal or air courier service delivery or by telephone facsimile), or 2 days
following the date of deposit in the mail (il the notice is sent through the United
States mail).

If to Watermaster:  [ADDRESS]
ADDRESS
ADDRESS
ADDRESS

18

SB 489702 v4:008350.0001



Administrative Draft; 11/18/08

If to Western: ADDRESS
ADDRESS
ADDRESS
ADDRESS

Copy to: ADDRESS
ADDRESS
ADDRESS
ADDRESS

All notices served by a Party, that may trigger a right, obligation or duty to
be fulfilled by the other Party under this Agreement, shall be served by
Certified Mail, return receipt requested.

22.9 No Liability. Watermaster and Western expressly acknowledge and agree that
neither the Watermaster Council members, other officers, employees, attorneys or
agents of Watermaster nor Western’s members, managers, employees, officers or
agents shall have any personal obligation or liability under this Agreement.

22.10 Cooperation and Further Documentation. Bach Party agrees in good faith to
(i) cooperate with one another, the Court having jurisdiction over the Judgment
and/or other third parties, and (ii) execute such further or additional documents as
may be necessary or appropriate to fully.carry out the intent and purpose of this
Agreement.

22.11 Cooperation in the Event of Third—Parg L{tigation. Subject to Subsection

herein and the indemnification provisions of Section ___ herein, in the event that
any ‘legal action is instituted by athird party or other governmental entity or
official against the Parties c_halleﬁging the validity or enforceability of any
“provision of this Agreement, or any other action by a Party performing hereunder,
the Parties hereby agree to affirmatively cooperate in defending such action and to
pay their own expenses associated with such defense. In the event of any
litigation challenging the effectiveness of this Agreement (or any portion hereof),
this Agreement shall’ remain in full force and effect while such litigation
(including any appellate review) is pending.

22.12 No ‘Agency.Created. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create any
partnership, joint venture, or agency relationship between the Parties.

22.13 Time Periods. If the time for performance of any obligation or taking any action
under this Agreement falls or expires on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, the
time for performance or taking such action shall be extended to the next
succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday.

22.14 Headings. The headings of this Agreement are for purposes of reference only
and shall not limit or define the meaning of any provision of this Agreement.

19

SB 489702 v4:008350.0001

119



110

22.15

22.16

22.17

22.18

Administrative Draft: 11/18/08

Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the exhibits hereto and the Minimum
Price Escrow Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the Parties
pertaining to the subject matter contained herein and therein. All prior and
contemporaneous agreements, representations and understandings of the Parties,
oral or written, are superseded by, and merged into, this Agreement and the
exhibits hereto and the Minimum Price Escrow Agreement. This Agreement shall
not be modified, changed or amended by any subsequent written or oral
agreement unless agreed to in writing by Western and Watermaster.

Authorizations. The signatories to this Agreement represent that they have been
appropriately authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for
which they sign, and that no further action or-approvals (including actions by
Watermaster. Council) are necessary before execution of this Agreement.

Conflict of Interest. Notice is hereby given of the provisions.of [Cal. Code re:
Conflicts], as amended by this reférence, the provisions of this statute are
incorporated in this Agreement to the extent of their applicability to contracts of
the nature of this Agreement under the laws of the State of California

Knowledge. For purposes of this Agreement, (a) an individual will be deemed to
have “knowledge” of a particular fact or other matter if that individual is actually
aware of that fact or matter or if a prudent individual could be expected to
discover or otherwise become aware of that fact or matter in the course of
conducting a reasonably comprehensive investigation regarding the accuracy of
any representation or warranty contained in this Agreement, and (b) a person
other than'an individual will be deemed to have ‘knowledge’ of a particular fact
or other matter if any individual who is serving, or who has at any time served as
a director, officer, partner, official, executor or trustee of that person (or in any
similar capacity) has or'at.any time had, knowledge of that fact or other matter,
and any such individual (and any individual party to this Agreement) will be
deemed to have conducted a reasonably comprehensive investigation regarding
the accuracy of the representations and warranties made herein by that person or
individual. '

22.19 Days. Any and all references to a number of days herein, unless otherwise

specified, shall refer to calendar days.

IN WITNESS. WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this instrument by and
through their authorized representatives effective on the day and year first-above written.

20

SB 489702 v4:008350.0001



